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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  jyy 0o

Northern District of Oklahoma
Phli Lombard; C***l(

RIOT ,.--.-.. s

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v, Case Number 97-CR-176-003-C

ALONZQ NOLAN ENTERED ON DOCK

Defendant. " DATE (/A 224

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
(For Offenses Comm:tted On or After November 1, 1987

The defendant, ALONZO NOLAN was represented by Mlchael Abel,

On motion of the United States the court has dismissed Counts 1, 3-26, 29-31, 33-35, 37, 39 and 40
of the Superseding Indictment.

The defendant pleaded guiity to Counts 32, 36 & 38 of the Superseding Indictment, February 19,
1998. Accordingly, the defendant is adjudged guilty of such count(s), invoiving the following offense(s}:

Date Offense Count
Title & Saection Nature of Offenss _ Longluded MNuymber{s}
18 USC 924(¢} Passession of a Firearm While in 10/29/97 32
Commission of a Violent Crime
18 USC 924(c}  Possession of a Firearm While in 10/21/97 36
Commission of a Violent Crime
18 USC 824(¢) Possession of a Firearrn While in 11/4/97 38

Cammission of a Violent Crime

As pronounced on June 22, 1998, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of this
Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1384.

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 3C0, for
Counts 32, 36 & 38 of the Superseding Indictrnent, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the L_g__ day of é%g/ﬁ; A . 1988, ; i /

The Honhorable H. Da! mﬁ; tes Disteiet Court
IS"Id of Okighoma ]

Defendant's Date of Birth: 12/22/78 | heteby certify that the forormg
[]

Defendant's residence and mailing address: c¢/o Tulsa County Jail, 500 5. Denvierghlfmﬂmgv it Figiyes (i
$ cour
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' Defendant: ALONZO NOLAN ' o C '
Case Number: 97-_CH-176-003~C

- IMPRISONMENT

~ The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of 480 months; zero (Q) manths as to Count 32, 240 months as to Count 38, and 240
months as to Count 38, all said terms to run consecutively, each to the other.

The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: that the defendant be
designated to a facility equipped to provide Comprehensive Substance Abuse Treatment during his period of
incarceration.,

The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal.

RETURN

[ have executed this Judgment as follows:

Defendant delivered on ' to :
at ___, with a certified copy of this Judgment.

United States Marshal

By

Deputy Marshal
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Defendant: ALONZO NOLAN

Judgment--Page 3 of 8

Case Number: 97-CR-176-003-C

SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervnsed release for a term of three {3)

years, as to each count, Said terms to run concurrently, each with the other.

While an supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime; shall

not illegaily possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted
by this court (set forth below); and shail comply with the following additional conditions:

1.

2.

The defendant shall report in person 1o the Probation Office in the district to which the defendant is released as soon as possible,

but in no event, later than 72 hours of release from the custody of tha Bureau of Prisons.

If this judgment imposes a fine, special assassment, costs, or restitution shligation, it shall be a condition of supervised releasa

that the defendant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, ang restitution that remain unpaid at the commengéement of the term

of supservised release.

The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm, destructive device, or gther dangerous weapan.

The defendant shail successfully participate in a program of testing and treatment {ta inciude inpatient) for drug and aleohol

abuse, as directed by the Probation Officer, until such time as released from the program by tha Probation Officer.

The defendant shall participata in a program of mental heaith treatment {to inciude inpatiant), as directed by the Probation

Offiger, until such time as the defendant is released from tha program by the Probation Officer.

The defendant shall submit ta a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person, residence, vehicie, office

and/or business at a reasonable time and in & reasonabie manner, based upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidents

of a violation of a condition of raleasa, Failure to submit to a search may ba grounds for revacation. The defendant shall not

reside at any location without having first advised other residents that the premisés may be subject 10 searches pursuant to this
. condition. Additicnally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other residents that said residents acknowiedge the

existence of this condition and that their failure Yo cooperate could result in revecation. This acknowiedgemem shali be provided

to the U. S. Probation Office immadiataly upen taking residgency.

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on supervised retease pursuant to this judgmaent, the defendant shall not commir another federal, state, or

tocal crime. in addition:

1)
2)
3
4)
)

)
7

8)
9)

10
1R}

12}

23

14}

The defendant shall not leave tha judiciat district without the permission of the court or probation officer.

The defendant shall report to tha probation officer as directed by the court ar probation officer and shall submit & truthful and
complete written report within the first five days of sach month.

The defendant shall answer truthfully all inguiries by the prabation officer and foilow the instructions of the probation officer.
The defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet othér familty responsibilities.

The defendant shall work ragularly at a tawful occupation uniess excused by tha prabation officer for schooling, training, or other
acegptable reasons. '

Tha defandant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or employmeant.

The defendant shali refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or administer any narcotic
ar other controtied substance, or any paraphernaha related to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.

The defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or administered.

The defendant shall not asscciate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not associata with any person gonvicted
of a felony uniess granted permission to do s0 by the probation efficer,

The defendant shall permir a probation officer 1o visit him or her at any time at home or eisewhere and shali permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer.

The defendant shall notify tha probation officer within seventy-twa hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcemant
officer.

Tha defendant shall not enter inta any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without the
permission of the court.

As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant's

~criminal record or personal history ar characteristics, and shall permit the prubanon officer to make such notifications and te confirm
tha defandant's campliance with such notification requirement.

The defendant shail submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the U. S. Probation Offica.
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-~ Defendant: ALONZO NOLAN
Case Numbper: 97-CR-176-003-C

Judgment--Page 4 of 6

The defendant shall make restitution in the total amount of $12,455.02.

is waived by the Court.

TION AND FO URE

- RESTITUTION

The interest on restitution

The defendant shail make restitution jointly and severally with Marcus Gill and Tony Baker to the
foilowing persons in the following amounts:

Name of Payes

11807 E. 31st Street
Tulsa, OK 74146

8997 Grandy's Lane
Lewisville, TX 75087

Amount of Restitution

Jamii's Steak House $800.00  Papa John's Pizza 981.48

Attn: Tyrone Elias 2802 E. 11th Street

2833 E. 51st Street Tulsa, OK 74104

Tulsa, OK 74108 _
~ Farmer’s Insurance Group 1,426.00 Diamond Jack's 750.00
' Kansas City Com’! Claims 3609 E. 51st Street

Claim#: ' " Tuisa, OK 74135

P.0. Box 25941

Shawnee Mission, KS 66225 _

Ricardo’s 246.40 Sarah Pickett 188.00

Attn: Richard Hunt 7915 8. Yale, Apt. D

5629 E. 41st Street Tulsa, OK 74136

Tulsa, OK 74135

Subway 158.88 Pizza Hut 1,050.00

Attn: Julia Kern © 1907 S. Harvard

4603 E. 60th Street Tuisa, OK 74112

Tulsa, OK 74135

Braum’s Ice Cream and Dairy 723.88 Eggroll Express 98.84

Stores, Attn: Bill Pendergraft 5015 S, Sheridan

P.O. Box 25429 Tulsa, OK 74145

Cklahoma City, OK 73125

Tace Mayo 203.89 Domino‘s Pizza 1,272.25

2819 S. Harvard Attn: Scott Driver

Tulsa, OK 74135 2604 5. Harvard

Tulsa, OK 74135
Subway 199.00  Grandy’s 1,392.00
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Defendant: ALONZO NOLAN
Case Number: 27-CR-1 76_-003-C
NE
RESTITUTION CON'T
Payless Shoe Stores 1,047.54 Blimpie Sandwich Shops 236.00
2157 S. Sheridan Road ' 8222 5. Lewis Ave
Tuisa, OK 74114 ' - : Tulsa, OK 74137
. Bill & Ruth’s Sandwich Shop 525.00 Dustyn W, Bell 200.00

Attn: Zouhir A. Hamed ' 11211 8. Erie
1322 E. 41st Street ) Tulsa, OK 74133
Tulsa, OK 74104 '
Farmer’s Insurance Group 946.16
Kansas City Com’l Claims
Claim#:C5013426

P.O. Box 25941
Shawnee Mission, KS 68225

'~ “Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s).

Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while in
custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from custody,
any unpaid balance shall be paid as a condition of supervised release, except that no further payment shall
be required after the sum of the amounts actualiy paid by all defendants, Marcus Gill, Tony Baker and Alonzo
Noian has fully covered the compensable injury.

If a vietim has racsived compensation from insurance or any other source with respect to a loss, any
restitution ordered shall be paid to the person who is a victim before any restitution is paid to any such
provider of compensation.

Any payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named uniess otherwise specified here.
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© . Defendant: ALONZO NOLAN
Case Number: 97-CR-176-003-C

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: n/a
Criminal History Category: ]
Imprisonment Range: 60 months Ct. 32
- 240 months Ct. 36

: 240 months Ct. 38
Supervised Reiease Range: 2 to 3 vears Cts. 32, 36 & 38
Fine Range: $ Oto $ 260,00 Cts. 32, 36 & 38
Restitution: $12,445.02

The fine is waived or is below the guidekne r'ange because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence departs from the guideline range upon motion of the government, as a result of the
defendant's substantial assistance,
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™ 'UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT_ o or
Northern District of Oklahoma ENTEREP
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA DATE é’& 4/ 7
v. ‘ Case Number 98-CR-063-001-K
| FILED
SAN_DRBAGEGEH%;:”T.OSALES | JUN 24 1908
JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE ot BT Slar

{For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987)

The defendant, SANDRA PENA ROSALES, was represented by Martin Hart,

The defendant pleaded guilty to Count 1 of the Indictment, June 10, 1998. Accordmgiy, the
defendant is adjudged quilty of such count, involving the following offense:

Date Offense Count
Titla & Secticn Nature of Cffansa . Concluded . Number(s)

FQ-Z USC 408 Use of False Social Security Number 3/17/97 1
(@a){7)(B}

As pronounced on June 23, 1998, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 3 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 100, for
Count 1 of the Indictment, which shail be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for thls district within

30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all flnes restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the 522 day of , 1998.

Terry C. Kern, thrief
Uriited Staggs District Judge

Jefendant’s SSN: None -
Defendant’s Date of Birth: 5/10/77 _
Defendant’s re_sidence and mailing a_ddres's: Tulsa County Jail, 800 . Denver, Tulsa OK 74103
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_Jefendant: SANDRA PENA ROSALES

Judgment--Page 2 of 3

Case Number: 98-CR-063-001-K

PROBATION
The defendant is hereby placed on probation for a term of three (3} vears.

While on probation, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime; shalt not

illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted
by this court (set forth below}; and shalf comply with the following additional cenditions:

1.

2.

crime.

H
2)

3)
4)
5)

6

7)

8}
9}

10}
11
12)

13}

14}

If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs or restitution obligation, it shall be a condition of probation that the
defendant pay any such fine, assessment, costs and restifution.

The defandant shall not own or possess & firearm, destructive device, or other dangerous weapon.

You shall follow all INS instructions regarding deportation, and shall comply with any and all conditions of bond release that
may be ordered by the INS. If released on bond by the INS, you shall report to the U.S. Probation Office in this district within
48 hours of your relaase. If you are deported, and subsequently reenter tha United States within three (3) years of this date,
you shall report 1o the nearest U.5. Probation Office within 48 hours of reentering the United States.

You are prohibited from accepting any employmaent untit such time as you are able to provide proof of status as a legal alian,

it is recommended to the Immigration and Naturalization Servica that you be grantsd bond pending any haar:ngs in your
deportation case.

The Court suspends the requirements for mandatory urine scresning as dictated by 18 USC & 3608, but specifically retains
the probation officer’'s authority to administer such tests for cause as permitted by the standard conditions of supervision.

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF'PROBATION

While the defendant is un probatmn pursuant to thas Judgment, the defendant shall not comimit another federai state or local

In addition:

The defendart shall not leave tha judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer.

The defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or prabation officer and shall submit a truthful and
complete written report within tha first five days of each month.

The defendant shall answer truthfully all inguiries by the probation officer and foliow the instructions of the probation officer.
The defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities.

‘The defendant shall wark reguiarly at a lawful occupation unless excused by the probation officer for schoeling, training, or other
acceptable reasons.

The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two haurs of any changs in residence or employment.

The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchasa, possess, use, distribute or administer any
narcotic or ether controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as pras¢ribed by a physician.
Tha defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or administared.

The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not associata with any person convicted
of a felony unless granted permissian 1o do so by the probation officer. _

The defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit'him or her at any time at Rome or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer.

The defendant shalf notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questloned by a law enforcement
officer.

The defendant shall not anter into any agreement to ac: as an informar or a special agant of a law enforcernent agency wuthout
the permission of the court.

As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shail notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defandant’s
criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such notifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirerment.

The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the UJ. S. Probation Office.

-
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£ Mefendant: SANDRA PENA ROSALES

"Case Number; 98-CR-063-001-K

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 4

Criminal History Category: I

Imprisonment Range: 0 months to 8 months
Supervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years

Fine Range: $ 2560 to $ 5,000
Restitution: $n/a

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.

¢ T 1S RECOMMENDED TO THE IMMIGRATION AND NATURALIZATION SERVICE THAT ROSALES BE

JRANTED BOND PENDING ANY HEARINGS IN HER DEPORTATION CASE,
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" UNITED STATES DISTRICT COUR

Northern District of Oklahom

™.
ENTERED ON DOCKET
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

DATE & .22 28
. - . ,/"/
V. Case Number 98-CR-23-H *I:;;—J o
CAROLE ANNE MILLIGAN ROZAK R | U D
Defendant. R 22 fgggjww
h:lL
u
JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE - DI, Ol
{For Offanses Committed On or After November 1, 1987) cOURr

The defendant, CAROLE ANNE MILLIGAN ROZAK, was represented by Jack Schisler.

The defendant pleaded guilty to Count 1 of the Indictment, March 12, 1998. Accordingly, the
defendant is adjudged guilty of such count, invalving the following offense:

Title & Section

Date Qffense Count
Nature of Offense . Concluded Number (s}
18 USC 1014 False Statement to Financial Institution

~ 9/30/96 1

As pronounced on June 12, 1998, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984

It is ordered that the defendant shali pay to the United States a special assessment of § 100, for
Count 1 of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately

it is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within

30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the _ /9 ﬂ“c'iay of \7;;-_/&
Dishidt (ot 1 S
mfmu&a " Ctiwoss )

gmcmdmmw

_ The ionorable Sven Erik Holmes
.mm M Q"" ogt ' _ United States District Judge

, 1998,

By

Defendant’s SSN: 445-85-7626{Canadian)
Defendant’s Date of Birth: 6/19/63

Defendant’s residence and mailing address: Tufsa County Jail, 500 S. Denver, Tulsa OK 74103
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Jefendant: CAROLE ANNE MILLIGAN ROZAK

Case Number: 98-CR-23-H

IMPRISONMENT

The defendant |'s hereby committed to the custady of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be

imprisoned for a term of 16 months, as to Count 1, said term to run concurrentry with terms imposed in 98-
CR-22-H and 97-CR-180-H.

The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: that the defendant be
designated to a facility equipped to provide mental health treatment during her period of incarceration.

The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal.

RETURN

! have executed this Judgment as follows:

Defendant delivered on to . . _
at . ~, with a certified copy of this Judgment.

Un.ited States Marshal

By

Deputy Marshal
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(~Defendant; CAROLE ANNE MILLIGAN ROZAK
- Zase Number: 88-CR-23-H

SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon reiease from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of five {5)
years, as to Count 1, said term to run concurrently with the terms imposed in 98-CR-22-H and 97-CR-180-
H.

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime:
shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shaill comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court (set forth helow); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1. The defendant shail report in person to the Probation Office in the district 1o which the defendant is released as soon as
passible, but in no avent, later than 72 hours of retease from the custady of the Buraau of Prisons.
2. 'f this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs, or restitution obligation, it shall be a candition of supervised ralease

that the defendant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and rastitution that remain unpaid at the commencement of the
term of supervised release.

3. The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm, destructive device, or other dangerous weapon.

4. The defendant shall participata in a program of mental health treatment (to include inpatient}, as directed by the Probation
Officer, until such time as the defendant is released from the program by the Prabation Officar.

5. The defendant shall submit to a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person, residence, vehicie, office

and/or business at a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, based upon reasonabie suspition of contraband or évidenca
of a violation of a condition of release. Failura to submit to a search may be grounds for ravocation. The defandant shall not
reside at any location without having first advised other residents that the premises may be subject to searches pursuant to
this condition. Additionally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other residents that said residents
acknowledge the existence of this condition and that thair failure to cooperate could result in revocatfon. This

ﬁ@“\ acknewiedgement shall be provided to the U. S. Probation Office immediately upon taking residency.

R R The defendant shail abide by the "Special Financial Conditions™ enumerated in Miscellaneous Order Number M-128, filed with
tha Clerk of the Court on March 18, 1992, '

7. As a condition of supervisaed release, upon camplation of your term of imprisonment, if an Immigration and Naturalization
Service detainer is lodged, you are to be surrendered to a duly-authorized immigration official for degortation in accordance
with the established procedures provided by ths irmmigration and Naturaiization Act, 8 USC §§ 1101-1524, itis a further
condition of supervised release, if ordered deported, you shail remain outside the United States until termination of the term
of supervised releass.

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on supervised ralsase pursuant to this judgment, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state,
or loeal crime. In addition:

1} The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the permission ‘of the court or probation officer.

2} The defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and
complate writtent report within the first five days of esch month.

3) The defendant shall answer truthfully ali inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the prabation officer.

4} The defendant shall support hiz ar her dependents and meat other family responsibilities.

8) The defendant shall work regularly at a lawful sccupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training. or other
acceptable reasons.

6} The defendant shali notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or emplayment.

7) The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of algohol and shall not purchase, possess, usa, distribute or administer any
narcatic or other controllad substance, or ahy paraphernalia related to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.

8) The defendant shall not frequent places wharae controlled substances are iflegally soid, used, distributed, or administered.

8) The defandant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not agsociata with any person convicted
of a felony unjess granted permission 10 do so by the probation officer.

10) The defandant shall permit a probation officer o visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer.

11} The defendant shall notify tha probation officer within saventy-two hours of being arrasted or quasnonad by a law enforcement

. officer.
m 2) The defendant shalf not enter into any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without
tha permission of the court.

13) As directed by the probation officer, tha defendant shall notify third partias of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s
eriminat record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such notifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement.

14) Tha defandant shall submit to urinalysis testing as direstad by the U, . Probation Office.

P



AQ 245 S (Rev. 7/93)(N.D. Okla. rev.} Sheet 6 - Restitution and Forfeiture

o

o B . SRR ' Judgmént--PaQe 40f5
Defendant: CAROLE ANNE MILLIGAN ROZAK
Case Number: 98-CR-23-H

RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE

RESTITUTION

The defendant shall make restitution in the total amount of $4,958.65, Interest on restitution is
waived by the Court. '

The defendant shall make restitution to the following persons in the following amounts:

Name of Pavee Amount of Restitution
General Motors Acceptance Corp. $4,958.565
Box 105270 '

Atlanta, Georgia 30348-5270
Attn: Connie Nadeli

£} Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s).

Restitution shaii be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while
in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Pragram. Upon release from
custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid as a condition of supervised release.

If a victim has received compensation from insurance or any other source with respect to a loss, any
restitution ordered shazll be paid to the person who is a victim before any restitution is paid to any such
provider of compensation.

Any payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise specified here.
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Defendant: CAROLE ANNE MILLIGAN ROZAK
Case Number: 98-CR-23-H

Judgment--Page 5 of 5

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level 12

Criminal History Category: |

imprisonment Range: 10 months to 16 months
Supervised Release Range: 3 to 5 years

Fine Range: $ 3,000 10 § 30,000
Restitution: $ 4,858.55

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines..
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_UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT&TEHED ON DOCKET

Northern District of Oklahoma

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

V. ' Case Number 93-CR-22-H

CARQLE ANNE MILLIGAN ROZAK
Defendant,

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE S D"
(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987) R"Cr’ Clﬂrk
The defendant, CAROLE ANN MILLIGAN ROZAK, was represented by Jack Schisler.
On motion of the United States the court has dismissed Counts 2 through 7 of the Indictment.

The defendant pleaded guilty to Count 1 of the Indictment, March 12, 1998. Accordingiy, the
defendant is adjudged guilty of such count, involving the following offense:

Date Oﬁenée Count
Titla & Saction Nature of Offense Concluded Numbar{s}
18 USC 1344 Bank Fraud " N 11/2/98 1

As pronounced on June 12, 1998, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984,

Itis ordered that the defendant shall pay tr the United States a special assessment of $ 50, for Count
1 of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

) 4
Signed this the __/ 7 fday of @g

. 1998,

: e Honorable Sven Erik Holmes
., United States District Judge

£ efendant’s SSN: 445-85-7626(Canadian)
Defendant's Date of Birth: 6/19/53 _ _
Defendant’s residence and mailing address: Tulsa County Jail, 500 S. Denver, Tulsa OK 74103
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¢ “Defendant: CAROLE ANNE MILLIGAN ROZAK

‘Case Number; 98-CR-22-H

IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby caommitted to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be

imprisoned for a term of 18 months, as to Count 1, said term to run concurrently with terms imposed in 97-
CR-180-H and 38-CR-23-H.

The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: that the defendant be

designated to a Bureau of Prisons Facility equipped to provide mental health treatment during her period of
incarceration,

The defendant is remanded to the custcdy of the United States Marshal.

RETURN

[ have executed this Judgment as follows:

Defendant delivered on . ' to

at

“With a certified copy of this Judgment.

United States Marshal

By

Deputy Marshal
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Defendant: CAROLE ANNE MILLIGAN ROZAK

"Judgmenf--bage 3of5

Case Number: 98.CR-22-H

SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shail be on supervised release for a term of five {5}

years, as to Count 1, said term to run concurrgntly with terms imposed in 97-CR-180-H and 88-CR-23-H.

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime:

shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court {set forth below); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1.

Z.

The defendant shall report in person to the Prabation Office in tha district to which the defandant is reieased as soon as

possible, but in no event, later than 72 hours of release from the custody of the Bureau of Prisons.

if this judgment imposes a fine, special assessmeant, costs, of rastitution obligation, it shall be a condition of supervised releasa

that the defendant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and restitution that remain unpaid at the commencement of the

term of supervised release,

The defendant shall nat own or possess a firearm. destructiva device, or other dangerous weapon.

The defendant shall participate in a program of mental health treatnant {t¢ include inpatient), as directed by the Probation

Officer, until such time as the defendant is released from the program by the Probation Officer.

The dafendant shall submit to a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person, residence, vehicle, office

and/or business at a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, based upon reasaonable suspicion of contraband or avidence

of a violation of a condition of release. Failure to submit 1o a search may be grounds for ravocation. The defandant shall not

raside at any location without having first advised other residants that the premises may be subject to searches pursuant to

this condition. Additionally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other regidents that said residents

ackrowiedge the existence of this condition and that thair failure to cooparate could resuit in revocation. This
. acknowledgement shall ba provided to the U. S, Prabation Office immediataly upon taking residency.

Tha defendant shall abida by the "Specizl Financial Conditions” anumarated in Miscellaneous Order Nurmnber M-128, filed with

the Clerk of the Court on March 18, 1992,

As a condition of supervised release, upon compietion of your tarm of imprisonment, if an Immigration and Naturalization

Service detainer is lodged, you are to be surrendered to a duly-authorized immigration official for deportation in accordancs

with the established procadures provided by the Immigration and Naturalization Act, 8 USC 5§ 1101-1524. It is & further

condition of supervised releasa, of ardered deported, you shall romain outside the United Stated until termination of the term

of supervised release,

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on supervised releass pursuant to this judgment, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state,

or local crime. {n addition:

1
2]

3}
4}
8l

&)
n

8}
]

10)
o
12)

13}

14}

The defendant shall not Jeave the judicial district withcut the permission of the court ar probation officer.

The defendant shall report ta the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and
complete written report within the first five days of each month.

The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.
The defendant shall support his or her dapendants and meet other family responsibilities.

The dafandant shall work reqularly at a lawful occupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other
acceptable reasons.

The defendant shall notify the probation officer within sevanty-two hours of any change in residence or employment.

The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of aleohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or administer any
narcotic or other controlled substance, or any paraphernalia refated to such substances, except as prescnbed by a physician.
The defandant shail not frequent places where cantrolled substances are illegally soid, used, distributed, or administered.

The defendant shall not associate with any persons angaged in crimtinal activity, and shall not gssociata with any person convicted
of a feleny unlass granted perrnlssuon to do 50 by the probatlon officer

The defendant shall permit a prebation officer to visit him ar her at any time at home or sisewhere and shall perrmt confiscation
of any contraband obsarved in plain view by the prebation officer.

The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or guestioned by a law enfnrcement

" ‘officer.

The defendant shall not enter into any agresmant to act as an informer or a speciai agent of a law enforcement agency without
the parmission of the court.

As directed by the probation officer, tha defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s
criminat record or personal history of characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such notifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compiiance with such notification requirement,

The defendant shall submit to yrinalysis testing as directed by the U. S. Probation Office.

T " v — T — T T
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Defendant: CAROLE ANNE MILLIGAN ROZAK
Case Number: 98-CR-22-H

RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE

RESTITUTION

The defendant shall make restitution in the total amount of $27,155.33. Interest on restitution is
waived by the Court.

The defendant shall make restitution to the following persons in the following amounts:

Name of Payee Amognf of Restitution
Wachovia Bank _ _ ~ $18,155.33 -

1628 Browning Reoad, Rcom 146
Columbia, South Carolina 29226-8853
Attn: Danny Conyers
"mrﬁrifty'Ca'r'“Réhtar"' S $11,000.00
156845 JFK Bhed.
Houston, Texas
Attn: Sonny Adams

Payments of restitution are to be made tc the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee{s).

Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid v_vhiie
in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from
custody, any unpaid balance shail be paid as a condition of supervised release.

If a victim has received compensation from insurance or any other source with respect to a loss, any
restitution ordered shall be paid to the person who is a victim before any restitution is paid to any such |
provider of compensation.

»

Any payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise specified here,
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Defendant: CAROLE ANNE MILLIGAN ROZAK
Case Number: 98-CR-22-H

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Cffense Level: 12

Criminal History Category: !

Imprisanment Range: 10 months to 16 months
Supervised Release Range: 3 to b years

Fine Range: : § 3,000 to $ 30,000
Restitution: $ 27,155.33

The fine is waived or is below the gui_deline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.
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) © UNITED STATES DISTRICT coURT L & Ep
Northern District of Oklahoma Uy 2,
. UP/’J’?{ ]‘998 /L”*"’“‘
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 'S Op Mgy,
: _ srR“C,?bcferk
V. Case Number 87-CR-180-H o OUF??'
S,

CAROLE ANNE MILLIGAN ROZAK £y
Defendant. ENTERED ON DWKH

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE . ' e S
{For Qffenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987) ] '
The defendant, CAROLE ANNE MILLIGAN ROZAK, was represented by Jack Schisler.

The defendant pleaded guilty to Count 1 of the Indictment, March 12, 1998. Accordingly, the
defendant is adjudged guilty of such count, involving the following offense:

Date Offense Count
Title & Section Nature of Offensa Concluded: Number(s}
Fg,e"_'*l_;8 UsC 2314 Interstate Transportation of Stolen 9/1/97 1

& 2(b) Property and Causing a Criminal Act

As pronounced on Juns 12, 1998, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 100, for
Count 1 of the Indictment, which shail be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the __ /7 rﬁ‘;y of 1_'@#& . 1998.

i o The Honorable Sven Erik Holmes
ko t5va copy of $he oiginal on 59 - | United States District Judge

Defendant’s SSN; 445-85-7626(Canadian)
Defendant’'s Date of Birth: 6/19/53 _ _
Defendant’s residence and mailing address: Tulsa County Jail, 500 S. Denver, Tulsa OK 74103




 AQ 245 S (Rev. 7/23)(N.D. Okla. rev.} Sheet 2 - Imprisonment

Ty e 7 Judgment-Page 2 of §
Deferldant CAROLE ANNE M!LLIGAN ROZAK
Case Numbar: 97-CR-180-H

IMPRISONMENT
The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of 16 months, as to Count 1, said term to run concurrently with sentence imposed
in 98-CR-22-H and 98-CR-23-H.
The Caurt makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisans: that the defendant be

designated to a Bureau of Prisons Facility that is equipped to provide mental health treatment during her
period of incarceration.

B The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal,

RETURN

I have executed this Judgment as foliows:

Defendant delivered on to _
at , with a certified copy of this Judgment.

United States Marshal

By

Deputy Marshal
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- Defendant: CAROLE ANNE MILLIGAN ROZAK

Case Number: 97-CR-180-H
SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be en supervised release for a term of three (3}
years, as to Count 1, said term to run concurrently with the terms imposed in 88-CR-22-H and 98-CR-23-H.

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime;
shall not illegally possess a controiled substance; shail comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court (set forth below}; and shall comply with the following additionai conditions:

1. The defendant shall report in person to tha Probation Office in the district to which the defendant is released as saon as
possible, but in no event, later than 72 hours of release from tha custody of the Bureau of Prisons.
2. If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessmen?, costs, o restitution abligation, it shall be a condition of supervised release

that the defendant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and restitution that remain unpaid at the commencament of the
term of supervisad release.

3 The dafendant shall not own or possess a firearm, destructive devica, OF other dangerous waapor.

4. The defendant shall participate in a program of mental health treatment {to include inpatient), as directed by the Probation
Officer, until such time as the defendant is reieasad from the program by the Probation Qfficer.

5, The defendant shali submit t¢ a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person, residence, vahicle, office

and/or business at a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, based upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or ‘evidence
of a violation of a condition of releass. Failure to submit to a search may be grounds for revocation. The defendant shall not
reside at any lacation without having first advised other residents that the premiges may be subject to searches pursuant to
this condition, Additionally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other residents that said residents
acknowledge the existence of this condition and that their failure to cooparate could result in revocation,  This

F ~ acknowledgement shall be provided to the U. S. Probation Office immediately upon taking residency.
- The defendant shall abide by the "Spécial Financial Conditions™ enumerated in Miscelianeous Order Number M-128, filed with
the Clerk of the Court on March 18, 1892.
7. As a condition of supervised release, upan compietion of your term of imprisonment, if an Immigration and Naturaiization

Service detainer is lodged, you are to be surrendered to a duly-authorized immigration official for daportation in accordance
with the esteblished procedures provided by the Immigration and Naturalization Act, 8 USC 83 1101-1524. It is a furthar
gondition of supervised release, if ordered dsparted, you shall remain outside the United States until termination of the term

aof supervised release. _
STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on supervised release pursuant to this judgmant, the defendant shall not commit another federal, stats,
or locaj ¢crime. In addition:
1} The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the permission of the court ar probation officer.
2) The defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and
complate writtan report within the first five days of each month. . .
3} Tha defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.
4} The defendant shall suppott his or her dependents and mest other family responsibilities. _ o
) Tha dafendant shail work regularly at a lawful occupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other
acceptabile reasons. _ .
6] The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or employment. .
71 The defendant shall refrain from excessiva use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or agnunister any
narcotic or other controlied substance, or any paraphernatia related to such substances, axcept as prescribed by a physician.
8) The defendant shall not frequent places whera controlled substances are iilegally sold, used, distributed, or administered.
9) The defendant shail not associata with any persons engaged in ¢riminal activity, and shall not associate with any persen convicted
of a felony uniess granted permission to do so by the probation officer. _
10] The defendant shall permit a probation officer ta visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit ¢onfiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer.
11) The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by 2 law enfarcement
y  officer.
Cﬁz; The defendant shall not anter into any agreement to act es an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without
the permission of the court. -
13) As directed by the probation officer, tha defendant shall notify third partias of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s
criminal record or paersonal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such notifications and to
confirm tha defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement, _
14) The defendant shall submit 1o urinalysis testing as diracted by the U. $. Probation Office.
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"Defendant: CAROLE ANNE MILLIGAN ROZAK
Case Number: 97-CR-180-H

Judgment--Page 4 of 5

RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE
RESTITUTION

The defendant shall make restitution in the total amount of $7.856.22. Interest on restitution is
waived by the Court.

The defendant shall make restitution to the following persons in the following amounts:

Name of Payee Amount of Restitution
Bank One Recavery Department $7,856.22

1000 North Market Street
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202
Attn: Molly Byrne

£ Payments of restitution are to be made tc the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s).

Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while
in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibiiity Program. Upon release from
custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid as a condition of supervised release.

if a victim has received compensation from insurance or any other source with respect to a loss, any
restitution ordered shall be paid to the person who is a victim before any restitution is paid to any such
provider of compensation.

Any payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise speciﬁed here.
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‘Defendant: CAROLE ANNE MILLIGAN ROZAK
Case Number: 27-CR-180-H

Judgment-;Page 5 of 5

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Detsrmined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 12

Criminal History Category: _ [

Imprisonment Range: 10 months to 16 months
Supervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years

Fine Range: $ 3,000 to $ 30,000
Restitution: $7,866.22

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the céurt
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines:

£




———— .

””“ - 'UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT girreren on 00CET
o . N_(‘)rt'hem' District Ofoklahoma@j AR-2% —
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA o

v,

Case Number 37-CR-136-001-H .

TONY CAHUE
Defendant.

¥,y Ly
AMENDED JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE "W 2, 0
(For Offenses Committed On ar After November 1, 1987) ¢ Pﬁry(o% 999 por

Correction of Sentence for Clerical Mistake (Fed. R. Crim. P. 36} S ofs;;?icrw C’of&.
\?,,.r
G
The defendant, TONY CAHUE, was represented by Stephen J. Knorr. Gof?r
On motion of the United States the court has dismissed count 1 of the Indictrment.
The defendant pleaded guiity on February 18, 1998, to count 2 of the Indictment.
Accordingly, the defendant is adjudged guilty of such count, involving the following offense(s):
Date Offanse Count
p‘]’itla & Section Nature of Offense Concluded Number(s)
18 USC 1952(a)(3) interstate Travel in Aid of Racketesring 3897 2
18 USC 2 Aiding and Abetting 3-8-97 2

As pronounced on May 28, 1998, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 100, for
count(s) 2 of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

it is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

b 4
~ Signed this the /4 day of \%;V&* , 1998,

st Coot )¢5
et e of taboms s

ey f ha g e
o gy aohordy, Uedk

B
in

o

_ S ~ Thé Honorabie Sven Erik Holmes
' tnited States District Judge '

. i

B. %

" vefendant’s SSN: 459-50-2165
“Defendant’s Date of Birth; 07-05-30

Defendant’s residence and mailing address: Tulsa City/County Jail, ¢lo U.S. Marshal’s Office, 500 S
Denver, Tulsa, OK 74103 SE RASSE Abde _ _ _

2,
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" Defendant: TONY CAHUE
Case Number: 327-CR-136-001-H

Judgment--Page 2 of &

IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby comm_itted to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of 18 months.

The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: Defendant be placed in
a Bureau of Prison’s Medical Facility. The Court further orders the defendant’s medical records be attached
to the presentence report and that placement in a medical facility be expedited,

e
The défendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal.
y I RETURN
| have executed this Judgment as_follows:
P . ._Defendant delivered on 10 _ . »
at ' , with a certified copy of this Judgment.

United States Marshal
By

Deputy Marshal
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Defendant: TONY CAHUE

Judgment--Page 3 of &

‘Case Number: 97-CR-136-001-H

SUPERVISED RELEASE _ _
Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shail be on supervised release for a term of 3 years.

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime:

shall not illegally possess a controlied substance; shall comply with the standard cenditions that have been
adopted by this court (set forth below); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1.

The defendant shall report in person to the Probation Office in the district to which the defendant is
released as soon as possible, but in no event, later than 72 hours of release from the custody of the
Bureau of Prisons. _

If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs, or restitution obligation, it shall be a
condition of superwsed release that the defendant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and
restitution that remain unpaid at the commencement of the term of supervised release.

The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm, destructive device, or other dangerous weapon.
The defendant shail successfully participate in a program of testing and treatment {to include
inpatient) for drug and alcohol abuse, as directed by the Probation Officer, until such time as released
from the program by the Probation Officer, _ _ - _ _

The defendant shall submit to a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person,
residence, vehicle, office and/or business at a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, based
upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence of a violation of a condition of release. Failure
to submit to a search may be grounds for revocation. The defendant shali not reside at any location
without having first advised other residents that the premises may be subject to searches pursuant
‘to this condition, Additionaily, the defendant shall abtain written verification from other residents
that said residents acknowledge the existence of this condition and that their failure to cooperate
could result in revocation. This acknowledgement shall be provided to the U. S. Probation Office
immediately upon taking residency.

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on supervised release pursuant to this 1udgment the defendant shall not commit another fadaral, state,

or local crime, In addition:

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

6}
7}

8
9)

10}
11}
12)

13)

14)

The dafendant shall not leave tha jud|c| al dsstnct W|thout the permission of the court or probation offrcar

The defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthfl and
complate written report within the first five days of each month. _

The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.
The defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities.

The defendant shall work regularly at a lawful occupation unlass excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other
acceptable reasons.

The defandant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or employment,

The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcahal and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or administer any
narcotic or other controifed substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.
The defendant shall not frequent places where controllad subs‘tances are illegally sold, usad, distributed, or administered.

The defendant shall not agsociate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any person convicted
of a felony unless granted permission to do $0 by the probation officer.

The defendant shall parmit & probation officer to visit bim or her at any tima nt thome or elsewhera and shall parmit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officér.

The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement
officar,

The defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without

- 1he permission of the court.

As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall nofify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s
criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer 10 make such notifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement. _ _

The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the U. 5. Probation QOffice.

-+

+
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Defendant: TONY CAHUE

Case Number: 97-CR-136-001-H

RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE

RESTITUTION
The defendant shall make restitution in the total amount of.$3,486.

The defendant shall make restitution to the following persons in the following amounts:

The Court orders the defendant to immediately pay restitution in the amount of $3,486. Upan
farfeiture of $1,120.50, which is in the custody of authorities, a restitution balance of $2,607 will remain
outstanding, Payments may be forwarded to Lady Luck Casino, 316 Beach Boulevard, Biloxi, Mississippi
39530, reference case number LL-03-97-034. $986,50 of the restitution amount shall be paid jointly and
severally with codefendant Wilbur Garst. The remaining $1,379.00 shall be paid by this defendant. Any
restitution amount no paid immediately shali be paid during the period of incarceration, with any remaining
unpaid balance to be paid during the term of supervised release. Considering the defendant’s earning ability

{—and his limited financial resources, the Court does not impose any fine, cost of incarceration or supervision,
ind waives interest accrual on the restitution.

Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s).

Restitution shall be paid in full immediataly. Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while
in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ inmate Financial Responsibility Program, Upon release from
custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid as a condition of supervised releasae.

If a victim has received compensation from insurance or any other source with respect to a loss, any
restitution ordered shall be paid to the person who is a victim before any restitution is paid to any such
provider of compensation.

Any payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise specified |
here.
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Defendant: TONY CAHUE
Case Number: 897-CR-1386-001-H

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the prasentence report,

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 7

Criminal History Categaory: v

Imprisonment Range: 12 months to 18 months Count 2
Supervised Releases Range: 2 to 3 years Count 2
Fine Range: $ 5C0 to $§ 5000 Count 2
Restitution: $ 3,486

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay,

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and theé court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURTF iL

2 Northern District of Oklahoma JUN 22 1998
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA | L Lombard, Clerk
V. Case Number 98-CR-008-001-C
Clyde R. McShan | E_iil':l’-él.:!ED ON DOCKET
Defendant, N 0 o ___1;__.___.'.:_:-:
owre 622GE

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987}
The defendant, Clyde R. McShan, was represented by Stephen J. Knorr.
On motion of the United States the court has dismissed Counts 1 through 4 of the Indictment,

The defendant pleaded guilty to Counts 1 & 2 of the Information, March 17, 1998. Accordingly, the
defendant is adjudged guilty of such counts, invoiving the following offenses:

Date Offense Count
Title & Section Nature of Offense ' Concluded Number{s}
{8 USC 924(c)&2 Possession of a Firearm During a o ConATeT
' Crime of Violence and Aiding and Abetting
18 USC 924{c)&2 Possession of a Firearm During a 11/28/97 2

Crime of Violence and Aiding and Abetting

As pronounced on June 17, 1998, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special' assessment of $ 200, for
Counts 1 & 2 of the information, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address untal all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

‘I:UnﬂadS!uIesDIshﬁfmd tth?'e Jday ok 4“ o @ 1998,

Horthern District of Oklokoma )

I hereby censify that the f
ka rebyw of :ge ongmd mgn
St Kot

;_ \ _{ e T The Hoforable H. Dale Cook
By Sl United States District Judge

f‘be endan¥ s SSN: 442-76-3569
Yefendant’s Date of Birth: 4/8/79
Defendant’s residence and mailing address: Tulsa County Jail, 500 S. Denver, Tulsa 0K 74103
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/" Sefendant: Clyde R, McShan
'~ Case Number: 98-CR-008-001-C
IMPRISONMENT
The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisans to be
imprisoned for a term of 241 months. This term consists of 1 month as to Count 1 and 240 months,
mandatory, as to Count 2, to run consecutively to the term imposed in Count 1. These terms of
imprisonment shall run consecutively to the defendant’s current period of incarceration in the Oklahoma
Department of Corrections in Case CRF-97-6055, '
The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: that the defendant be
incarcerated at a facility specializing in Comprehensive Drug Treatment; and also that the defendant be
incarcerated at a facility near his father’s heme in Houston, Texas.

The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal.

RETURN

| have executed this Judgment as follows:

Defendant delivered on _ to _
at , with a certified copy of this Judgment.

United States Marshail

By

Deputy Marshal
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¢~ Defendant: Clyde R. McShan
- Case Number: 98-CR-008-001-C

SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the défendant shail be on SUpe_rvised release for a term of three (3}
years, as to each of Counts 1 & 2, said terms shall run concurrently, each with the othar.

While on supervised release, the defendant shali not commit another federal, state, or local crime;
shall not illegally possess a controlied substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court {set forth below); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

The defendant shzll report in parson to the Probation Office in the district to which the defendant is released as soon as

possible, but in no event, later than 72 hours of release from the custody of the Bureau of Prisons.,

2. If this judgment imposes a fina, spacial assessment, costs, or restitution obligation, it shall be a condition of supervised release
that the defendant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and restitution that remain unpaid at the commencement of the
tarm of supervised release.

3. The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm, destructive devics, or other dangerous weapon.

4, The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of testing and treatment {to include inpatient) for drug and alcohol
abuse, as directed by the Probation Officer, until such time as released from the program by the Probation Officer.

5, The defendant shall submit to 2 search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person, rasidence, vehicle, office

and/or business at a reasonabls time and in a reasonable manner, based upon raasonable suép’icion of contraband or evidence
of a viclation of a condition of release. Failure to submit to a search may be grounds for revocation. The defendant shall not
reside at any location without having first advised other residents that the premises may be subject to searchas pursuant to
this condition. Additionally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other residents that said residents
acknowledge the existence of this condition and that their failure to cooperate could result in revocation, This

m acknowladgement shall be provided to the U. S. Probation Office immediately upon taking residency.

- 8. The defendant shall abide by the "Spacial Financial Condltlons _enumerated in MISCBHEI"IBOUS Grder Number M-128, filed with
the Clerk of the Court on March 18, 19982,

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the dafandant is on supervised release pursuant to this judgment, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state,
or locaf crime. In addition:

1}  Tha defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer,

2) The defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and
complete written report within the first five days of each month.

3} The defendant shall answer truthfully all inguiries by the probation officer and follow the mstructlons of the probation offiger.

4} The defendant shall suppert his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities. _

B} The defendant shall wark regularly at a lawful secupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other
acceptable reasons.

6) The dafendant shall notify the probation officer within saventy-two hours of any change in residence or employment,

7)  The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or administer any
narcotic or ather controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as prascribed by a phvsncmn

8) The defendant shall not freguent places where controfled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or administerad.

9} The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not asscciate with any person convicted
of a felony unless granted permission t¢ do 5o by the probation officer,

10} The defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him ar har at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probztion officer.

11} The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement
officer,

12) The defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an |nformer or a spacial agent of a law enforcement agancy without
the permission of the court.

_fi-\S} As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may Be occasioned by the defendant’s

- criminal record or personal histary or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such notifications and to
confirm tha defendant’'s compliance with such nofification requirement.

14) The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the U. S. Probation Office.
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¢ Defendant: Clyde R. McShan
Case Number: 98-CR-008-001-C

RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE
RESTITUTION

The defendant shall make restitution in the total amount of $3.492.83. The interest on restitution
is waived by the Court,

The defendant shall make restitution to the following persons in the following amounts:

Names of Payee Amount of Restitution
Cinema World Video _ _ $774

6105 5. Mingo Road
Tulsa OK 74133

Michael Durbin $30
8760 E. 26th Place
f\::l'gisa OK 74.1_24

fFa,rf|e|d !nn i ) e e s TR L e it e e e S 3430 EREL

Attn: Restitution
9020 E. 71 Street
Tulsa OK 74133

Little Caesar;s Pizza _ $1,501.86
7104 S. Sheridan
Tulsa QK 74136

Carnmercial Union Insurance ' ' $706.97
Attn: Restitution

89229 LBJ Freeway, Suite 200

Dallas TX 75243

Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Qklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s).

Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while
in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from
custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid as a condition of supervised release.

£ a victim has received compensation from insurance or any other source with respect 1o a loss, any
* estitution ordered shall be paid to the person who is a victim before any restitution is paid to any such
provider of compensation.

Any payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise specified here.
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,f.!"\‘)efendant Clyde R. McShan

Case Number: 98-CR-008-001-C

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: n/a
Criminal History Category: nfa
Imprisonment Range: 80 months Ct. 1

240 months Ct. 2
Supervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years Ct. 1

2 to 3 years Ct. 2
Fine Range: $0t$ 250,000 Cts.1&2
Restitution: $ 3,492.83 '

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence for Count 2 is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and
the Court finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.
. ... The sentence for Count 1 departs from the gu:dellne range upon mot:on of the governrnent as a
result of the defendant’s asmstance pursuant to 18 USC §3553{e).
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~ UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT JUN 22 193 ﬁ(ﬂle

T e . ....Northern District of Oklahoma ,
Uf-;hﬂo ll.ornbardi. Clerk
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 5. DISTRICT COUAT
V. ' Case Number 97-CR-149-001-C /
JUAN JOSE MARINES | o ENTERED ON BOCKE

Defendant. : : . e s -
'DATE é’— Z ):C/f
: JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE - :
{For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987)

The defendant, JUAN JOSE MARINES, was represented by Jack Schisier.

On motion of the United States the court has dismissed Counts 1, 3-13, 1. 5-20 of the Superseding
Indictment. '

The defendant pleaded guilty to Counts 2 & 14 of the Superseding indictment, January 9, 1998.
~Accordingly, the defendant is adjudged guilty of such counts, involving the following offenses:

Data Offense “Count
Title & Section Nature of Offense Concluded Number(s)
18 USC 1014 False Statement to a Financial Institution - 9/9/97 2
18 USC B511{al{1} Altering or Removing Motor Vehicle Identification 10/6/97 14

and 2{b) Numbers

As pronounced on June 18, 1998, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

it is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a sr.iet:iénl assessment of $ 200, for
Counts 2 & 14 of the Superseding Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Urited States SiRATSANIS T%Q‘Qav of LJ JJM _ , 1998,

Rostharn District of Oklahoma
I hereby certify that the fofeguinu

Is  fri copy of the origind en fil
In this court.

il o
By. Gl lW} _ _ The Honorable H. Dale Cook

ey L United States District Judge
~Defendant's SSN: 459-35-9746

¢ Defendant’'s Date of Birth: 10/25/71 _

Defendant’s residence and mailing address: 2499 Katy Hockley, Katy TX 74193
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£ “Defendant: JUAN JOSE MARINES
- Case Number: 97-CR-149-001-C
| IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of 8 months, 11 days. The defendant has been detained since October 6, 1997 for
his involvement in the instant offense. Based on the defendant's credit for pretrial detention toward the
service of his term, he is ordered released from federal eustody with credit for time served. The Court nates

for the record that the defendant has outstanding felony warrants from Harris Count\?, Texas, District Court
case numbers 608185, 717080, and 717081.

RETURN

| have executed this Judgment as follows:

Defendant delivered on to
at _ . with a certified copy of this Judgment.

. United States Marshal

By

Deputy Marshal
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f“oefendam- JUAN JOSE MARINES
‘Case Number: 97-CR-149-001-C

SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the deféndant shall be en supervised release for a term of five {5)
years as to Count 2, and three {3} years as to Count 14, said terms to run concurrently, each with the other.

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime;
shall not illegally possess a controlied substancs; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court (set forth below); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1. The defendant shall raport in person to the Probation Offica in the district to which the defendant is released as soon as.
- possible, but in no event, later than 72 hours of refease from the custody of the Bureau of Prisons.
2. If this judgment imposas a fina, special assessmant, costs, or restitution obligation, it shall be a condition of supervised release

that the defendant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and restitution that remain unpaid at the commencement of the
term of supervised reieasa. '

3. The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm, destructive device, or other dangerous weapon.

4. The defendant shall submit to a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person, rasidence, vehicls, offica
and/or business at a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, based upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence
of a violation of a condition of release. Failure to submit to a search may be grounds for revocation. The defendant shall not
reside at any location without having first advised other rasidents that tha premises may be subjact to searches pursuant to
this condition. Additionally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other residents that said residents
acknowladge the existence of this condition and that thaeir failure to cooperate could resuit in revocation. This
acknowledgement shall be provided to the U. §. Probation Office immediately upon taking residency.

5. The defendant shali abida by the "Special Financial Conditions" enumerated in Miscellanecus Drder Number M-128, filed with
£ % the Clerk of the Court on March 18, 1992,
6. The Court suspends the requirements for mandatery uring screening as dictated by 18 USC § 3608, but specifically retains

the probation officer's authority to administer such tests for cause as permitted by the standard conditions of supervision.
STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on supervised release pursuant to this judgment, the defendant shall not commit ancther federal, state,
or local crime. In addition:

1} The defendant shall not ieave the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officar.
2) The defandant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and
complete written report within the first five days of each month.
3) The defendant shafl answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer,
4) The defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities.
5} The defendant shall work ragutarly at a tawful occupat:on unless excused by the probation officer for schocling, training, or other
acceptable reasons.
6) The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or employment.
7}  The defandant shall refrain fram excessive use of alcohol and shall net purchase, possess, use, distribute or administer any
narcotic or other controfled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.
8) The defendant shall not frequent places where contralled substances are illagally sold, used, distributed, or administered,
9) The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any person convicted
of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer.
10} The defandant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer.
11} The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement
officer,
12} The defendant shall not enter into any agreemsnt to zct as an informer or a spacial agant of a law enforcament agsncy without
o~ the permission of the court,
£ '3) As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shali notity third parties of risks that may be necasionad by the defendant’s
©  griminal record or persanal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such notifications and to
_ confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement.
14) The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as diracted by tha U. S. Probatien Office.
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Defendant: JUAN JOSE MARINES '

£ Case Number: 97-CR-149-001-C _
. o ' RESTITUTION AND FORFEITUR
RESTITUTION ;

The defendant shall make restitution in the total amount of $22,876.43.

The defendant shall make restitution to the following persons in the following amounts:

Name of Payee Amount of Restitution
Gordon's Jewelers $3,299.94

15C Woodiand Hills Mall
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74133

JC Pennay $4056.84
Attr: Fraud Dept.

PO Box 947

Minneapolis, Minnesota 55440

Ultimate Electronics Inc. $2,042.24
Atiri: Fraud Loss Dept.

PO Box 105981

Atlanta, Georgia 30353-5981

Dillarg National Bank ' $3,430.18
Attn: Fraud Dept.
PO Box 52079

f.--\Phoenix, Arizo_ﬁa §5072-9374

Riverside Chevrolet/Chrysler Corporation $9,700
cio 707 W. 51 Street '
Tulsa, Okiahoma 74107

Eldorade Motors $1,600
Attn: Rick Beck

3200 5. Mamaorial

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74145

Zales ' ' $2,498.23
Attn: Fraud Manager

2035 W. 4th Street

Tempe, Arizona 85281

_ Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s).

Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid immediately shali be paid while
in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from
custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid as a condition of supervised release.

If a victim has received compensation fram insurance or any other source with respect to a loss, any
restitution ordered shall be paid to the person who is a victim before any restitution is paid to any such
provider of compensation.

c}m\':\ny payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise specified here.
Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate
Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from custody, any unpaid balance shail be paid as a condition
_ of supervised release,




F o

. __1!\_0_2_45 5 (Rev. 7!93}[N.D. Qk!a. _t_'ev._) S_heet 7 - statérhént of Reaso.ns. .

4

o _ _ _ ' Judgment—-Pagé 5of 5
£ Defendant: JUAN JOSE MARINES |

Case Number: 97-CR-149-001-C

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 9

Criminal History Category: I

Imprisonment Range: 8 months to 12 months Cts. 2 & 14
Supervised Release Range: 3 to 5 years Ct. 2

’ 2 to 3 years _ Ct. 14

Fine Range: 5 3,0001t0 $ 1,250,000 Cis.2 & 14
Restitution: $ 22,876.43

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
* FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA _ FI LED

| | JU N 1 7 1998
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) —
) s D?s‘?b?"d’ Clerk
Plaintiff, ) T CouRT
)
VS, ) No. 91-CR-9-E ‘/
) (97-CV-249-E)
KENNETH N. POWELL, )
)
Defendant. ) ENTERED ON DOCKET
ORDER Lare W/zL

Before the Court is the pro se Defendant Kenneth N. Powell's motion to vacate, set aside, or
correct sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255 (Docket #256).  The Plaintiff United States of

America has filed its response brief (#262), and Defendant has filed a reply to that response (#263).

 After reviewing the entire record in this case, the Court has determined that an evidentiary hearing

is not necessary and that the motion lacks merit and should be denied.
BACKGROUND
Defendant was found guilty of conspiracy to distribute marijuana in violation of 21 U.S.C. §
846 following a multi-defendant trial An earlier trial had ended in mistrial. After a sentencing
hearing, Defendant was sentenced to 292 months imprisonment to be followed by a five year term

of supervised release. Defendant appealed, arguing that:

1. The second trial violated double jeopardy
2, There was a fatal variance hetween the indictment and the proof at trial;
3. « He should not have been sentenced under the Sentencing Guidelines; and




4, The applicable amount of marijuana was computed incorrectly in applying the
Sentencing Guidelines. o o

Defendanf’s conviction and sentence were affirmed on appeal. United States v. Powell, 982.
F.2d 1422 (10® Cir. 1992). The facts of this case were recounted by the Tenth Circuit in its opinion
and are briefly summarized here. In 1986, Defendant and co-defendant Andrew J. Whitmore formed
a partnership to import large quantities of ﬁaﬁjmna from Texas to Oklahoma. The marijuana was
transported by other individuals in shipments of 300-500 pounds, and it was repackaged and sold by
Defendant, Whitmore and others in bags of 20-50 pounds to other individuals, who then resold the
marijuana in smaller quantities. |

Defendant and Whitmore ended their partnershipin 1987, but continued distributing marijuana
individually. Defendant was arrested in March 1989 and had in his possession $32,000 in cash and
a iist of names and phone numbers. In all, approximately 100 loads of marijuana were transported
frorlli Texasto Oklaﬁéma from 1986 to 1.991, when the indictnrient was .ﬁle.d which led to Defendaﬁt’s
conviction.

Defendant now has filed this motion to vacate, set aside,. or correct sentence pursuant to 28
U.S.C. § 2255, raising two grounds for r¢lief:

1. Ineffective assistance of counsel for failure.to properly argue the quantity amounts

before the sentencing court and on appeal; and

2. The court erred in adopting the Presentence Report (“PSR”™)’s qﬁantity of drugs.

The government in its response asserts that defense counsel did object at sentencing to the
quantity of drugs calculated in the PSR. Furthermore, the government adds, on appeal the Tenth

 Circuit affirmed this Court’s determination of the quantity of drugs attributable to Defendant.




Defendant filed a reply brref repeating his claim that his attomey did not properly argue that
the drug quantlty was not supported by the evidence at tnal
ANALYSIS
A. Ineffective assistance of counsel claim is without merit.
Defendant asserts that his .trial counsel erred in failing to object that the Probation Officer
double counted 30 loads of marfjuana in computing the drug quantities which were used to compute

Defendant’s base offense level under the Sentencing Guidelines.

To establish ineffective assistance of counsel a defendant must show that his counsel's

parformance was deficient and that the deficient performance was prejudicial. Strickland, 466 U7.S.

at 687 (1984); Osborn v. Shillinger, 997 F.2d 1324, 1328 (10th Cir. 1993). A defendant can establish

the first prong by showing that counsel performed below the level expected from a reasonably

'competcnt attorney in or1mma1 cases. Stnckland 466 1J.S. at 687 88. To estabhsh the second prong

a defendant must show that this deﬁcrent performance pre] judiced the defense to the extent that ‘there
is a reasonable probat)ility that, but for counsel's unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding
would have been different. A reasonable probability is a probability sufficient to undermine
confidence in the outcome." Id. at 694. See also Lockhart v. Fretwell, 506 U.S. 364, 369-70 (1993).
There is a "strong presumption that counsel’s conduct falls within the range of reasonable

professional assistance.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 688. In making this determination, a court must

“udge . . . [a] counsel's challenged conduct on the facts of the particular case, viewed as of the time

of counsel's conduct." Id., at 690. Morcover, review of counsel's performance must be highly

deferential. "[I]t is all too easy for a court, examining counsel's defense after it has proved

unsuccessful, to conclude that a particular act or omission of counsel was unreasonable.” Id. at 689.



The record reveals that at the sent_en_éing hearing Defendant’s trial counsel, Curtis Biram,

argued at great. length that the amount of drugs attributed to Defendant in the PSR was legally and

factually excessive. (Tr. of Sent. Hr'g at 19-58). Counsel also put on Defendant to testify, and
successfully argued that the two-point enhancement for posse.ssion of a weapon was not justified by
the facts. The Court accepted defense counsel’s argument with respect to the enhancement, reducing
Defendant’s sentence from 360 months to 292 months. (Tr. of Sent. Hr'g at 125). Far from being
ineffective, defense counsel was successful in reducing Defendant’s sentence with respect to this
enhancement. In view of defense counsel’s overall zealous and thorough representation of
Defendant, the Court finds that counsel acted well within the level expected from a reasonably
competent attorney in criminal cases. See Strickland, 466 US at 687-88. Counsel need not argue
every possible objection, and the Court is not persuaded that counsel’s failure in this instance to argue

the alleged “double-counting” of 30 loads constituted deficient performance.

B.  Defendant’s claim i-egarding qda'ntity of drugs has been previously adjudicated.

Defendant argues that the quantity of drugs calculated by the Probation Officer and adopted
by the Court for sentencing purposes does not have the necessary indicia of reliability and is not
supported by the testimony at trial. He again alleges that some of the loads of marijuana were
double-counted by the Probation Officer ir arriving at the total amount.

On appeal, Defendant disputed the amount of marijuana attributed to him. In affirming
Defendant’s sentence and the amount of drugs attributed to him, the Tenth Circuit refused to disturb
this Court’s adoption of the probation éf’ﬁcer’s estimation of quantity, which was based én the

average amount of marijuana distributed over two years of the conspiracy. Powell, 982 F.2d at 1435.



The Tenth Circuit referenced this Court’s comment “that the amount could have been much greater
* considering that the evidence showed the conspiracy continued for 2 total of five years.” Id.
Absent an intervening change in the law of this circuit, a defendant rriay not raise in a § 2255

motion issues that have already been adjudicated on direct appeal. United States v. Cox, 83 F.3d

336, 342 (10th Cir, 1996); United States v. Warner, 23 F.3d 287, 291 (10th Cir.1994). Defendant’s

argument that the court erred in determining the quantity of drugs attributed to him was fairly
encompassed by the ruling on direct appeal, and there has been no intervening change of law in the
circuit. Therefore, this issue may not be considered in the instant § 2255 proceeding.

CONCLUSION

Defendant’s claim of ineffective assistance of counsel is without merit. His claim that the =~

Court erred in computing the amount of drugs attributed to him is barred as already adjudicated.

ACCORDINGLY, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Defendant's motion to vacate, set

aside, or correct sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255 (docket #256) is denied.

7ol
SO ORDERED THIS #1~ dayof  Chepce 1998,

- %s O. ELLISON
ED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
)
Plaintiff, )
) /
Vs, ) Case No. 91-CR-S-E
) (97-C-249-E)
KENNETH N. POWELL, )
Sefond ; ENTERED O DOCKET
efendant. 5/
JUDGMENT

This matter came before the Court upon Defendant’s motion to vacate set aside or correct
sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255, The Court duly considered the issues and rendered a decision
herein.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AN’D DECREED that judgment is hereby

entered for Plaintiff and against Defendant.

&4
SO ORDERED THIS {7 Pay of _ < fhence , 1998
JAMES 0. ELLISON

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
)
Plaintiff, )
) J
V8. ) No. 91-CR-9-E
) (97-CV-51-E)
ANDREW J. WHITMORE, II, )
)
Defendant. ) ENTERED ON DOCKET
ORDER

Before the Court is the pro se Defendant Andrew J. Whitmore's motion to vacate, set aside,
or correct sentence pursuant to 28 U.8.C. § 2255 (Docket #253). The Plaintiff United States of

America has filed its response brief (#235), and Defendant has filed a reply to that response (#257).

 After reviewing the entire record in this case, the Court has deiermined that an evidentiary hearing

1 not necessary and that the motion lacks merit and should be denied.
BACKGROUND
Defendant was found guilty of conspiracy to distribute marijuana in violation of 21 U.S.C. §
846 following a multi-defendant trial. An earlier trial had ended in mistrial. After a sentencing
hearing, Defendant was sentenced to 360 months imprisonment to be followed by a five year term

of supervised release. Defendant appealed, arguing that:

1. The second trial viclated double jeopardy;,

2. The evidence was insufficient to convict him of conspiracy;

3. . There was a fatal variance between the indictment and the proof at trial;
4. The government’s trial tactics denied his due process;




5. He should not have been senténced under the Sentencing Guidelines; and
6. o The éﬁ;:lica;blé 'athﬁur;t of x.naﬁjuané. was computed | mcorrectly m ap.plying éhe
Senten.cing Guidelines. |
D.efE:ndant’s cénviction and sentence were affirmed on appeal. United. States V. Powe]i, 982
F.2d 1422 (10% Cir. 1992). The facts of this case were recounted by the Tenth Circuit in its opinion
and are briefly summarized here, In 1986, Defendant and co-defendant Kenneth Powell formed a
partnership to import large quantities of marijuana from Texas to Oklahoma. The marijuana was
transported by other individuals in shipments of 300-500 pounds, and it was repackaged and sold by
Defendant, Powell and others in bags of 20-50 pounds to other individuals, who then reso.d the
marijuana in smaller quantities.
Defendant and Powell ended their partnership in 1987, but continued distributing marijuana
e individually. In all, approximately 100 loads of marijuana were transported from Texas to Oklahoma
| from 1986 tb 1991, wﬁeﬁ the i.ndicm.lr.e.,;t .wa.s" ﬁ.l.ed which led to Deféndant’s coﬁvi&ioh. _ |
Defendant now has filed this motion to vacate, set aside, or correct sentence pursuant to 28
U.S8.C. § 2255, raising three grounds for relief:
1. Ineffective assistance of counsel for failure to object to improper jury instruétions;
2. The court erred in determining the quantity of drugs; and
3 The court erred in applying the two-point enhancement for possession of a firearm.
The government in its r;sponse asserts ti;at_: Defeﬁd_aét’.sﬁ.r_St clalmls ‘without merit; his
second claim was previously adjﬁdicated on appeal; and his third claim was improperly raised because

it should have been brought on appeal.




Defendant filed a reply brief repeating his claims and adding that his trial counsel was

" ineffective for failing to object to the twe'-p;oi'm '.enhaneex.ﬁeet for 'po..ssess.ion of e'ﬁreérm )
ANALYSIS

A, Ineffective assistance of .counsel claim is without merit.

Defendant asserts that his trial counsel erred in.failing te object to the jury ins.tructions which
allegedly were improper because they did include an essential element of conspiracy, the
“interdependency” of the co-conspirators.

The government responds that, although the instructions do not contain the word
“interdependency,” they do accurately describe the elemenis of a conspiracy. In addition, the
government asserts, Defendant was not prejudiced by counsel’s failure to object even if erroneous,
because the Tenth Circuit held on appeal that there was more than sufficient evidence to connect
. _Defendant to the consplracy Therefore the government concludes Defendant does not demonstrate

ineffective assistance: of counsel accordmg to the test in Stnckland v. Washin g_t,on 446 U S 668

(1984).

To establish ineffective assistance of counsel a defendant must show that his counsel's
performance was deficient and that the deficient performance was prejudicial. Strickland, 466 U.S.
at 687 (1984); Osborn v. Shillinger, 997 F.2d 1324, 1328 (10th Cir. 1993). A defendant can establish
~ the first prong by showing that counsel performed below the level expected from a reasonably
competent attorney ie criminal cases. Strickland, 466U.S. at 687-88. To establish the second prong,
a defendant must show that this deficient performance prejudiced the defense, to the extent that "there
is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding

would have been different. A reasonable probability is a probability sufficient to undermine



confidence mthe outcome "Id at 694. See also I.,ockharfv Fretwell 506 U.S. 364, 369 70(1993).

There isa strong presumptlon that counsel’s conduct falls within the range of reasonable

professional assistance." Strickland, 466 U.S. at 688, In making this determination, a court must

“Judge . . . [a] counsel's challenged conduct on the facts of the particular case, viewed as of the time
of counsel's conduct." Id., at 690. Moreover, review of counsel's performance must be highly

deferential. "[I}t is all too easy for a court, examining counsel's defense after it has proved

unsuccessful, to conclude that a particular act or omission of counsel was unreasonable.” Id, at 689

The Court’s review of the jury instructions with respect to the defimtion of a conspiracy
reveals that they accurately staie the essential elements of a conspiracy. Further, it is clear that

Defendant was not prejudiced by counsel’s failure, if error, to object to the jury instructions, as the

Tenth Circuit found on appeal that “[t]ke evidence is more than sufficient to connect Mr. Whitmore

to the consplracy 7 Powell 982 F.2d at 1430. Thus, Defendant has not established that the alleged

error by tnal counsel prejudlced hxro -ond ]:11‘.;(3].31[1'1 of 1neffect1ve as.51stance.of counsel must fall
B.  Defendant’s claim regarding quantity of drugs has been previously adjudicated.
Defendant argues that the quantity of drugs oalculatod by the Probation Officer and adopted
by the Court for sentencing purposes does not have the necessary indicta of reliability and is not
supported by the testimony at trial.
On appeal, Defendant disputed the amount of marijuana attributed to him. In affirming
Defendant’s sentence and the amount of dnigs attributed to him, the Tenth Circuit refused to disturb

this Court’s adoption of the probation officer’s estimation of quantity, which was based on the

average amount of marijuana distributed over two years of the conspiracy. Powell, 982 F.2d at 1435.



The Tenth Circuit referenced this Court's comment “that the amount could have been much greater

" considering that the evidence showed the conspiré.by continued for a total of five years.” &

Absent an intervening chzinge in the law of this ci_rcui't, a defendant may not raise in a § 2255
motion issues that have already been adjudicated on direct appeal. United States v. Cox, 83 F.3d
336, 342 (10th Cir. 1996); United States v. Warner, 23 ¥.3d 287, 291 (10th Cir. 1?94)‘ De_fendan_t’s
argument that the court erred in determining the quantity of drugs atiributed to him was fairly
ehcompassed by the ruling on direct appeal, and there has been no intervening change of law inthe
circuit. Therefore, this issue may not be considered in the instant § 2255 proceeding.

C. Claim of improper enhancement due to possession of a firearm is procedurally barred.

Defendant asserts that the evidence does not support the enhancement for possession of a
firearm. The government states that no objection was made to the PSR recommending this
adjustment, and that this claim should have been raised on appeal. Defendant asserts that his counsel
wﬁs ineffective for failing to appeal this issue. . |

While the record does not réﬂect_ that defense counsel filed written objections to the PSR, he
did object to the firearm enhancement at the sentencing hearing held October 29, 1991. (Tr. of Sent.
Hr'g at 12-13). The Court specifically found that the testimony from more than one witness
supported Defendant’s use of a gun in connection with a crime. (Tr. of Sent. Hr'g at 126).
Defendant’s appellate counsel did not raise this issue on appeal, however.

It is well settled that "[s]ection 2255 motions are not available to test the legality of matters

which should have been raised on direct appeal.” United States v. Warner, 23 F.3d 287, 291 (10th

Cir. 1994) {citation omitted). Consequently, a defendant may not assert issues which were not raised .

in his direct appeal unless he establishes cause for his default and prejudice resulting therefrom, or




can show that a fundamental rmscamage of Justme will occur if his claims are not addressed. United

' States v. Cook, 45 F.3d 388 392 ( 10th Clr 1995). The procedural default rules developed in the
context of habeas corpus cases apply with equal force in § 2255 cases. United States v. Frady, 456
U.S. 152, 166-69 n. 15 (1982).

The "cause” standard requires a defendant to show that some objective factor external to the

defense impeded his ability to raise an issue on direct appeal. See Murray v. Carrier, 477 U.S8. 478,

488 (1986). Examples of such external factors include the discovery of new evidence or a change
in the law. Id. Ineﬂ‘ecﬁee assistance of counsel is another example of an extereal factor that may
constitute "cause" excusing a precedural default. | Cook, 45 F.3d at .392, As foe prejudice; a
defendant must show "‘actual prejudice’ resuiting from the errors of which he complains.” Frady,
456 U.S. at 168 (1982). The "ﬁndmentﬂ miscarriage of jusﬁce" exception requires a eetitioner to |
demonstrate that he is "actually innecent“ of the crime of which he was convicted. McCleskey v.
Zant, 499 U.S. 467, 494 (1991).

Defendant claims that his failure to raise these issues on direct appeal resulted from ineffective
assistance of counsel. Asnoted before, to eetablish ineffective assistance of counsel a defendant must
show that his counse!'s performance was deficient and that the deficient performance was prejudicial.

Strickland v. Waghington, 466 U.S. 668, 687 (1984). Although the Strickland test was formulated

in the context of evaluating a claim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel, the same test is applied

in assessing the ineffectiveness of appellate counsel. Cook, 45 F.3d at 392.
In this instance, appellate counsel’s failure to appeal the firearms enhancement issue, even if

error, did not prejudice Defendant because the record reflects ample uncontradicted testimony as to



Defendant’s possession of a gun on numerous occasions in connection with his drug business by

- Linda Hubanks and Linda England, witnesses whom the Court found credible on tais point.

The only other avenue by which Defendant can have this claim reviewed is.by showing that
a "fundamental miscarriage of justice" will result if the procedural bar is invoked. This exception
applies "where a constitutional violation has probably resulted in the conviction of one who is actually
innocent,” Murray v. Carrier, 477 U.S. 478, 496 (1986). Here, Defendant does not allege'that he
is actually innocent of the crime of which he was convicted.

Accordingly, because Defendant has not shown cause for his failure to raise this issue on
direct appeal or prejudice resulting therefrom, or that a miscarriage of justice would result if this issue
is not reached on its merits, the Court is procedurally barred from reaching this claim.

CONCLUSION

Defendant’s claim of ineffective assistance of counsel is _without merit. His claim that the
Co..urt erred in domputing thé mﬁoﬁﬁt ;ﬁf drugs attri.buteczl té him 15 bérred as alreadf adjudicated.
Defendant’s remaining claim regarding the enhancement for possession of a firearm is procedurally
barred.

ACCORDINGLY, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Defendant's motion to vaéaté, set
aside, or correct sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255 (docket #253) is denied.

SO ORDERED THIS /7 ﬂglay of gawoL , 1998,

J. S O. ELLISON
D STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) JUN'17 1998
) Phil L, ardi
Plaintiff, ) U, DRk Sterk
) .
Vs, ) Case No. 91-CR-9-E
| ) (97-C-51-E)
ANDREW J. WHITMORE, I, )
Defendant. ; ENTERED ON DOCKET
DATE _é.:/?’_f_{’__
JUDGMENT ' '

This matter came before the Court upon Defendant's motion to vacate set aside or correct
sentence pursuant t0 28 U.S.C. §2255. The Court duly considered the issues and rendered a decision

herein.

. IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that judgment is hereby -

entered for Plaintiff and against Defendant.

' _ /44
SO ORDERED THIS /7~ day of % e . 1998,
JAXTES O. ELLISON
TED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
)
Plaintiff, )
)
Vs, ) No. 91-CR-9.E
) (96-CV-982—E)/
MELVIN L. GANN, )
)
Defendant. ) “NTERED ON DOCKL
owie Lo P58
ORDER

Before the Court is Defendant Melvin L. Gann's motion to vacate, set aside, or correct
sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255 (Do_clget ##248 and 250). The Plaintiff United States of
N : Ajneljca has filed its response brief (#25 1). Ajéter reviewing the entife récord in this case, the Court
| has determined that an evidentiary hearing is not necessary and that the motion lacks merit and should
be denied.
BACKGROUND
Defendant was found guilty of conspiracy to distribute marijuana in violation of 21 U.S.C. §
846 following.a multi-defendant trial. An earlier trial had ended in mistrial. After a sentencing
hearing, Defendant was sentenced to 188 months imprisonment, a five year term of supervised

release, and fined $15,000. Defendant appealed, arguing that:

1. The second trial violated _doubie jeopardy,

2. The evidence was insufficient to convict him of conspiracy;

3 | There was a fatal variance between the indictment and the proof at tral;
t"ﬁ - ' o 4. | The district cdurt shquld__have granted a severance;




5. | The govemmt’s tna.l ’t:’:i_c":tiés demed his due prOCess; and
6. The applicable amount of marijusha was computed incorrectly in applying the
Sentencing Guidelines.
Defendant’s conviction and sentence were affirmed on appeal. United States v Powell, 982
F.2d 1422 (1"0th Cir. 1992). The facts of this case were recouﬁtcd by the Tenth Circuit in its opinion
and are briefly summarized here. In 1 986, co-defendants Andrew J. Whitmore and Kenneth Powell
formed a partnership to import large quantities of marfjuana from Texas to Oklahoma. The marijuana
was transported by other individuals in shipments of 300-500 pounds, and it was repackaged and sold
by Whitmore, Powell and others in bags of 20-50 pounds to Defendant and others, who then resold
the marijuana in smaller quantities.
Whitmore and Powell ended their partnership in 1987, but continued distributing marijuana
| in_d;viduglly,_ _Def_‘endant continued to buy from bot_h W}ﬁ_tmore_ and Powell, Inali, approximately 100
loads of marijuana were transported from Texas to Oklahoma from 1986 to 1991, wheﬁ thé
indictment was filed which led to Defendant’s conviction.
Defendant, represénted by counsel, now has filed this motion to vacate, set aside, or correct
sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255, raising these grounds for relief’
1. The court erred in determining the amount of drugs attributable to Defendant, because
“relevant conduct” for sentencing purposes shﬁuld be calculated only from the time
Defendant joined the conspiracy,
2. The court failed to make individualized findings cénoerning the scope of Defendant’s

criminal activity;




3. The court failed tomake__speciﬁc factual fihdi'r’igs regarding controverted findings of

" the Presentence Report (“PSR™); in violation of Rulé 32, Fed. R. Crim P, =

4. The court improperly shifted the burden of proof to the Defendant to rebut findings
of the PSR; and
5. The court denied Defendant the right of allocution at sentencing, in violation of Rule

32(c), Fed. R. Crim. P.

The government in its response asserts that Defendant’s first claim as to the amount of drugs
attributable to Defendant was adjudicated previously on appeal and so is barred. The government
contends that Defendant’s remaining claims are procedurally barred because they were not raised on
direct appeal and Defendant has not shown “cause and prejudice” for such failure,

Defendant did not file a reply brief addressing the issue of his alleged procedural default.

However, in his motion Defendant states that “{n]one of these grounds were previously presented

either due to ineffective assistancerof counsel and/or amendments to the sentencing guidélines which
created new law that is to be ret_roak:tivély applied.” (#250 at 8).
ANALYSIS
A. Defendant’s claim regarding quantity of drugs has been previously adjudicated.
Defendant argues that “relevant conduct” for purposes of computing the quantity of drugs
attributed té Defendant must bg calculated only prospectively from the time Defendant joined the
conspiracy, in late 1988, Defendant supports this position primarily by reliance on United States v.

Carreon, 11 F.3d 1225 (5™ Cir. 1994).

On appeal, Defendant disputed the amount of marijuana attributed to him, contending that

his sentence was based on a greater amount of drugs than was reasonably foreseeable. At sentencing

3




_ andonappeal, Defendant had argued that the consptracy he was comncted of bexng 1nv01ved in ended

in 1987 when Powell “withdrew” ﬁ‘om the consplracy, therefore Defendant claimed that he should o

not be attributed any of the drugs involved after 1987. In affirming Defendant’s sentence and the
amount of drugs attributed to him, the Tenth Circuit first noted that a defendant is accountable for
the quantity of drugs within the scope of the conspiracy and reasonably foreseeable, and refused to
disturb this court’s adoption of the probation officer’s estimation of quantity, which was based on the
average amount of marijuana distributed over two years of the conspiracy. Powell, 982 F 2d at 1435.

Absent an intervening change in the law of this circuit, a defendant may not raise in a § 2255

motion issues that have already been adjudicated on direct appeal. United States v. Cox, 83 ¥ 3d

336, 342 (10th Cir. 1996); United States v. Warner, 23 F.3d 287, 291 (10th Cir.1994). Defendant’s

argument that the court erred in determining the quantity of drugs attributed to him was fairly

- encompassed by the ruling on direct appeal and there has been no intervening change of law in the

circuit. Therefore, this issue may not be considered irt the instant § 2235 proceeding.
B. Defendant’s remaining four claims are procedurally barred. |

Defendant raises his remaining claims for the first time m this § 2255 motion. Itis well settled
that "[slection 2255 motions are rtot available to test the 1'egality of matters which should have been

raised on direct appeal.” United States v. Warner, 23 F.3d 287, 291 (10th Cir, 1994) (citation

omitted). Consequently, a defendant may not assert issues which were not raised in his d_irect appeal
unless be establishes cause for his default and prejudice resulting therefrom, or can show that a
fundamental miscarriage of justice will occur if his claims are not addressed. United States v. Cook,

45 F.3d 388, 392 (10th Cir.1995). The procedural default rules developed in the context of habeas




corpus cases apply with equal force 1n§ 335% casés. United States v. Frady, 456 U.S. 152, 166-69

“n. 15 (1982).

The "cause" standard requires a defendant to show that some objective factor external to the

defense impeded his ability to raise an issue on direct appeal. See Murray v. Carrier, 477 U.S. 478,

488 (1986). Examples of such external factors include the discovery of new evidence or a change

in the law. Id. Ineffective assistance of counsel is another example of an external factor that may

constitute "cause‘; excusing a procedural default. Cook, 45 F.3d at 392. As for prejudic'e, a
defendant must show "“actual prejudice’ resulting from the errors of which he complains.” Frady,
456 U.S. at 168 (1982). The "fundamental miscarriage of justice” exceptidn requires a petitioner to
demonstrate that he is "actually innocent" of the crime of which he was convicted. McCleskey v.
Zant, 499 U.S. 467, 494 (1991).

Defendant olaims generally that his failure to raise these issues on direct appeal resulted from
ineffective assistance of counsel. Although Defendant does not explain his alternate contention that
retroactive amendments to the sentencing guidelines excuses any default, this ground seems to relate
solely to his claim concerning drug quantities which the Court has determined to be barred as already
adjudicated.

To establish ineffective assistance of counsel a defendant must show that his counsel's

- performance was deficient and that the deficient performance was prejudicial. Strickland v.

Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 687 (1984). Although the Strickland test was formulated in the context

of evaluating a claim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel, the same test is applied in assessing

the ineffectiveness of appellate counsel. Cook, 45 F.3d at 392.




Because the procedural bar is iiripbs’ed due to Defendant’s failure to raise his claims on direct

 appeal, the Court must examine the merits of the issues omitted upon appeal. Id. If the omitted

issues are without menit, counsel's failure to raise them does not amount to constitutionally ineffective
assistance of counsel. Id. at 393.

A Failure to make individuclized findings concerning the scope of Defendant’s

criminal activity, in violation of Rule 32(c), Fed. R. Cvim. P

Defendant contends that the Court did not make specific findings as to the amount of drugs

attributable to each defendant before sentencing them, Instead, Defendant claims, the Court merely

applied to each defesdant the 11,000 kilograms of marijuana quantity calculated by the Probation

Office in the several defendants’ Presentence Reports (“PSR”s). However, the record demonstrates

that the Court did implicitly find that this amount of drugs was attributable to Defendant when it

- rejected Defendant’s objection that the conspiracy had ended in 1987. (Tr. of Sent. Hr'g at 122).

Further, any failure to make individualized findings zis.to the scope of .Defendant’s criminal
activity is harmless error at best, because the Tenth Circuit expressly determined that the evidence
was sufficient to convict Defendant of conspiracy, stating that: “[w]e consider Mr. Gann to have been
a ‘major buyer,” and he is ‘joined together’ with the other conspirators by his knowledge of the
essential features and broad scope of the conspiracy and by joining in the common goal.” Powell, 82
F.2d 1422, 1431. Also, as previously discussed, the appellate court affirmed this Court’s calculation
of the quantity of drugs attributable to Defendant. Id. at 1435.

Accordingly, this claim is without merit, and Defendant’s appellate counsel did not provide

ineffective assistance in failing to raise it on appeal.




The only other avenue by which Defendant can have this claim reviewed is by showing that
a "fundamental miscarriage of justice” will result if the procedural bar is invoked. This exception

applies “in an extraordinary case, where a constitutional violation has probably resulted in the

conviction of one who is actually innocent.” Murray v. Carrier, 477 U.S. at 496 (1986). Defendaﬁt
does not claim that he is actually innocent of the Chargé of which he was convicted. Therefore, this
claim is procedurally barred.

2. Failure to make specific factual findings regarding controverted findings of the PSR,

in violation of Rule 32, Fed. R. Crim P.

Prior to sentencing, Defendant filed objections to the factual allegations contained in the PSR.
Defendant’s objections mainly centered on his contention that the conspiracy of which he was
convicted ended béfore November 1, 1987, the effective date of the sentencing guidelines; therefore,
Defendant asserted that he should be sentenced under pre-gui_delineﬁ law. Defendant also objected
to the quantity of drugs “feasonably foreseeablle” and thus aﬁributﬁt;le to Defendant_ for ﬁeﬁtencing
purposes. (#164). At the sentencing hearing, defense coungel érgued these issues at length. (Tr.
of Sent. Hr’g at 81-92). Defendant now contends that the Court did not make any specific _ﬁhdings _
with respect to Defendant’s objections to the PSR, in violation of Rule 32.

However, the record reveals thﬁt the Court did make specific factual findings regarding the
controverted allegations of the PSR. The Court specifically found that although the Whitmore-
Powel.l partnership dissolved in Spring 1987, the conspiracy continued through early 1991, thus the
sentencing guidelines were applicable. (Tr. of Sent. Hr’g at 122- 123)‘ The Court also found that the
11,000 figure (kilograms of marijuana) was applicable to all défendants except James Bradley. (Tr.

of Sent. Hr’g at 123). Thus, the Court specifically made findings regarding the objections raised by




Defendant to the PSR, and this claim is without merit. Deféndaﬁf"s appellate counsel did not errin.~

féiling o raise it on appeal, and 1t is prdbédﬁraﬂy bai‘-réd.

3. Improper shifting of the burden of proof to Defendant to rebut findings of the PSR

Defendant claims that the Court impermissibly placed the burden on him at the sentencing
hearing to disproxlre the factual allegations in the PSR, Défendan‘i contends that the following
statement made by the Court during the hearing demonstrates that the burden of proof was put on
Defendant: |

I'm saying when I address credibility, the credibility of a witness who
takes the witness stand in front of a jury and gives testimony subject
to cross-examination, obviously has more velue to a court or to a
probation officer than a convicted defendant coming forward trving to
get out from under the guidelines —

(Tr. of Sent. Hr’g at 48).

At the time it made this statement, the Court was engaged in discussion with defense counsel
for co-defendant Powell about the relative value of Powell’s testifying at the sentencing hearing about
his drug activities and whether or not he carried a gun in relation with those activities. (Powell did
subsequently testify at the hearing). This discussion pertained tﬁ the enhancements recommended
with respect to Powell’s sentence, and the Court’s statement quoted above has no relevance to
]jefcndant’s sentencing or burden or proof.

With respect to sentence enhancements and reductions, it is well-settled in this circuit that the

government bears the burden of proof for sentence increases and the defendant bears the burden of

proof for sentence decreases. United States v, Yarnell, 129F.3d 1127 (10™ Cir. 1997); Umted States




v. Rice, 52 F.3d 843, 848 (10" Cir. 1995); Utiited States v Kirk, 894 F.2d 1162, 1164 (10* Cir.
1990). However, the PSR in Defendant’s casé did not récomend a.ny ﬁpward or downward
enhancements, and Defendant did not claim he was entitled. to any decreases. Instead, defense
counsel’s objections to the PSR centered around the quantity of drugs atti-ibuted to Defendant and
the applicability of the sentencing guidelines to Defendant’s case in the first instance. (#164; Tr. of
Sent. Hr’g at 81-92).

| Defendant’s argument that the Eurden of proof was | impermissibly moved to him is
unpersuasive, and the Court accordingly concludes that appellate counsel did not err in failing to raise
this issue on appeal. Thus, Defendant has failed to show “cause and prejudice” sufficient to
overcome the procedural bar with respect to this 1ssue.

4. Denial of the right of allocution at sentencing, in violation of Rule 32(c), Fed. R.

Crim. P.

* Defendant requests resentencing because “[a] reading of the Sentencing Transcript shows that
there was no determination that the Defendant wanted to speak nor was any opportunity given for
him to speak.” (#248 at 29).

At the sentencing proceedings fof Defgndant and four of his co—defendants, counsel for each
defendant presented objections to the PSRs. The Court then made its factual findings and sentenced
each defendant in tum. Defendant was the fourth to be .s;‘;;wnced, and Defendant’s attorney, Larry
Oliver, made several comments on Defendant’s behalf at this time.  Although the record does not
reflect that the Court addressed Defendant by name, on two occasions during Defendant’s sentencing

the Court did ask, “Anything further?” (Tr. of Sent. Hr’g at 133-134). During the colloquy between



the Court and the other defendants durmg their separate sentencmgs the other defendants either saxd

| “No » when asked by the Court if they had anythmg to say or else made a bnef comment

Rule 32(a)(1)(C), F eder_'a! Rules of Criminal Procedure (1991)," provided in relevant part:
Before imposing sentence, the court shall also—
(C) address the defendant personally and determinie if the defendant
wishes to make a statement and to present any information in
mitigation .of the sentence.
In this instance, Defendant was not addressed by name, although he was addressed by the
Court generally together with his attorney. Defendant was present in court during the sentencing of
the preceding three co-defendants, who were personally asked if they wished to add anything, so it

is not unreasonable to infer that Defendant was aware of hls rlght to speak out if he had anything to

. say. Defendant does not claJm that he was demed an opportumty to speak, nor does he aHege that

he wanted to say anything in mitigation or that he would have made any statement whatsoever if

personally addressed by the Court. Defendant has failed to allege that he was prejudiced in any way

by the Court’s failure to personally address him and determine if he wished to make a statement.

Instead, Defendant claims that the technical violation of Rule 32(a) in itself requires resentencing.
However, even assuming a formal violation of Rule 32(a)(1)(C), Defendant would not be
entitled to relief pursuant to § 2255, The Supreme Court has addressed this very issue and held that |
“[t]he failure of a trial court to ask a defendant represented by an attorney' whether he has anything'
to say before sentence is imposed is not of itself an error of the character or magnitude cognizable

under a writ of habeas corpus. It is an error which is neither jurisdictional nor constitutional. It is

'Effective December 1, 1994, this provision was moved to Fed. R. Crim. P. 32(c)(3)XC).

.10.



~ nota fundamental defect which inherently results in a complete miscarriage of justice, nor an omission

inconsistent with the rudimentary demands of fair procedure. Tt does not present ‘exceptional

circumstances where the need for the remedy afforded by the writ of habeas corpus is apparent.™
Hill v_United States, 368 U.S. 424, 428 (1962) (citation omitted); Byrd v. United States, 129 F3d
1127, 1136 (10" Cir. 1965),

Accordingly, the Court concludes that any technical violation of Rule 32(a)’s allocution
provision was harmless error which did not prejudice Defendant, and Defendant’s appellate counsel
therefore did not err in failing to raise this issue on direct appeal. Thus, Defendant has failed to show
cause sufficient to overcome the procedural bar with respect to this iscue.

CONCLUSION

Defendant’s claim that the Court erred in computing the amount of drugs attributed to him

is barred as already adjudicated. Defendant’s remaining claims are procedurally barred.

ACCORDINGLY, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Defendant's motion to vacate, set

aside, or correct sentence pursuant to 28 U.8.C. § 2255 {docket ##248 and 250) is denied.
SO ORDERED THIS / 7 Phay of %ML 1998,

JiééS O. ELLISON

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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IN THE UNITED STATES BISTRICTCOURT " F I L E D
' _FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA = = =~ = =7 G{
JUN 17 1998

}E’J‘ i Lombardi, Clerk

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 5. DRTRET bt

Plaintiff,

vs. Case No. 91-CR-9-E /

(96-C-982-E)
MELVIN L. GANN,

Defendant.

i i T T

ENTERED ON pe,
sooevent  DATE L/ 97

This matter came before the Court upon Defendant's motion to vacate set aside or correct
sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255. The Court duly considered the issues and rende_red a
decision herein.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that judgment is

hereby entered for Plaintiff and against Defendant.

A
SO ORDERED THIS /7 = day of 4%1/»‘4. , 1998,

J S O. ELLISON
D STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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N | IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA
- ENTERED O DOCKET
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

)
) DATE é"/ 7- ?ao
Plaintiff, ) _
) /
-V§- ) No. 97-CR-§8‘3-%
}
KENT GARR ) L E y
GARRISON, ) J
| ] UN 18 1993 Cf
Defendant. ) il Lo
US. DISTRIGY oork.

ORDER

Now on this _Zf_fdg; of 1@_, 1998, this cause comes on to be heard in the matte;'

of the plaintiff's Motion for Leave to Dismiss, without prejudice, the Supgrseding Iﬁdictment‘ and

| thé Information filed agamst defendant Kent Gamson mthe .'abo.v'e styled cause. !T;he. .Cvﬁﬁrt' finds
that said request ought to be granted and the Superseding Indictment and the Information filed

against defendant Kent Garrison is dismissed, without prejudice

SVEN ERIK HOLMES
United States District Judge

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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AQ 245 S (Rev. 7/93}N.D. Ckla. rev.) Sheet 1 - Judgment in 2 Criminal Casa é /B"l?g
inal Case ATE
£ . UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT |
Northern District of Oklahoma FILED
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA | N 18 1958
V. ' Case Number 97-CR-127-002-K pp Lombardi. Clerk

U.8. DISTRICT COURT

EVEN SANTANA-CORRAL
Defendant,

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
{For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987)
The defendant, EVEN SANTANA-CORRAL, was represented by ROBERT G. BOREN.

The defendant pleaded guiity on March 12, 1998, to Count One of the Indictment.
Accordingly, the defendant is adjudged guilty of such count, involving the following offense(s):

Data QOffense Count
Title & Saction Nature of Offense Concluded Number(s}
21 USC 846 | | 01/28/97 One

é‘"‘“ USC 841(b)(1)(B){vii)
CONSPIRACY TO POSSESS A CONTROLLED

DANGERQUS SUBSTANCE WITH INTENT TO
DISTRIBUTE '

As pronounced on June 11, 1998, the defsndant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984,

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 100, for
count(s). Count One of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

Itis further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special

assessments imposed by this Judgment fully paid.
Signed this the / day of QA"* , 1998.
/4

C,

The Honorab 'i'erry'C.Xern, Chief
United Statds District Judge

f—x:fendan't s SSN: NONE
Defendant’s Date of Birth: CALLE TERAN #119 SUR, CIUDAD MIER, TAMAULIPAS MEXICO
Defendant’s mailing address: TULSA COUNTY JAIL, TULSA, OKLAHOMA
Defendant’s residence address: TULSA COUNTY JAIL

afr—
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" _efendant: EVEN SANTANA-CORRAL
Case Number: 97-CR-127-002-K

Judgment--Page 2 of 5

IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby committed ta the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of 60 months.

The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: The Court recommends
that the defendant be placed at a facility that can provide comprehensive substance abuse treatment during
service of this sentence. The Court recommends that the defendant be designated to FCI Three Rivers,
Texas. '

The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal.

I have eﬁ:ecuted this Judgment as follows:
Defendant defivered on to _ _
at ' . with a certified copy of this Judgment.
United States Marshal
By

Deputy Marshal
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#efendant: EVEN SANTANA-CORRAL
~ase Number: 97-CR-127-002-K
SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of four (4)
years,

While on supervigsed release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime;
shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard cond:tlons that have been
adopted by this court (set forth below); and shall comply with the followmg ‘additional conditions:

1. The defendant shall report in person to the Probation Qffice in the district to which the defendant is
released as soon as possible, but in no event, later than 72 hours of release from the custody of the Bureau
of Prisons.

2. If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs, or restitution obligation, it shall be a
condition of supervised release that the defendant pay any such fine, assessments, ¢osts, and restitution
that remain unpaid at the commencement of the term of supervised release.

3. The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm, destructive device, or other dangerous weapon.
4, Upen completion of the term of imprisonment, the defendant is to be surrendered to a duly-authorized
immigration official for deportation in accerdance with the established procedures provided by the
Immigration and Naturalization Act, 8 U.S.C. §§ 1101 - 1524, Itis further a condition of supervised release,
if ordered deported, that the defendant shall remain outside the United States until termination of the term
of supervised release,

5. The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of testmg and treatment {to mc[ude
inpatient) for drug and alcohol abuse, as directed by the Probation Officer, until such time as released from
the program by the Probation Officer.

The defendant shall submit to a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person,

sidence, vehicle, office and/or business at a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, based upon
reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence of a violation of a condition of release. Failure to submit
to a search may be grounds for revocation. The defendant shall not reside at any location without having
first advised other residents that the premises may be subject to searches pursuant to this condition.
Additionally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other residents that said residents
acknowledge the existence of this condition and that their failure to cooperate could resuit in revocation.
This acknowledgement shall be provided to the U. 8. Probation Office |mmedlately upon taklng residency.

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on stpervised release pursuant to this judgment, the defendant shall nat commit another federsl, state,

or local crime. [n addition: _

1)  The defendant shall not teave the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer.

2) The defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and
complete written rapart within the first five days of each month.

3} Tha defandant shall answer truthfully alf inquities by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.

4}  The defendant shall support his or her dependents and maet other family respons:b:lmas

5] The dafendant shall work regulerly at a lawful oceupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other
acceptable reasons.

6) The dafendant shall notify the probation officer within saventy-two hours of any change in residence or employment.

71  The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shail not purchase, possess, usse, distribute or administer any
narcotic or other controfled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as prescrlbed by a physician.

8) The dafendant shail not frequent placas where controfled substances are illagally sold, used, distributed, or administered.

9} The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not assoclate with any person convicted
of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer,

10) The defendant shall permit a prabation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband chservad in plain view by the prcbatmn officer.

11} The defendant shall notify the probation officer Within séventy-two hours of being arrasted or questmned by a Jaw enforcement

officer,
)} The defendant shall not enter inte any agreement to act as an informer or a specml agant of a law enforcement agancy withaut
the permission of the court. _
13} As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be oceasioned by the defendant’s
- criminal record or personal history or charactaristics, and shall permit the probation cofficer to make such nofifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement,
14} The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directad by the U. S. Probation Office.
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f sfendant: EVEN SANTANA-CORRAL ’ |
Case Number: 97-CR-127-002-K

FINE

The Court has determined that the defendant does not have the ability to pay interest, and it is
accordingly ordered that the interest requirement is waived.

The defendant shall pay a fine of $ 10,000. This fine shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount
not paid immediately shall be paid while in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial

Responsibility Program. Upon release from custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid during the term of
supervised release.

If the fine is not paid, the court may sentence the defendant to any sentence which might have been
ariginally imposed. See 18 U.8.C. § 3614,

2N
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*  fendant: EVEN SANTANA-CORRAL

Case Number; 97-CR-127-002-K

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: - 25

Criminal History Category: f

Imprisonment Range: 60 months to 71 months Count One
Supervised Release Range: 4 to © years ~Count One
Fine Range: $ 10,000 to $ 2,000,000 - Count One
Restitution: $é nfa

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  ENTERED ON DOCKET

Y . orthern District of Oklahoma — -
oate =1 8-9%
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ' o - '
v, _ Case Number 37-CR-181-02-K
‘ ILED
CHRISTOPHER J. WIELAND | JUN 18 1098
Defendant.

_ N o Fhil Lcmbafgitgé%f
| JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE U.S. DISTRIC
{(Far Offensas Committed On or After November 1, 1987) ' '

‘The defendant, CHRISTOPHER J. WIELAND, was represented by KURT GLASSCO.

The defendant pleaded guilty ON MARCH 11, 1998, to Count One of the Indictment.
Accordingly, the defendant is adjudged guilty of such count, involving the following offense(s):

_ Date Offense Count
Title & Section Nature of QOffense Concluded Number(s)
18 USC 371 Conspiracy to Qbstruct Correspondence and
Steal Mail Matter 06/13/97 1

- " As'pronounced on June 11, 1998, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 100, for
Count One of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special

assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the Z E day of
Terry C. Kern. Chief

United Statés District Judge

., 1988.

~Defendant’s SSN: 441-82-6181
£ Nefendant’s Date of Birth: 11-10-66

Defendant’s mailing address: 1427 S. 122ND EAST AVE, TULSA, OK 74128
Defendant’s residence address: TULSA COUNTY JAIL, TULSA, OKLAHOMA

/G
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¢ efendant: CHRISTOPHER J. WIELAND
<ase Number: 97-CR-181-02-K
IMPRISONMENT
The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Buréau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of nine {8} months, as te Count 1, said term to run consecutively to the sentence
imposed in Tulsa County Case # CF97-4587, '

The defendant is remanded to the custotly of the United States Marshal.

RETURN

| have executed this Judgment as follows:

Defendant delivered on to _ _ .
at , with a certified copy of this Judgment.

“United States Marshal

By

Deputy Marshal
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Defendant: CHRISTOPHER J. WIELAND

£ ase Number: 97-CR-181-02-K
- ' ' SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of thirty-six
{36) months.

While on supervised reiease, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime;
shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court {set forth below): and shall comply with the foilowing additional conditions:

1. The defendant shall report in person to the Probation Office in the district to which the defendant is
releasad as soon as possible, but in no event, {ater than 72 hours of release from the custody of the Bureau
of Prisons. '
2, If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs, or restitution obligation, it shall be a
condition of supervised release that the defendant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and restitution
that remain unpaid at the commencement of the term of supervised release.
3. The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm, destructive device, or other dangerous weapon.
4, The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of testing and treatment (to include
inpatient) for drug and alcohol abuse, as directed by the Probation Officer, until such time as released from
the program by the Probation Officer. ' '
5. The defendant shall submit to a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person,
residence, vehicle, office and/or business at a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, based upon
reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence of a viclation of a condition of release. Failure to submit
to a search may be grounds for revocation. The defendant shall not reside at any iocation without having
first advised other residents that the premises may be subject to searches pursuant to this condition.
s—Additionally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other residents that said residents
‘cknowledge the existence of this condition and that their failure to cooperate could result in revocation,
‘This acknowledgement shall be provided to the U. S. Probation Office |mmed:ate[y upon ‘taking residency.
6. The defendant shall abide by the "Special Financial Conditions™ enumerated in Miscellaneous Order
Number M-128, filed with the Clerk of the Court on March 18, 1992,

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on supervised release pursuant to thns judgment, the deféndant shall not commit ancther federal, state,
or local crima. In addition:

1} The defendant shafl not leave the judicial district without thé permission of the court or probation officer.

2) The defendant shall report 1o the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and
complste written report within the first fiva days of each month. '

3} The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probatian cfficer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.

4} The defendant shall support his or her dapandants and meet other family responsubuintnes

5} The defendarit shall work regularly at a lawful oceupation unless excused by the probat:on officer for schoaling, training, or other
acceptable reasons.

6) The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any ‘changs in residence or employmsnt

7)  The defandant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribtite or administer any
narcotic or other controlled subistance, or any paraphernalia refated to such substances, ex¢ept as prascrabed by a physician.

8] The defendant shall not frequent places where controllad substances are iflegally sold, used, distributed, or administered.

3)  The defendant shall not associata with any persens engaged in eriminal activity, and sha!l not associate with any person convicted
of a felony unless granted permission 1o do so by the probation officer.

10} The defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsawhers and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer,

11} The defendant shalf notify tha probation officer within seventy-twa hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement
officer.

21 The defendant shall not enter into any agreement to ac} as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without
¥ the penmission of the court,

13} As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be oceasioned by the defendant’s
sriminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such notifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compliance with such netification requirement.

14} The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the U. S. Probation Office.’
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g’_""efendant: CHRISTOPHER J. WIELAND

—ase Number: 97-CR-181-02-K
RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE
- RESTITUTION

The defendant shall make restitution in the total amount of $4,646.56.

The defendant shall make restitution to the following persons in the following amounts:

Name of Payee Amount of Restitution

Wal Mart

7777 East 42nd Place, South

Tuisa, Okiahoma 74145

Attention: Cash Office $ 50.66

Service Merchandise
8218 East 68th Street
~Tulsa, Oklahoma 74133

ttention: Floyd Margason | $ 310.77

Circuit City
9954 Mayland Drive _
Richmond, Virginia 23233 $ 442.44

Bowdens
101 North Wilson
Sand Springs, Oklahoma 74063 $ 17.60

Git-n-Go through
MasterCheck

P.Q. Box 837

Stillwater, Oklahoma 74076

Ur

41.37

Quick Trip

P.O. Box 2828

Tulsa, QOklahoma 74101 _
-Attention: Collections, '

Account No. 356156 $ 42.79

K-Mart RSO
P.O. Box 8130

¢ alatine, Illinois 80078-8130
Attention: Legal Department
Control No. 3088423

<

657.53




Mervyns through
Dayton Hudson Corporation

é,.-c.{’o Check Administration

£

~0. Box 960
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55440

Customer Account No. 480722190

Zales through Jewelers Financial Services

P.0O. Box 152763

- Irving, Texas 758015-27563

Attention: Rhonda Blevins

-Horner Foods dba Price Mart #5

9136 East 31st Street
Tulsa, Oklashoma 74145
Attention; Bruce Scott

Med-X Corporation

dba Drug Mart

P.Q. Box 700870

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74170

Kirlins

532 Main Street

P.C. Box 3097
Quincy, lllinois 62305
ttention: Mary Lock

Homeland Stores, Incorporated
P.O. Box 256008

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73125
Attention: Craig Nelson '

Buds #11
2710 South Harvard
Tulsa, OQklahoma 74114

Mardels #3
7727 South West 44th Street
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73179

Braums Ice Cream Store
Box 26429

Oklahoma City, Oklahoms 73125

Attention: Bill Pendergraft

Drysdales
3220 South Memorial Drive
Tulsa, Qklahoma 741456

iorner Foods dba Price Mart #3
9136 East 31st Street o
Tuisa, Oklahoma 74145

Page 4A of 5
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227.88

42.09

57.54

34.14

13.98

145.03

79.73

57.83

23.44

304.26

84.89
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Albertson's

#2.0. Box 20
© soise, ID 83726
Attention: Department R $ B88.36

Sutherlands - Broken Arrow

1800 North Elm Place

Broken Arrow, Oklazhoma 74012

Attention: Scott Sottilo $ 156.46

Sutherlands - East
9503 East 21st Street
Tulsa, Cklahoma 74129

Attention: Ricky Payne $ 13.88
K-Bar B _

6414 North Peoria

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74126 $51,269.72

American Check Cashers
5051 South Yale
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74135

Attention: Brian Sipes $ 375.00
ﬂ .C. Penny Company; Inc.
.0. Box 10001 _
Dallas, Texas 756301-0046
Attention: Steve Frank $ B3.94

Warehouse Market
2121 South Garnett Road _
Tulsa, Okiahoma 74129 _ ¢ 55.23

Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s). '

Restitution shall be paid jointly and severely with Marla Kathleen Pinkston-Wieland except that no
further payment shall be required after the sum of the amounts actually paid by all defendants has fully
covered the compensable injury. Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while in custody through
the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from custody, any unpald
balance shall be paid as a condition of supervised release.

If a victim has received compensation from insurance of any other source with respect to a loss, any
restitution ordered shall be paid to the person who is a victim before any restitution is paid to any such
provider of compensation.

Any payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise specified here,
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¢ efendant: CHRISTOPHER J. WIELAND

Case Number; 97-CR-181-02-K

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline appiication in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 7
Criminal History Category: 1
Imprisonment Range: 4 months to 10 months Count One
Supervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years ' ~ Count One
Fine Range: $ 500 to $ 5,000 Count One
Restitution: $ 4,646.56 Count One

The fine is waived or is below the guideiine range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.

£




ENTERED ON DOCKET

owe - /598

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

£ FORTHENORTHERNDISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA ~
| | - | | FILED
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
) JUN 17 1993
Plaintiff, ) Phil Lombardi, Clerk
) U.S. DISTRICT COURT
Vs, ) Case No. 91-CR-4-E
) (97-CV-303-E)
ROBERTO ORTIZ HERNANDEZ, )
)
Defendant. )
JUDGMENT

This matter came before the Court upon Defendant's motion to vacate set aside or correct
sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255, The Court duly considered the issucs and rendered a

decision herein.

- IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that judgment is hereby
entered for Plaintiff and against Defendant.
¢
SO ORDERED THIS /6~ dayof __( % el 1998,
JAM .ELLISON
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

s 1 LED
JUN 17 1993

Phil Lombardi, ¢
U.8, DISTRICT cgu%‘s

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

Case No. 88-CR-1-E
(97-C-401-E)

VS,

BENNIE WREN BOLTON, a/k/a RAY
WILSON, EnTe
NTERED oN DOCKET

Defendant.
AT (- 7p

Judgment

This matter came before the Court upon the Motion pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §2255 to

Vacate, Set Aside, or Correct Sentence by a Person in Federal Custody (Docket # 90) of the
Defendant Bennie Wren Bolton, a/k/a Ray Wilson. The Court duly considered the issues and
rendered a decision herein.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that judgment is hereby
entered for plaintiff, United States, and against Defendant, Bennie Wren Bolton, a/k/a Ray
Wilson.

IT IS SO ORDERED THIS 17TH DAY OF JUNE, 1998.

S O. ELLISON, SENIOR JUDGE
TED STATES DISTRICT COURT




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT SO W
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA & )

JUN 17 1933

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, : hardi, Clerk
) e Lomerrdt, Slet
Plaintiff, )
)
Vs, ) Case No. 88-CR-1-E
) (97-C-401-E)
)
BENNIE WREN BOLTON, a/k/a RAY )
WILSON, ) ENTERED ON DOCKET
) -
Defendant. ) DATE & '_/ 5 ] 7(?
QRDER

Now before thelC0u11 1s the Motion Under 28 U.S.C. §2255 to Vacate, Set Aside, or Correct
Sentence by a Person in Federal Custody (Docket #90) of the Defendant, Bennie Wren Bolton.

On April 19, 1988, Bolton was found guilty on charges of receiving and possessing a firearm
after being convicted of a felony and possessing a firearm not registered in the National Firearms
Registration and Transfer Record. He was sentenced to forty-years imprisonment on the first charge,
and ten years imprisonment, to run concurrently, on the second charge. Bolton filed both a Motion
in Error and a Motion for New Trial, asserting nineteen allegations of error. After a hearing in which
both Bolton and his counsel were allowed to present argument, the Motion in Error and Motion for
New Trial were denied. Bolton appealed his sentence and conviction on six grounds: 1) the trial
court erred in refusing to disqualify the assistant prosecutor who had earlier represented him, 2) his
trial violated the Speedy Trial Act, 3) he was entitled to a jury instruction on the term “firearm,” 4)
there was insufficient evidence that he possessed the firearm, 5) his sentence was improperly

enhanced, and 6) he was prejudiced by the ineffective assistance of counsel. By Judgment entered




May 30, 1990, Bolton’s conviction and sentence were affirmed on appeal.

Bolton now argues that he had ineffective assistance of counsel on appeal because appellate
counsel 1)failed to make an argument concerning constructive amendment of the indictment, or a
variance in the indictment; 2) failed to make an argument regarding the improper introduction of a
record of prior conviction for robbery with a firearm; and 3)failed to make a proper argument
regarding ineffective assistance of counsel at trial. The Court notes that the issue of ineffective
assistance of counsel at trial was addressed and rejected on appeal, United States V. Bolton, 905 F 2d
319 (10th Cir. 1990).

The ineffective assistance of counsel claims must be evaluated under the Strickland test: 1)
whether defendant's attorney's performarnce was not reasonably effective and 2) whether defendant's’
defense was prejudiced thereby. Strickland v. Washington, 466 U S. 668, 693, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80
L. Ed.2d 674 (1984). Further, the Court must presume that counsel's performance was reasonably
effective and "the burden rests on the accused to demonstrate a constitutional violation " US. v,
Cronic, 104 S.Ct. 2039, 2046 (1984). Under the Strickland rule the presumption of effective
representation is a strong one. Indeed, “[i]udicial scrutiny of counsel's performance must be highty
deferential " Strickland, 104 S.Ct. at 2065. The Court must “presume that the challenged action might
be considered sound trial strategy.” Hatch v,_State of Oklahoma, 58 F.3rd 1447, 1459 (10th Cir.
1995).

With respect to the failure to appeal the constructive amendment of the indictment, the Court
must conclude that Bolton does not and cannot demonstrate that he was prejudiced by this decision.
Bolton was indicted for possessing a firearm after former conviction of a felony and for possessing

a firearm that was not registered in the National Firearms registration and Transfer Record. With




respect to both counts in the indictment, the firearm was described as “a Savage, 20 gauge weapon
made from a shotgun, Serial Number 0580846, having a barre] length of 5 5/16 inched and an overall
length of 12 7/8 inches.” The shotgun that was introduced into evidence, however, had a serjal
number of C580646, but fit the description in the indictment in all other respects. The court granted
an oral motion to amend the indictment to reflect the true and correct serial number as being
C580646. (Tr. Trial April 19, 1988, p. 144),

A variance in the indictment arises when the evidence at trial establishes facts different from
those alleged in the indictment. Llﬂnﬁdjlalm_Aﬂsmh 138 F.3d 843, 849 (10th cir. 1998).
When a variance exists, a conviction is reversed only on a showing of substantial prejudice. Id, “A
variance is not fatal unless the defendant could not have anticipated from the indictment what-
evidence would be presented at trial or unless the conviction based on an indictment Would not bar
a subsequent prosecution.” Id. Likewise, an amendment to an indictment is acceptable if it is in
form only and does not prejudice the defendant. United States v. Cook, 745 F.2d 131 1, 1316 (10th
Cir. 1984). “An amendment of form and not of substance occurs when the defendant is not misled
in any sense, is not subjected to any added burdens, and is not otherwise prejudiced.” Id,

The evidence at trial is that a sawed off shotgun fell out of the car that Bolton was in when
he opened the door (Tr. Trial April 18, 1988, p. 28), and that Bolton became aware of a shotgun in
the car after he was already in the car (Tr. Trial April 19, 1988, p.11 1). Moreover, Officer Raska, a
firearm and tool mark examiner with the Tulsa Police Department testified that he examined the
shotgun at issue in this case, that the serial number was initially covered with a layer of paint making
it difficult to read, and that the serial number used in the indictment was an error resulting from the

painted-over number. (Tr. Trial April 19, 1988, p. 101). There is no evidence introduced either at




trial or in Bolton’s §2255 motion that more than one gun was in the car or found by police officers
at the time of his arrest. Thus, in reviewing the evidence at trial, the Court must conclude that
Bolton was not prejudiced either by the variance or the amendment. He was clearly aware of what
he was charged with and what evidence would be presented at trial, and was able to present a
defense to those charges. There is no prejudice in the variance or the amendment, and therefore no
prejudice in appellate counsel’s failure to make an argument regarding the amendment or variance
on appeal.

Bolton’s remaining argument pertains to appellate counsel’s failure to argue the allegedly
improper introduction of Bolton’s prior convictions. Bolton, relying on Qm_cmmmm

S.Ct.  (1997), argues that he was prejudiced by the statement that he had been “convicted of armed

robbery, robberies with firearms” In Old Chief, the Court held that it was error to allow evidence
of a prior conviction when the defendant had offered to stipulate to that element of the crime for
which he was currently charged. The present case is distinguishable. Bolton specifically refused to
enter into any stipulation regarding his previous convictions, (Tr. Pretrial Conf April 12, 1988, p. 8).
Therefore, Bolton is unable to demonstrate any prejudice in failing to raise this issue on appeal.

Bolton’s Motion Under 28 U.S.C. §2255 to Vacate, Set Aside, or Correct Sentence by a
Person in Federal Custody (Docket #90) is Denied.

(f‘
SO ORDERED this £7_day of June, 1998

A

I S O. ELLISON, SENIOR JUDGE
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
| : ENTERED ON DOCKET
Plaintiff, ) |
) DATE _p/8-9&
vs, ) No.91-CR-4-E
) (97-CV-303-E)
ROBERTO ORTIZ HERNANDEZ, )
)
Defendant. )
ORDER

Before the Court is the pro se :Defendaht Robert Ortiz Hernandez's mbtioﬁ to vacate, set.
aside, or correct sentence pursuant to 28 1U.S.C. § 2255 (Docket #49). The Plaintiff United States
of America has filed its response brief (#50) and Defeﬁdaht has filed a reply to that response (#52).
Defendant also has filed a supplemental memorandum in support of pending 2255 (¥54). After
reviewing the entire record in this case, the Court has determined that an evidentiary hearing is not
necessary and that the motion lacks merit and should be denied.

BACKGROUND

On December 13, 1990, an Oklahoma Highway Patrol Trooper stopped a rental truck driven
by Defendant because the truck was weaving across the yellow lines of a state highway. The truck’s
rental agreement was in the name of co-defendant Emilio Barrera Sanchez, who was a passenger in
the truck when it was stopped. A subsequent search of the rental truck r@eﬂed in excess of fifty (50)
kilograms of cocaine hidden under a mattress in the cargo compartment. The facts as later developed

revealed that Defendant recruited Sanchez to rent the truck in a Chicago suburb and drive with him




to Arizona, where the truck was loadcd wit_h the cocaine. The two men were headed back to Chicago
when thoy were stopped and arrested in Oklahoma. S
On January 10, 1991, Defeﬁdant and Sanchéz were indicted for possession With intent to
distribute of approximately fifty (50) kilograms .of cocaine, Defendant pled guilty in accordance with
aplea agreement which included his promise to testify, if needed, at Sanchez’s trial. The government
agreed in return: not to object if Defendant received a two-point reductioii in offense level for
acceptance of responsibility or if the Court sentenced Defendant at the lower end of the guideline
range; and to advise the Court of the nature and extent of Defendant’s cooperation, if any. The
maximum sentence as stated in the pléa agreement was life imprisonment and a fine of up o $4
million, Defendant ultimately did not testify for the government at Sanchez’s trial, although he was
called a5 a defense witness, Sanchez was convicted of the lesser included offense of simple
. pqssession of cocaine a_nd set}tcn_cs_d t_o_ one year impri_sonment.
Prior to Defendant’s sentencing, the Probation Oﬂiﬁe prepared a Presentence Report ("PSR™).
Defense counsel objected to the PSR on three grounds: 1) its recommendation that Defendant be
given a two-point increase for being a manager or supervisor pursuant to § 3B1.1(c) of the United

States Sentencing Committee, Guidelines Manual (Nov. 1990) ("U.S8.S.G." or "guidelines"); 2) for

not recommending a two-point reduction pursuant to U.8.5 G. § 3B1.2 for being a minor participant
in the distribution of the cocaine; and 3) the PSR’s statement that there were not any factors justifying
departure from the guidelines, when Defendant believed he was entitled to a downward depérture for
providing substantial assistance to the government, pursuant to USS.G §5KI1.1. (#44)

The Court held a sentencing hearing on May 13, 1991, at which defense counsel repeated his

[

objections to the PSR and requested an in-camera hearing to further advise the Court of the extent
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of Defendant’s cooperation with the government. The Court first made findings in open court that
the .Defendant had recruited Sanchez as a dﬁver of the truck and was a major player, not a minor
participant, in the distribution scheme. (Tr. of Sent. Hr'g at 7). The Court then conducted an in-
camera hearing on the issue of the extent of Defendant’s cooperation with the government, and
thereafter denied Defendant’s request for a downward departure on this ground. Howevef, the Court
did note that if Defendant later provided substantial information that could be of true. value t§ the
government, that matter could be addressed by the government in a future motion to reduce sentence
pursuant to Rule 35, Fed. R. Crim. P. (Tr. of Sent. Hr’g at 19).

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Court adopted thc recommendations of the PSR and
found Defendant to have a total offense level of 36 and criminal history of one, calling for a guideline
range of 188 to 235 months imprisonment and a fine of $20,000 to $4 million. The Court sentenced
Defendant at the lowest end of the guideline range, to 188 manths followed by 5 years supervised
release. (#47).

Defendant did not appeal. Almost six years after his sentencing, Defendant filed this motion
to vacate, set aside, or correct sentence pursuant 10 28 U.8.C. § 2255, raiéing these grounds for relief
(the fourth issue is not listed in his motion but is included in his ac’compﬁnying memoranduni):

1. The upward enhancement based on Defendant’s rolé as a manager was erroneous in

light of new law. |

2. Defense counsel failed tc_j file an appeal after Defendant requested him to do so.

3. The failure to make a downward adjustment for Defendant’s role as a minor

participant was erroneous.



4. The Court’s failure to advise _ﬁefépdant_rggarding his right on appeal to proceed in
forma pauperis and to have appointed counsel was a denial pf due process and
requires his sentence ﬁe vacated and he be resentenced.

In its response, the government addressed only Defendant’s claim that he was not notified by
the Court of his appellate rights. The government conéed’es that appellate rights were not mentioned
at Defendant’s sentencing hearing, notes that the Tenth Circuit has not addressed the significance to
be given that failure, and suggests that Defendant be granted additional time in which to file an appeal
rather than proceeding through another, duplicative, sentencing, (#52 at 3).

Further, although the gov2rnment stated that Defendant’s three remaining claims were moot
in light of the appellate rights issue, it attached the affidavit of Richard Couch, Defendant’s trial

counsel, dated June 30, 1997, to rebut Defendant’s claim that his counsel failed to file a direct appeal

in contravention of Defendant’s wishes. In his affidavit, Couch states that he reviewed his case notes

‘to-refresh his memory, and that immediately following sentencing on May 13, 1991, he advised

Defendant that if he wished to appeal he would have t0 do so within ten days of the judgment, and
Defendant told him he would call him the next day. On May 22, 1991, Defendant called Couch and
asked whether he could appeal the "rple in the offense” adjustment and the "failure to depart
downward from the sentencing guidelines” issues. After Couch advised Defendant that he could
appeal those issues and after discussing fhe ;ﬁeﬁts of _tﬁosé issu'es,; ]j.efend.ant told Céuch that he did
not wish to file an appeal but would cooperate further with the government in an effort to receive a
Rule 35(b) motion from the government to reduce his sentence.

In his réply brief to the government’s response, Defendant does not specifically dispute the

b

factual allegations contained in Couch’s affidavit as to Couch’s conversations with Defendant



;‘ggarding an appeal, nor giqe_s he add _'a'ny specific ﬁlformation t.o his statement that he asked counsel
to appeél. Defeﬁdz;nt again requests t.lllé.t his. senteﬁce l;e \}acatéd and. resentenéing pr.o.ceed.ings.held,
or alternatively that an evidentiary hearing be held and that hé be appointed counsel.

On March 23, 1998, Defendant filed a "Supplemental Memorandum in Support of Pending
2255" (#54) in which he raises additional claims: ineffective assistance of counsel for failing to ask
for an independent weighing of the éocaine, pursue a motion to suppress, and request a downward
departure pursuant to U.S.5.G. §§ 3B1.2, 5H and 5K2.0; the Court’s faiture to reduce to writing its
findings of fact and conclusions of law as required by Rule 32(c), Fed. R. Crim. P; and, finally, that
ke is entitled to resentencing based on subsequent changes in the sentencing guidelines providing for
additional adjustments.

ANALYSIS
A, N Rale 32(a)(2) Violation.

Defendant claims that the Cdurt’s faiture following sentencing to notify him of his appeal
rights requires the per se vacatur of his sentence followed by resentencing. The government
concedes that some rélief 1s necessary but suggests that reinstatement of Defendant’s appeal rights
would suffice rather than requiring complete and duplicative resentencing proceedings.

A review of the transcript of the sentencing hearing on May 13, 1991 reveals that the Court

neglected to specifically advise Defendant of his right to appeal his sentence, as required by Rule



32(a)(2), Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure (1991).!  This rule provided as of the date of
Defendant’s sentencing:

Notification of Right to Appeal. After imposing sentence in a case
which has gone to trial on a plea of not guilty, the court shall advise
the defendant of the defendant’s right to appeal, including any right to
appeal the sentence, and of the right of a person who is unable to pay
the cost of an appeal to apply for leave to appeal in forma pauperis.
There shall be no duty on the court to advise the defendant of any
right of appeal after sentence is imposed following a plea of guilty or
nolo contendere, except that the court shall advise the defendant of
any right to appeal the sentence. If the defendant so requests, the
clerk of the court shall prepared and file forthwith a notice of appeal
on behalf of the defendant. (emphasis added)

Clearly, this rule does not require the court to advise a defendant who has pled guilty of his
rights to proceed in forma pauperis and to appointed counsel on appeal; thus, to the extent Defendant
charges error due to the lack of such notification, his claim is without merit. Inaddition, the language
uhclerlinf_:d above which provides that the court need only "advise the defendant [who has pled guilty]
of any right to appeal his sentence” temphasis added), arguably suggests that the sentencing court
need not advise a defendant who has pled guilty of his right to appeal in every case, but merely i

those cases where a defendant has preserved some ground for appeal. Qf_ United States v.

DeSantiago-Martinez, 38 F.3d 394, 395-86 (Sth Cir.1992) (Rule 32(a)}(2) admonishments are

unnecessary when the defendant expressly waives his sentencing appeal rights in the plea agreement);

'Effective December 1, 1994, this provision was amended and recodified at Fed. R. Crim, P. 32(c)(5). The

Advisory Committee explained, however, that they intended no substantive change in practice by this amendment.



McCumber v. United States, 30 F.3d 78, 80 (8th Cir.1994) (violation of Rule 32(a)(2) was harmless

in light of defendant's failure to raise any objections to the presentence invesfigation reﬁoi—t).

However, in this instance, the government apparently concedes, and the Court agrees, that
defense counsel objected at sentencing and thus preserved Defendant’s right to appeal the "role in
the offense" and "minor participant” sentencing issues. Accordingly, the Court's failure to advise
Defendant of his right to appeal his sentence technically violated Rule 32(2)(2).

In ight of the violation of Rule 32(a)(2), the next question is whether such a violation should
be treated as automatically affording Defendant a remedy. As discussed below, while the Circuits are
split and the Tenth Circuit has not spoken on this precise issue, the Court concludes that the decisions
allowing for a harmless error review provide the better rationale, and, under the circumstances ofthe
instant case where Defendant admittedly knew of his appeal rights, the technical violation of Rule
32(a)(2) 1s harmless error which should not require resentencing or other relief.

Gerierally, *.violations of statutory or rule-governed criminal procedures will not sustain a
motion for § 2255 relief. See, e.g., United States v. Timmreck, 441 U.S. 780, 783-84 (1979)

{violation of Fed. R. Crim. P. 11 plea procedures); Hill v. United States, 368 U.S. 424 (1962) (failure

of court to ask a defendant represented by counsel if he wants to make a statement on his own behalf

before sentencing, in violation of former Rule 32(a)) ; United States v. Prichard, 875 F.2d 7 89, 790
(10th Cir.1989) (lack of written waiver of jury trial, as required by Fed. R. Crim. P. 23(a)).

In Timmreck, the court failed during the change of plea proceedings to describe the

mandatory special parole term of three years required by statute. The defendant did not allege that
he was unaware of the special parole term or that, if he had been properly advised by the court, he

would not have pleaded guilty. His only claim was a technical violation of Rule 11, Timmreck 441



U.S. at 783-84. In addressmg whether such a techmcal violation of the federal rules requlred relief
under § 2255 the Supreme Couxt concluded that the €ITor was nelther constitutzonal nor i
jurisdictional, and did not result in a "complete miscarriage of justice” or in a proceeding "inconsistent
with the rudimentary demands of fair procedure.” Id. Thus, the Supreme Court determined,
collateral relief under § 2255 was not available when all that was shown was a failure to corﬁply with
the formal requirement of the rule govering plea inquiries. Id. at 785.

Consistent with this reasorﬁng, several Circuits apply a harmless error analysis and deny relief
where a defendant is not prejudiced by the technical violation of the appeal rights notification

requirements of former Rule 32(a)(2). See, Tress v. United States, 87 F.3d 188, 190 (7th Cir. 1996)

(rejected per se rule requiring resentencing, and remanded for consideration of whether violation was
harmless); McCumber v. United Stat_es, 30 F.3d 78 (8th Cir. 1994) (violation was harmless where
Defendant had nothing to appeal); United States v. Chang, -- F.3d - (1998 WL 271262, No. 97— |
4844) (11th Cir. May 28, 19§8) (violation was hanﬁless when defendant ectually perfected a timely
eppeal). Significantly, the Eighth Circuit applied a harmless error analysis to deny relief where the
Rule 32(a)(2) violation followed a jury conviction, in a case where the government showed by clear

and convincing evidence that the defendant knew of the right to appeal. Drummond v_United States

903 F.2d 1171, 1174 (8th Cir. 1990).
Although some Circuits impose & per se rule that any technical violation of Rule 32(a)(2)

requires relief such as resentencing, see, ¢.g., United States v. Sanchez, 88 F.3d 1243 (D.C. Cir.

1996}, Paige v. United States, 443 F.2d 781 (4th Cir. 1591), this Court concludes that the better-

reasoned approach is to apply the harmless error rationale articulated by the Supreme Court in



~ Timmreck and applied by the Seventh aiid Elghth Circuits to similar technical violations of Rule
: '32(3')(2)..'" Sl e o L

Applying a harmless etror analysis to the facts of this case, the Court determines that any

formal violation of Rule 32(a)(2) was harmless in that Defendant clearly knew at the time of

sentencing that he could appeal his sentence.  Defendant does not allege that he was unaware of

his appeal rights at the time of sentencing or that he was prejudiced in any way by the Court’s failure

to strictly follow the notification procedure. Indeed, as discussed in detail below in connection with

tus claim of ineffective assistance of counsel, Defendant alleges that he told his attorney immediately

after .sentencing that he wanted to appeal, thus admitting he kriew of his right to appcel. The record

clearly demonstrates that Defendant was not prejudiced by the technical violation of Rule 32(a)(2).

Accordingly, the Court holds that the failure to advise Defendant of his appellate rights as required

£ by Rule 32(a)(2) was harmless error which does not entitle Defendant to relief pursuant to § 2255.
B. Ineffective assistance of counsel claim for failing to appeal.

Defendant claims that he requested his attorney to file an appeal after sentencing; however,
no appeal was ever filed on his behalf. The record confirms that no direct appeal was filed, timely
or otherwise. The record is also devoid of any evidence that Defendant tried to contact his lawyer
to determine why no appeal was filed or that he contac;ed the court to learn the status of an appeal.
Defendant’s allegations that his lawyer disregarded his wishes to appeal are totally conclusory, as is
illustrated by this statement in his original motion:

One of the principal [sic] claims in this action surrounds the failure of
trial and sentence counsel to perfect, after promises which prompted
a guilty plea by counsel, and express promises to the defendant, that

< at the time of the imposition of sentence, that the counsel file 2 notice
of appeal so as to seek review of the sentencing. (#49 at 4).



Defense counsel, through his affidavit, states that hé adwsed ]jefenda'nf on May 13, 1991 that any

.appea.l must be filed within ten days of the entry of ajudgﬁeﬁt, and that when Deféndant called him

nine days later (but only one day afier entry of judgment on May 20, 1991), Defendant advised that
he did not want to appeal but would continue to pursue & reduction of sentence through a Rule 35(b)
motion from the goverﬁment for substantial assistance. Defendant does not specifically dispute these
conversations, nor, indeed does he even address them in his reply. Rather, he repeats his conclusory
allegation that he told his attorney to appeal and continues to urge that he is entitled to an evidentiary
hearing with appointed counsel.

A defendant's right to effective assistance of counsel applies not just at trial but also on direct

appeal. Evitts v. Tucey, 469 U.S. 387, 396 (1985) ("A first appeal as of right ... is not adjudicated

in accord with due process of law if the appellant does not have the effective assistance of an

attorney."); United State_s v. Davis, 929 F.2d 554, 557 (10th Cir.1991). A defendant is denied
effective assistance of counsel if he asks his lawyer to perfect an appeal and the lawyer fails to do so

by failing to file a brief, see Rodriguez v. United States 395 U.S. 327, 329 (1969), a statement of

appeal, see Evitts, 469 U.S. at 389, or otherwise. Abels v. Kaiser, 913 F.2d 821, 822-23 (10th Cir.

1990). A defendant need not show prejudice once it is established that defendant wanted to appeal
but his counsel failed to file or perfect the appeal. Id. at 823, “"However, if counse! reasonably
believes that there are no meritorious grounds for an appesl, advises a defendant not to appeal on that
basis, further advises him that he has a right to appeal regardless, and then acts in accordance with

defendant’s decision to waive an appeal, his performance cannot be considered deficient." Upited

States v. Lopez, 100 F.3d 113, 119 (10th Cir. 1996).



No ewdentlary hearmg is requlred ona monon pursuant to § 2255 where the motmm ﬁies and

records of the case concluswely show that the pnsoner is entitled to no rehef 28 U S. C §2255

United States v. Marr, 856 F.2d 1471, 1472 (.IOth Cir. 1988). To be entitled to a hearing on his claim

that counsel provided ineffective assistance by ignoring his directive to appeal, Defendant must make
credible aliegations that he told counsel he wanted to appeal and that his counsel directly disregarded

his wishes. See, Lasiter v. Thomas, 89 F.3d 699, 702-03 (10th Cir.), cert. denied, 117 S.Ct. 493

(1996).

Here, Defendant.’s allegations that he asked his lawyer to appeal are totally conclusory and
are not credible in light of the entire case record. His trial counsel claims in an affidavit that
Defendant told him he had decided not to appeal. Defendant does not specifically cﬁmtradict

counsel’s statements that these conversations took place, nor does he allege that he wrote, called or

_ tried to contact his attorney or the court to determine why no appeal was filed  Defendant also does

not explain ﬁis bald assertion that his guilty plea (entered two months before sentencing) was
somehow premised on his attorney’s promise to appeal the sentence. Indeed, not only is that
statement nonsensical bﬁt itis also contradicted by the plea agreement letter of March 4, 1991, signed
by Defendant, which states that there are no agreements other than those set forth in the letter.
Further, it defies logic to believe that Défendant actually directed his lawyer to appeal in May,
1991, then took no action at all to determine why an appeal was not filed until almost six years later
when he filed this § 2255 motion claiming that his counsel never ﬁled an appeal, Defendant’s total
and prolonged inaction is, however, .entirely consistent with defense counsel’s statement that
Defendant decided not to appeal, after djscuséing with counsel the merits of the various sentencing

i

issues. This case has no similarity to those cited by Defendant in which the sentencing proceedings



or the defendant’s own vigilance demonstrated a desire to appeal. See, e.g., Rodriguez v. United

States, 395 U.S. 327 (1969) (within 40 days of sentencing, prisoner attempted to file notice of appeal

pro se after attorney failed to timely appeal). The Seventh Circuit case repeatedly cited by Defendant,

Castellanos v. United States, 26 ¥.3d 717 (7th Cir. 1994), merely restates the established principle

that a prisoner need not show "prejudice” to be entitled to reinstatement of appeal rights where it is
established that counsel failed to file a requested appeal.

Accordingly, after careful consideration of the entire record, the Court concludes that
Defendant’s claim that he told his attorney to appeal is "wholly incredible," Lasiter, 89 F.3d at 703,
and that no evidentiary hearing is necessary on this issue.

C. Sentencing issues.

‘As noted previously, Defendant did not file a direct appeal. 1t is well settled that "[section

2255 motions are not available to test the legality of matters which should have been raised on direct

appeal” United States v. Warner, 23 F.3d 287, 291 (10th Cir. 1994) (citation omitted).
Consequently, a defendant may not assert issues which were not raised in his direct appeal unless he
establishes cause for his default and prejudice resulting therefrom, or can show that a fundamental

miscarriage of justice will occur if his claims are not addressed. United States v. Cook, 45 F 3d 388,

392 (10th Cir.1995). The procedural.default rules developed in the context of habeas corpus cases

apply with equal force in § 2255 cases. United States v. Frady, 456 U.S. 152, 166-69n. 15 (1982).

The "cause" standard requires a defendant to show that some objective factor external to the

defense impeded his ability to raise an issue on direct appeal. See Murray v. Carrier, 477 U.S. 478,

488 (1986). Examples of such external factors include the discovery of new evidence or a change

in the law. Id. Ineffective assistance of counsel is another example of an external factor that may

12
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constitute "cause" excusing a procedﬁral default. Cook, 45 F.3d at 392. As for prejudice, a

(L

defendant must show ““actual prejudice’ resulting from the errors of which he complains." Frady,
456 U.S. at 168 (1982). The "fundamental miscarriage of justice" exception requires a petitioner to
demonstrate that he is "actually innocent™ of the crime of which he was convicted. McCleskey v.
Zant, 499 U.S. 467, 494 (1991).

Because Defendant’s claims relating to alleged errors in application of the sentencing
guidelines were not raised on appeal, he is procedurally barred from now. raising them unless he
shows "cause and prejudice” or that a fundamental miscarriage of justice will occur if his claims are
not addressed. Defendant claims generally that his failure to raise the sentencing issues on direct

appeal resulted from ineffective assistance of counsel in failing to appeal. However, as discussed

previously, the Court concludes that Defendant was not denied effective assistance of counsel on

- appeal; therefore, that ground cannot serve as "cause" sufficient to overcome the procedural bar.

Defendant also claims in ground one of his § 2255 motion that intervening amendments to
the sentencing guidelines make erroneous the two-point enhancement for Defendant’s role as a
manager or supervisor under U.§.8.G. § 3B1.1. Constming Defendant’s pro se motion liberally as
required by Haines v. Kerner, 404 U.8. 519, 520 (1972), the Court interprets this claim as alleging
that this amendment constitutes a change in the law which serves as "cause" for his failure to appeal

this issue. Defendant cites the Seventh Circuit case of United States v. Fones, 51 F.3d 663 (7th Cir,

1995) in support of his claim that his sentence was incorrectly enhanced.
In calculating Defendant’s sentence pursuant to the guidelines, the PSR recommended an
enhancement to the base offense level under U.8.8.G. § 3B1.1(c), which provides for a two-point

increase if "the defendant was an organizes, leader, manager, or supervisor in any criminal activity



other than that descrlbed in (a)or (b) " The Connnentary hsts factors whlch the court should

consider in makmg thlS detemunatlon including the nature and scope of the criminal activity, the
exercise of decision making authority, and the recruitment of accomplices. At Defendant’s sentencing
hearing, the Court determined that Defendant had recruited his co~defendant.Sanchez, and overruled
defense counsel’s objection to this enhancement. Defendant now claims that he is entitled to relief
based upon a 1993 amendment to the coramentary which provides that a defendant’s control over
property of the criminal activity alone does not support an enhancement under § 3B1.1.

Under 18 U.5.C.§ 3553(a)(4), a seatencing court is generally required to apply the guidelines
in effect tlt the time of sentencing, unless to do so would run afoul of the Ex Post Facto Clause.

United States v. Gerber, 24 F.3d 93, 95 (10th Cir.1994). The amendment to the commentary under

§ 3B1.1 has no relevance to the Court’s finding that Defendant was a manager or supervisor, because

the Court found that Defendant recruited Sanchez to accompany him on the drug transport activity.

Further, the enhancement is clearly supported by the evidence of the large amount of cocaine seized,
as well as Defendant’s own decision-making authority in directing the transport activity. The
amendment to the commentary does not constitute a “change in law” excusing Defendant’s failure
to appeal this issue.

The only other at;enue by which Defendant can have this claim reviewed is by showing that
a "fundamental miscarriage of justice" will result if the procedural bar is invoked. This exception
applies "in an extraordinary case, where a constitutional violation has probably resulted in the
conviction of one who 18 actually innocent.” Murray v. Carrier, 477 U.S. at 496 (1986). Defendant
does not claim that he is actually innocent of the charges to which he pled gutlty. Therefore, this

*

claim is procedurally barred.



b. Supplemental issues.

Asnoted above, Defenciént ﬁlled ;a.'su;:)';.)lém.ex'ltai 'meﬁoran.ciu.ﬁ-l (#54) soﬁaé é]ev?en months aﬂer
he filed s initial motion pursuant to § 2255, In this two-page document he attempts to raise for the
first time additional claims, While the proper method of adding new claims is to seek leave of court
to amend the orignal § 2255 motion, the Court in the interest of justice will construe Defendant’s
supplemental memorandum to set forth the listed new claims and will consider them at this time.

Defendant now alleges ineffective assistance of counsel on three grounds: 1) for failing to ask
for an independent weighing of’ the cocaine, which Defendant says “borderlined on 50 kilos in weight
and 50 kilos is a threshold sentencing level in the Guidelines” (#54 at 1); 2) for failing to pursue a
motion to suppress; and 3) for failing to request a downward departure pursuant to U S S.G. §§ |
3B1.2, SH and 5K2.0.

Each of these claims is without merit. First, Defendant pled guilty to possessing, with intent
to distnibute, 50 kilograms of cocaine. Inlight of Defenda.nf’s admission of guilt, defense c.;oufllvslel had
no reason to ask that the cocaine be weighed. Second, as part of Defendant’s plea agreement,
Defendant agreed to drop his motion to suppress. Defense counsel could not pursue such a motion
without jeopardizing the plea agreement, and indeed in light of Defendant’s decision to plead guilty
and waive jury trial no reason remained to pursue such a motion. Third, defense counsel did request
a downward departure pursuant to U.S.S.G. §§ 3B1.2 (role as a minor participant) and 5K2.0
(substantial assis_tance to authorities). (Defendaht’s objections to the PSR, ##44 and 46). Section
5.Hrelates to “Specific Offender Characteristics™ such as age, education and vocational skills, mental
and emotional condition, physical condition, and previous employment. Defendant does not explain

how this section applies to his case, and in. the absence of specific facts the Court will not find that

15



counsel erred in fa.i_l’ing to raise an ije_qtion based upon this .section.. Accordipgly, Dgfendant h.as
faileci tc; pérsuacie thé Court that hls .cé.n.msei’; i)ueul:fofﬁ‘.lar;(lz.e was ...olut"sid.e the realm of a ?eésonablf
competent criminal'attorney_, Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 687-88 (1984).

Lastly, Defendant claims he is entitled to relief due to the Court’s failure o reduce to writing
its findings of fact and conclusions of law as required by Rule 32(0), Fed. R. Crim. P; and, finally, that
he is entitled to resentencing based on subscqueﬁt changes in the sentencing guidelines providing for
additional adjustments. As discussed previously, claims not presented on appeal are procedurally |
barred absent a showing of “cause and prejudice.” Defendant does not allege any cause for his failure
to appeal these issues; accordingly, he is barred from now asserting ther.

CONCLUSION

Defendant’s claim that he was not notified of his appellate rights does not entitle him to

~ relief pursuant to § 2255 because the technical violation of Rule 32(a)(2) constituted harmless

error. Defendant’s claims of ineffective assistance of counsel because his attorney allegédly failed
to file an appeal and due to the grounds contained in his supplemental memorandum (#54) also
are without merit. Defendant’s remaining claims are procedurally barred,

ACCORDINGLY, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Defendant's motion to vacate, set

aside, or correct sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255 (docket #49) is denied.

7
SO ORDERED THIS /& © day of %,44. 1998,

] S O. ELLISON
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

6
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U.S. DISTRICT COURT

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
)
Plaintiff, ) /
) /
vs. ) Case No. 90-CR-131-E /
) 97-C-402-E
JAMES MAHAN, )
) ENT
Defendant. ) ERED ON DOCKET
DATE é'"/a? ?f
.-_—_-_-—'_'"—"‘—'——-
ORDER

Now béfore the Court is the Motion Under 28 U.S.C. §2255 to Vacate, Set Aside, or Correct
Sentence By a Person in Federal Custody of the Defendant James Edward Mahan (Mahan) (Docket
- #30) |

Mahan was indicted on one count of ConSpi?acy to Possess with Intent to Distribute a
Controlled Substance (Cocaine Based) from October 1, 1989 until November 6, 1989, in violation of
21 US.C. §846. On December 18, 1990, Mahan was found guilty by a jury of this charge.
Subsequently, he was sentenced to 360 months imprisonment to be followed by a five yeér teﬁn of
supervised release. He appealed his cionviction_and_sentence, arguing 1) that the trial court erred in

.enhancing his sentence under the guidelines for possession of a firearm during commission of an
offense involving drugs, obstruction of justice, and being an organizer-leader; 2) that there was
insufficient evidence to support the conviction; and 3) his procedural due process rights were violated
when law enforcement officials referred his case for federal rather than state prosecution. ‘Mahan’s
conviction and sentence were affirmed by the Court of Appeals on March 3 1,1992.

- The charge of the government at trial in this somewhat unusual case is that Mahan was a drug



dealer and that he arranged for his co_—c.onspirsttdfﬁ fo ptSs’e as police officers and rob a drug courier

ﬁf oﬁe kllogram of c'dcéine;bét-se; He would then attempt to o'b'.t'aih a second kilogram of cocaine base
from the supplier in California pretending that the first kilogram of cocaine base had never arrived.
Mahan testified at trittl and admitted that he had knowledge of the robbery scheme, but denied that
he was a drug dealer, or that he had any involvement whatsoever in the scheme. Mahan now argues
in his §2255 motion that he received ineffective assistance at trial and on appeal because his counsel
failed to investigate or present a valid theory of defense, that the enhancement provisions for cocaine
base are unconstitutional, and that he is entitled to a hearing on thestz issues.
| Ineffective Assistance of Counsel
The goxtemment first argues that Mahan is procedurally barred from raising these issués

because they were not first raised on appeal. The government argues, correct.ly, that “A defendant’s

failure to ratse an issue on direct appeal will bar review unless the defendant can show cause and

actual prejudice resulting from the alleged errors, or can show a fundamental miscarriage of justice

will oceur if his complaint is not addressed. United States v. Allen, 16 F.3d 377 (10th Cir,.1994). _

Mahan attempts to meet the cause and prejudice, or fundamental miscarriage of justice
standards by arguing that his counsel was ineffective for not investigating or presenting a theory of
defense that there was no conspiracy because the cooperating witnesses had a complete!y different
objective from Mahan’s. Mahan argues that the purpose of the conspiracy, “to have twice as much
cocaine to distribute,” would have only been his purpose, and that the cooperating witness’ purpose
was to make money by committing a robbery. These ineffective assistance of counsel claims must
be evaluated under the Strickland test: 1) whether defendant's attorney's performance was not

reasonably effective and 2) whether defendant's defense was prejudiced thereby. Strickland v,




Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 693, 104 §.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed..?d 674 (1984). Further, the Court must
pfesume that couﬁsél'é performance was feasqnably' effective and "the burden rests on the accused
to demonstrate a constitutional Viﬁlation." U.S, v. Cronic, 104 S.Ct. 2039, 2046 (1984). Under the
Strickland rule the presumption of effective representation is a strong one. Indeed, “{jjudicial scrutiny
of counsel's performance must be highly deferential." Stricklarid, 104 S.Ct. at 2065. The Court must |
“presume that the challenged action might be considered sound trial strategy.” Hatch v, State of
Oklahoma, 58 F.3rd 1447, .14.59 (10th Cir_ 1995). |
- In applying these principles to the facts of this case, the Court first rejects 'Méhan’s conclusory
assertion that “Counsel’s total concession to the government’s case in chief caused a constructive
demal of counsel,” which would result in the requirement of prejudice being presumed. A review
of the record does not support these éssertions. There is no “total qoncession to the goyemment’s
_ case m chlef In fact, counsel does present 2 defense tbrough the tes‘urnony of Mahan hlmself who
denies the key elements of the govemment s case. (Tr. of Jury Trial at 185-189), Although in
certain circumstances, such as complete denial of counsel, or failure to subject the prosecution’s case
to meaningful adversarial testing, prejudice can be presumed, Cronic, 104 S.Ct. at 2047, the
circumstances here do not justify such a presumption,
It is, therefore, up to Mahan to provide evidence to satisfy the two-prong test of Strickland.
Mahan argues that counsel’s performance fell below an objective standard of reasoﬁableness because
counsel failed to investigate and develop a defense based on the argument that there was no “meeting
of the minds” between Mahan and the alleged co-conspirators regarding the object of the conspiracy.
Mahan argues that his counsel should have asserted the defense that the intent of the cooperating

witnesses and co-conspirators was to commit robbery, not to possess cocaine to distribute. In




examlmng counsei’s conduct inits entlrety, and the line of defense used at tna] Whlch was to deny
| 'any mvolvement in the aIleged oonsptracy, the court does not ﬁnd that faﬂure to argue that there was i
no meeting of the minds required for a conspiracy falls outside an objective standard of
reasonableness. This is particolarly trug in light of the testimony of Richard Fleming that the reason
for the robbery was so that Mahan could get his cocaine , and then get some more for free because
it had been taken by the police. {Tr. of Jury Trial at 50).

Moreover, defendant has not demonstrated that he was prejudiced by counsel’s failure to
make the exact argument defendant outlines. Under the Strickland test, prejudice requires a
demonstration that, but for the errors of counsel, the result of tﬁe trtal would have been diﬁ'erent,
104 S.Ct. At 2068. In reviewing the test%mooy of the alleged co-conspirators, in particular their
understanding of the aim of the conspiracy, as well as the jury instruction on conspiracy and the
_reqoirement of a “common understandmg, the Court concludes that 1o prejudlce resulted from the
.alleged error of defendant’s counsel. The question of whether there was a meeting of the minds was
~ one for the jury, and the evidence was sufficient to support the determination of the jury on this issue.

Constitutionality of Sentencing Provisions

Defendant also argues that the enhancement provisions for crack cocaine or cocaine base are
unconstitutional because they are irratiooa], and are not based on any “valid medical, scientific, legal
theories or dataf’ In making this argument, defendant relies on United States v. Dayis, 864 F.Supp
1303 (N.D. Ga. 1994) vtxherein the court refused to enhance defendant’s sentence pursuant to 21
U.S.C. §841(b)(1)(B)(iil) because the heightened penalty provision is based on a “scientifically
meariingless distinction between cocaine and cocaine base.” This authority has not, however, been

accepted by this circuit, which has specifically held, in United States v. Thurmond, 7 F.3d 947, 953,




(10th Cir. 1993) that there are legitimate reasons for dlstmgu{Shlng between cocaine and cocaine base
| ‘.for sentencmg purposes ._S_QQ g_s_Q. _m"' f'd '.'.t tez'_ §_Ti "mer 928 F. 2d 956 958 (10th Clr 1991)
The Court rejects Mahan's assertion that the provision under which he was sentenced is
unconstitutional.

Because the issues raised by Mahan can be resolved on the record no before the Court,
Mahan’s request for an evidentiary hearing is denied. Further, Mahan’s Motion Under 28 UJ.S.C.
§2255 to Vacate, Set Aside, or Correct Sentence By a Person in Federal Custody (Docket #30) is
denied.

50 ORDERED this ?7%ay of June, 1998,

S 0. ELLISON, SENIOR JUDGE
TED STATES DISTRICT COURT




| FILED
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA JUN 10 1998

Phil Lombardi, Clark
U.8. DISTRICT COURT

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
Plaintiff, g
s, ; Case No. 90-CR-131-E
JAMES MAHAN, ;
Defendant ; ENTERED ON DOCKET
oaTE _4- /TN

J I). MENT
This matter came before the Court upon the Motion Pursuant td 28 U.S.C. §2255 to Vacate,
Set Aside, or Correct Sentence by a Person in Federal Custody (Docket #30) of the Defendant, James
_ .Mahan. T_hg Court _d_uly considered _t_h(; issugs and rendered a decision helfein. .
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that judgment is hereby

entered for Plaintiff and against Defendant.

| | 77
IT IS SO ORDERED THIS <7 < DAY OF JUNE, 1998,
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

: . . ENTERED ON DOCKET

DATE .(_’L/ d 5"/ 94

V. : Case Number 87-CR-175-001-K

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

STANLEY LEE WOOD F I L Ep

Defendant.

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE Phi

i
{(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987} US. éfsq-"%%f;d: Clary

The defendant, STANLEY LEE WQOD, was represented by J. Richard Johnson,

On motion of the United States the court has dismissed Count 1 of the Indictment.

The defendant pleaded guilty to Count 2 of the Indictment, February 12, 1998. Accordingly, the
defendant is adjudged guilty of such count, involving the following offense:

Date Offense Count
Title & Section MNature of Dffenss ) Concluded Number(s)

/718 USC 922(g}8) Possession of a Firearm in 85/12/97 2
& 324(a){2) Violation of a Protective Order :

As pronounced onJune 2, 1998, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 6 of this
Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984,

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of § 100, for
Count 2 of the indictment, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the /& day of ;Qﬂg . 1998,

The Honoraffe Terry C. Kern, Chief
United States District Judge

- Defendant’s SSN: 447-54-1380
)efendant s Date of Birth: 8/11/52
Defendant’s residence and mailing addréss: Tulsa County Jail, 500 S. Denver, Tulsa OK 74103
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£ Defendant: STANLEY LEE WOOD
" Case Number: 97-CR-175-001-K

IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of 18 months.

The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: that the defendant be
placed in a Bureau of Prisons facility in or as near Ft. Worth, Texas, as possible.

The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal.

RETURN

1 have executed this Judgment as follows:

Defendant delivered on 10
at . with a certified copy of this Judgment.

United States Marshal

By

Deputy Marshal
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Judgment--Page 3 of 6
Defendant: STANLEY LEE WOOD

f""ase Number: 97-CR-175-001:K
SUPERVISED RELEASE
Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of 36

months.

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime;
shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court (set forth below}; and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1. The defendant shall report in person to the Probation Office in the district to which the defendant is released as soen as
possibla, but in no event, latar than 72 hours of release from the custedy of the Bureau of Prisons.
2. If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs, or restitution ohligation, it shall be a condition of supervised release

that the defendant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and restitution that remain unpaid at the commencement of the
term of supervised release.

3. The datendant shall not own or possess a firearm, destructive device, or other dangerous weapon.

4, The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of testing and treatment {to includa inpatient) for drug and alcohol
abuse, as directed by the Probation Officer, until such time as released from the program by the Probation Officer.

5. The defendant shall submit to a search conducted by a United Statas Probation Cfficer of his person, residencs, vaehicla, offica

and/or businass at a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, based upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or gvidence
of a violation of a condition of release. Failure to submit to 2 search may be grounds for revocation. The defendant shall not
reside at any location without having first advised other rasidents that the premises may be subject to searches pursuant to
this condition. Additionally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other residents that said residents
acknowledge the existence of this condition and that their failure to cooperate could result in revocation. This

o~ acknowledgement shall be provided to the U. S. Probation Office immediately upon taking residency.
£ The defendant shall abide by the "Special Financial Conditions® enumeratsd in Mlscellaneous Ordar Number M-128, filed with
S " thé Clark of the Court on March 18, 1992,

7. The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of domastic violence counseling, as directed by the Probation Office,

until such time as released from the program by the Probation Office.
STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on supervised release pursuant to this judgment, the defendant shall not commit another {ederal, state,
or local crime. In addition:

1) The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer.

2] The defendant shall repart to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and
complete written report within the first five days of each month.

3) Tha defendant shall answer truthfully all inquirias by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.

4} The defendant shail support his or her dependents and meet other family raspaonsibilities.

5} The defendant shall work regularly at a lawful ocoupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or athar
acceptable reasons.

8) The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or amplicyment.

7}  The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or administer any
narcotic or other controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, excapt as prescribad by a physician.

8) The defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances are illegaily sold, used, distriblted, or administered.

9] The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal 2ctivity, and shall not associate with any parson convicted
of a felony uniess granted permission to do so by the probation officer. _

10} The defendant shail permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at homa or slsewhera and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband obsarved in plain view by the probation officer.

11} The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-twa hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement
officer.

f,-J\Z) The defendant shail not enter into any agreemsnt to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enfarcement agency without
! A the permission of the court,

13) As dirscted by the probation officer, the defendant shal! notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s
criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall parmit the probation officer to make such notifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement.

14} The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as diracted by the U. 5. Probation Office.
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Judgment--Page 4 of 6
¢ efendant: STANLEY LEE WOOD
Jase Number: 97-CR-175-001-K

FINE

The Court has determined that the defendant does not have the ability to pay interest, and it is
accordingly ordered that the interest requirement is waived.

The defendant shail pay a fine of $ 5,000, as to Count 2. This fine shall be paid in full immediately.
Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate
Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid during the
term of supervised release,

If the fine is not paid, the court may sentence the defendant to any sentence which might have been
originally imposed. See 18 U.S.C, § 3614. _
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Judgment--Page 5 of 6
¢ “efendant: STANLEY LEE WOOD

Case Number: 97-CR-175-001-K

RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE

"RESTITUTION
The defendant shall make restitution in the total amoun.t of $375.

The defendant shall make restitution to the following persons in the following amounts:

Name of Payee Amount of Restitution

Katherine Wood $375
cfo F.L.U., U.S. Attorney’s Office
Northern District of Oklahoma

Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Qklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s).

A Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while
" .n custedy through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from
~custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid as a condition of super\nsed release,

[f a victim has received compensation from insurance or any other source with respect to a loss, any
restitution ordered shall be paid to the person who is a victim before any restitution is paid to any such
provider of compensation.

Any payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise specified here.
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Judgment--Page 6 of 6
" Mefendant: STANLEY LEE WOOD

Case Number: 97-CR-175-001-K

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 12

Criminal History Category: |

Imprisonment Range: 10 months to 16 months
Supervised Release Range: 2 t0 3 years

Fine Range: $ 3,000 to § 30,000
Restitution: $ 375

The sentence departs from the guideline range for the fallowing reason{s): Inadequacy of Criminal
History Category based on prior similar criminal conduct not resuiting in criminal conviction, pursuant to
USSG 84A1.3{d). The Court takes into consideration the defendant’s uncontroverted history of spousal
abuse and assaultive conduct on others that did not result in criminal history points. Based on this conduct,
the Court adds one criminal history point, resuiting in a Criminal History Category of 1l as opposed to |,
providing for a departure of sentencing range of 12-18 months.

~




.

AQ 245 S (Rev. 7/93}(N.D. Okla. rev.) Sheet 1 - Judgment in a Criminal Case

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

i Northern District of Oklahoma  ENTERED ON DOCKET
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA | DATE C:/Q/qg
V. ' Case Number 97-CR-173-003-K
| F L
MAULDIN ALEXANDER RAY JR. . E ‘D
Defendant. JUN 1.
- Py £ 1998
JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE Ug é’,osf;?,ba,d;
{For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987) RICT éo%'g;;f

The defendant, MAULDIN ALEXANDER RAY JR., was represented by William E. Hughes.
On motion of the United States the court has dismissed Counts 2 & 3 of the Indictment.

The defendant pleaded guilty to Count 1 of the Indictment, January 28, 1898. Accordmgly. the
defendant is adjudged guilty of such count, involving the following offense:

Data (ffense Count
Title & Section Natura of Offensa Concluded Number(s)
£ 18 UsSC 3N "~ Conspiracy to Travel Interstate to 6/1/97 1

Aid in a Racketesring Enterprise

As pronounced on June 4, 1998, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 4 of this
Judgment, The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 100, for
Count 1 of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the _ / 8 day of ﬂgm . 1998.

I

The"Honoratﬁ Terry C7 Kern, Chief
United States District Judge

efendant’s SSN: 441-58-9674
I_Befenda_nt's Date of Birth: 8/10/52 . _ _
Defendant’s mailing address: 119 W. 3rd Street, #3, Okmulgee OK 74447
Defendant’s residence address: 12 & 12 Halfway House
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Judgment--Page 2 of 4

Case Number: 97-CR-173-003-K

PROBATION
The defendant is hereby placed on probation for a term of three {3} years.

While on probation, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime; shall not

illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted
-by this court (set forth below}; and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

If this judgment imposas a fine, special assessment, costs or restitution obligation, it shall be a condition of probation that the
defendant pay any such fine, assessment, costs and restitution.

Tha defendant shall not ewn or possess a firearm, destructive device, or other dangerous weapon.

The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of testing and treatmant (to include inpatient) for drug and alechal
abuse, as directed by the Probation Officer, until such time as released from the program by the Probation Officer.

The defendant shall be placed on home detention to inciude electronic monitoring at the discration of tha L. 5. Probation Office
for a period of 6 months, to commence within 72 hours of release from inpatient treatment. During this time, the defendant
shall remain at place of residence axcept for employment and other activities approved in advance by thae probation office.
The defendant shall maintain a telephone at place of residence without any special services, modems, answering machines,
or cordless telephones for the above period. The defendant shall wear an electronic device and shall observe the rules
specified by the Probation Office. The entire cost of this program shall be paid by the defendant.

The defendant shall submit to a search conductsd by a United States Probation Officer of his person, residenca, vehicle, office
and/or business at a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, based upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence
of a violation of a condition of release, Failure to submit to a search may be grounds for revocation. The defendant shall not
rasida at any location without having first advised other residents that the premises may be subject to searches pursuant to
this condition. Additionally, the defendant shall obtain written verrflcatlon from othar residents that said residents
‘acknowledge the existence of this condition and that their failure to Gooperate ¢ould result in revocation. This
acknowledgement shall be provided to the U. S, Probation Office immediately upen taking residency.

The defandant shall parfoarm 100 hours of community service, as directed by the Probation Office.

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF PROBATION

While the defendant is on probation pursuant to this judgmant, tha defendant shall not commit another federal, state or local

crime. In addition:

1)
2)

3
4)
B}

6)
I)

8)
9)

13}

11)

The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer.

The defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and

compiete written report within tha first five days of esch month.

The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.

The defandant shall support his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities.

The defendant shall work regularly at a lawful occupation unless excused by the probation efficer for schooling, training, or other

acceptable reasons.

The defendant shall notify tha probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or employment.

The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchese, possess, use, distribute or administer any

narcotic or other controlled substance, or any paraphernalia refated 10 such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.

The defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances are iflegally sold, used. distributed, or administered.

The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any parson cenvicted.

of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer.

The defendant shall permit a probation officer 1o visit him or har 2t any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation

of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer.

The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or guestioned by a law enforcement

officer. '

The defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without

the permission of the court.

As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s

criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit tha probaﬂon officer to make such notifications and to
confirm the defandant's compliance with such notification requirement.

The defendant shall submit to urinaiysis testing as diracted by the U. S. Probation Office.
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£ Defendant: MAULDIN ALEXANDER RAY JR.
"~ Case Number: 97-CR-173-003-K

FINE
The Court has determined that the defendant does not have the ability to pay interest, and it is
accordingly ordered that the interest requirement is waived.
The defendant shall pay a fine of $ 500, as to Count 1. This fine shall be paid in full immediately.
Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while in custody through the Bureau of Prisens’ [nmate

Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid during the
term of supervised release. : '

If the fine is not paid, the court may sentence the defendant to any sentence which might have been
originally imposed. See 18 U.S.C. § 3614.
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~ _ o Judgment--Page 4 of 4
* Jefendant: MAULDIN ALEXANDER RAY JR.

Case Number: 97-CR-173-003-K

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Gffense Level: 10

Criminal History Category: |

Imprisonment Range: 6 months to 12 months
Supervised Release Range: 210 3 vears

Fine Range: $ 2,000 to $ 20,000
Restitution: $ n/a

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the Court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.
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. ' _ JUDGMENT DA
This matter came before the Court upon Defendant's motion to vacate set aside or correct

sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255, The Court duly considered the tssues and rendered a decjston

herein.
R - IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that judgment is hereby
entered for Plaintiff and against Defendant.
SO ORDERED THIS 7~~~ day of N pe 1998
DL A /
THOMAS R. BRETT, Senior Judge
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FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAI-ION[A -

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 3 FILED 4/)
)
Plaintiff, ) JUN =~ 2 1998 {L
) NeBonarn O Lormparst. Slere
JAMES DAVID THORNBRUGH, ) -
) _ENTERED ON DOCKET
Defendant ) ‘; ; e

ORDER
Before the Court is the pro se Defendant James David Thombrugh's amended motion to
vacate, set aside, or correct sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255 (Docket #113 and 114). Plaintiff

United States of America has filed its response brief (#120) and Defendant has filed a rebuttal to that

response (#121). Also before the Court is Defendant’s "Petition for Remission of Assessment”

~ {#112), which the Court construes as setting forth an additional clatm under 28 US.C. § 2255,

Defendant has also filed a "Motion Pursuant to Rule 8(d)" (#122) asserting that Plaintiff failed to
deny the allegations of the § 2255 motion; thu; Defendant argues, such allegations should be deemed
admitted.

After reviewing the entire reeord in this case, the Court has determined t.hat an evideﬁtiary
hearing is not necessary and that the motion pursuant to §2255, including the claim set forth in
Defendant’s Petition for Remission of Assessment, lacks merit and should be demed. Defendant’s
motion pursuant to Rule 8(d) should also be denied.

BACKGROUND
In an indictment filed on May 3, 1989, Defendan’; was charged with three counts of armed

bank robbery in violation of 18 U.8.C. §§ 2113(a) and (d) and three counts of using and carrying a
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 firearm during or in relation to a crime of violence, in violation of 18 U.8.C. § 924(c). These charges

' arose out of the armed robberies of three Tulsa financial institutions: the Local America Savings &

Loan on January 6, 1989, the Continental Federal Savings & Loan Association on January 24, 1989,
and the Village South National Bank on March 11, 1985,

The government’s key witness at tna. was Gary Sewell who testified that he was Defendant’s
accomplice in the robberies. Sewell was a carpenter who Worked for Defendant a construction
foreman, on homebuilding projects in south Tulsa. Sewell pled guilty to two of the robberies
pursﬁant toa f)lea agreement which included his obligetion to teﬁtify at Defendant’s trial. Sewell
testified that at each robbery he stood by the bank’s front door and Defendant ran around or jumped
over the teller counter and emptied the bahk’s.registers. He also testified that he and Defendant wore
brown gloves and masks made from dark pantyhose and carried loaded guns at each robbery.

Sewell 8 testimony and other ewdence at tnal revealed that on January 6, 1989, Defendant
& Loan. After robbing the bank in less than three minutes, they ran to the pickup, passing a mail
carrier. As they drove away D_efendanf pointed his gun at fhe mail carrier, who had begun following
them. |

Defendant and Sewell drove in Sewe_il’s silver Camero to the Continental Federal Savings &
Loan on January 24, 1989. Again, they Were in the bank for less than three' minutes, and drove away
in the Camero to Defendant’s pickup, which they had previously parked in a nearby parking lot.

| Defendant then lefi in his truck, taking the money, guns, and masks. Sewell drove the Camero to an
apartment complex, where he was to meet Defendant to split the money. A police officer questioned

Sewell at the apartments, and upon searching the Camero he found Defendant’s boots, belt, wallet
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" and Sewell parked Defendant’s Chevrolet plclcup a few blocks away ‘From the Loca.l ‘America Sawngs R




and driver’s license. Sewell was rot atrested at that time.

On March 11, 1989, befé_n&aﬁt and 'Sé\_s}en drove m the Village South National Bank in an
orange or brown Ford Pinfo that Sewell bought to use in the robbery. They robbed the bank as
before, then Defendant drove the Pinto to a Ford LTD which they had parked in the same
neighborhood prior to the robbery. A Secfet Service Agent, Thomas McDade, had been present with
friends in an office in the bank during the robbery. After the robbers left the bank, McDade and Larry
Choate, president of Village South National Bank, pursued the robbers at a distance in McDade’s car.
The robbers drove to the LTD and Sewell put the money, guns and masks in the trunk of the LTD
and then drove to the pickup and dropped off Defendant. Both McDade and Choate obse;'ved the
license tag on the truck which Defendant drove oﬁ’,. and they recalled the tag as Kansas number
CU 151. Both witnesses testified that a trailer hitch obscured their view of the middle character on

the tag, but that the other characters were easily legible. McDade and Choate chose to follow Sewell

in th.e'I:TD.', and he was .subséqﬁeﬁtljr': arrested by locélfpo.licé‘ Thepohce recovered a number of

items from the Ford LTD, including a loaded Browning .380 automatic, a loaded Don Wesson .357
revolver, extra ammunition, two black nylon stocking masks, two pairs of brown gloves, two baseball
caps and $1,647 in cash. When Defendant was arrested a few dﬁys later at his home, .FBI Agent Jo |
Deatherage observed a Chevrolet pickup parked in the driveway with Kansas tag CUI-151.

Several eyewitnesses to the robberies testified and described the robber who took the cash
as between five-ten and six-two. Defendant is about six-two. No eyewitness except Sewell placed
Defendant at the scene of any of the robberies. Defendant offered several alibi witnesses, including
his father, wife, co-workers and employees, employer, and his employer’s wife, who confirmed his

alibis for each of the robberies.




- Defendant was convicted on all counts. On fhe three robbery counts, the Court sentenced

" Defendant according to the Sentencing Guidelines as a career offender with a total offense level of

34 and a crimunal history level of IV, resulting in an imprisonment range of 262 t0 327 months. With
respect to the gun charges, the Court construed § 924(;) to require a mandatory sentence of five
years on the first éount' and enhanced sentences of twenty years for each of the subsequent
convictions. Thus, Defendant received an additional forty-five years (540 montils) on the § 924(c)
gun charges. When added to the guideline range for the robberiés, this produced a possible sentence
range of 802 to 867 months. However, the Court departed downward to a total of 543 months based
on its conclusion that the Sentencing Commission did not adequately consider the effect of the
cﬁmulative sentence of 45 years mandatory imprisonment as it .related to the minimum guideliﬁes
range required on the robbery counts.

On appeal, Defendant raised several challenges to his conviction and also argued that his
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sentence was improperly enhanced under § 924(c). The government cross-appealed alleging error

in the downward departure. The UI.S. Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit ("Tenth Circuit")
ordered rehearing en banc in this case and in United States v, Abreau limited to consideration of the
proper interpretation of the enha'ncé.m'ent provision in § 924({c). In a separate opinion, the Tenth
Circuit addressed Defendant’s claims relating to his conviction:

(1) The prosecutor’s rémarks_during closing arguments violated his due process rights;

(2) Newly discovered evidence merited a new trial;

(3) The government wrongly withheld exculpatory evidence;

(4) The prosecution improperlx_} alluded to his prior bank robbery convictions; and

(5) The cumulative errors at trial required reversal,
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The Tenth Circuit addressed each of these issues and affirmed Defendant’s conviction. [lmted_

) tgteg V. Thgrnbg;g 962 F 2d 1438 (10th Cll‘ 1992)

Upon its consideration of the § 924(c) enhancement issue on rehearing en banc, the Tenth
Circuit concluded that a defendant may not receive an enhanced sentence under § 924(0) for a second

or subsequent convrctron unless the offense underlymg this conviction took place after a Judgment

_of conviction had been entered on the prior offense. Um:ed States v, &b[ﬁﬂ 962 F 2d 1447, 1453

'(10th Cir. 1992) {en banc) The Tenth Circuit therefore reversed Defendant’s enhanced sentence and
remanded his case for resentencing. Because of the remand, the Court did not address the
government’s cross-appeal challenging the downward departure. Thornbrugh, 962 F.2d at 1441 n.1.

The United States Supreme Court vacated the judgments in the consolidated cases and

remanded them to the Tenth Circuit for further consideration in light of Deal v. United States, 508

U S. 129 (1993) U ];ﬂ Slﬂga V. Abrggu 508 U.S. 935 (1993) In Deal the Supreme Court held

_ that a second conviction for purposes of § 924(0) could occur when two offenses were charged in

the same indictment and the defendant was convicted of both offenses in the same trial. On remand,
the Tenth Circuit found no meaningfil basis to distinguish the facts in Deal from those in Defendant’s
and Abreau’s cases. Thus, the Tenth Circuit vacated its earlier decisions and affirmed the enhanced
sentences given to Defendant; the separate decision disposing of the other issues challenging
Defendant’s conviction remained unaffected United States v. Abreu, 997 F.2d 825, 826 (10th Cir.
1993) {(en banc). o

On July 7, 1992, after the Tenth .Circuit’.s remand for resentencing in April 1992 but before
the Supreme Court’s reversal in May, 1993, this Court resentenced Defendant to 262 months on the

bank robbery counts plus consecutive sixty months sentences on each of the three § 924(c)




GOIlVICthl’lS for a total of 442 months, Defendant appealed and also moved for clarification of the

+ en banc order a.ﬂirrrnng the initial sentence The Tenth Circuit vacated the second sentence entered

in July, 1992, United States v. Thgmbg;gh No. 92-5145, 1993 WL 413668 (IO‘th Cir. Oct. 18,

1993), and also addressed the government S cross- appeal regardmg the downward departure wrth

respect to the first sentence. Ilrn;ted Staj,g Ifl_rggr_r rugh, 7 F.3d 1471, 1472 n.1 (10th Crr 1993)

* The Tenth Circuit reversed the ﬁrst sentence and held that thrs Court’s downward departure
on the robbery charges by 259 months from the minimum guideline range was an incorrect application
of the guidelines. The Tenth Circuit coneluded that Defendant’s life expectancy and the cumulative
effect of the mandatory 540 month sentences on the § 924(c) charges when added to the robbery
sentences were not factors justifying departure from the guideﬁnes rn this case. Id. at 1474.

On remand, this Court found a base offense level of 25 and criminal history of 111, which gave
a gdideline range of 70-84 months for each robbery count. The Court sentenced Defendant to 70
months on each of the: t}rree :ro'b_be'r‘j,r. charges to rarr'corxeurrerrtly,. plus 'the' :ﬁaddater.jrhsm pronths eri
the § 924(c) charges, for a total of 610 months. In arriving at the sentence, the Court increased
Defendant’s base offense level for each of the three robb_ery counts pursuant to U.8.8.G. § 3B1.1(¢c),
which provides for a two-level increase if the defendant was "an organizer, leader, manager, or

supervisor” of the offense. Defendant appealed, challenging this enhancement as unsupported by the

- evidence. The Tenth Circuit affirmed the s_erltence, finding that the evidence provided "ample support

for the district court’s finding that Thornbrugh exercised the requisite control to be considered an
organizer, leader, manager, or supervisor." United States v. Thornbrugh, No. 94-5118, 1995 WL

216924 at *2 (10th Cir. April 12, 1995),




Defendant has now moved to vacate, set aside, or ¢otrect sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §
2.2.55. In his ame.nded. motion, Defehdant éhallenges his cbhviction and .s.éntence on fhe fbllowing |
grounds:
(D ” Gr(.).ss' g(')'v.ernmehtal. rmsconduct, based dn.eig.ht listed gr.ou'nds; N
2 Ineﬁ'ecﬁve assistance of counsel at tﬁéi, bééed ﬁn s.ev.en. listed .grounds;
(3) In.eﬂ'ectiv.e assistance pf appellate counsel,
(4)  Ineffective assistance of counsel on his last direct éppeal, when Defendant wanted to
proceed pro se; and
(5) The Court lacked authority to resentence Defendant after appeal because his sentence
was not stayed by request of the government (this ground is not enumerated in the
original motion but was included in Defendant’s motion to amend, #114).

In addition, the Court construes Defendant’s "Petition for Remission of Assessment," filed

" on March '1.0,':' 1997, to set out a sixth claim: that his '6_1.3llilgatioh' to jj'a}.f TGStit.Li{i.(.J.n has.'.ekpil.'ed andlt N

may no longer be collected.

The govefnment respdnds that Defendant is pro'cedurally b&rred from réising his first ground
(goverﬁmental conduct) because he failed to raise it on appeél. Asto the.remaining grounds, fhe
government contends that they are without merit.

ANALYSIS
A. Defendant’s "Motion Pursuant to Rule 8(d)."

The Court first addresses Defendant’s Motion Pursuant to Rule 8(d) in which he contends that

the govemrrient's response to his § 2255 motion did not address all of his arguments and, thérefore,.

the Court should consider those matters admitted under Rule 8(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil




~ Procedure. The Court’s review of the government's i*espbnse, however, indicates that the

' government adequately addressed Defendant’s arguments. Further, the Court concludes that Rule

8(d) applies to factual averments, .not legal argument. See United States v. Krueger, No. 97-6262,
1998 WL 161070, at *2 (10th Cir. April 1, 1998). Thus, the Court finds this motion to be without
merit. .
B. Claim 1: Gross Governmental Misconduct
L Claims 1(b) and (e) are barred as already adjudicated.
Defendant_lists eight ground.s _under the heading "gross governmental misconduct” alleging

in summary that the prosecution made prejudicial pre-trial statements to the media, withheld

| exculpatory evidence, and knowingly put on witnesses who lied (Sewell and FBI agent Deatherage).

Plaintiff raises the issue of procedural bar with respect to these claims.

The Court initially notes that several of Defendant’s grounds of governmental misconduct

| wem in fact, raised and disposéd of on direct appea.l In his claim 1(b), ﬁéfén&aﬁt contends that the

government intentionally failed to provide the defense with the correct location of the car switch
during the March 11 chase and failed to provide the names of two witnesses to the car switch, who
allegedly would have testified that the persons involved did not meet Defendant’s description.

Defense counsel raised this precise 1ssue in a motion for new trial, which was denied by this Court
because the testimony as to identiﬁcétion would have been cumulative and, in light of the record at
trial, would not have created a reasonable probability of a different outcome. (#58 at 8). The Tenth
Circuit affirmed this conclusion. Thgrnbru h, 962 F.2d at 1445. Defendant may not raise in a §
2255 motion issues that have already been adjudicated on direct appeal. United States v. Cox, 83

F.3d 336, 342 (10th Cir. 1996); United States v. Warner, 23 F.3d 287, 291 (10th Cir.1994).




Accordingly, Defendant is barred from now raising this issue.

" Defendant also alleges that FBI Agerit Deatherage changed her description of the pickup tised

in the robberies in two separate affidavits she made (claim 1(e)). In an affidavit dated March 13,

1989, Agent Deatherage described the truck identified by Agent McDade as used in the switch

* following the March 11 robbery as a "white GMC pickup with a Kansas tag." Tn an affidavit dated

April 12, 1989, Agent Deatherage stated that McDade observed a "tan and white Chevrolet pickup

with a Kansas tag CU- 151." Defense counsel raised this issue in the motion for new trial, which this

Court denied, noting that ample evidence at trial established the similarity of the two General Motors

brands and conctuding that Agent Deatherage’s second affidavit merely enlarged on her eérﬁer

staternent. On direct appeal, the Tenth Circuit affirmed that decision. Thormbrugh, 962 F.2d 1438

at 1444-45. Defendant is therefore barred from again raising this claim.

2

1(a).

1{c). .

1(d).
1(6).

(g).
1(h).

Claims 1(a), (c), (d), (-(h) are procedurally barred.

Defendant’s remaining six claims of "gross governmental misconduct" are as follows:

The U.S. Attorney was reported in the newspaper prior to trial as saying that
Defendant was a suspect in other states’ bank robberies, and he released Defendant’s
prior convictions to the media,

The government’s star witness (Sewell) lied about his deal with the government;

- The government knew that Sewell commutted perjury at trial;

The government withheld the second page of a police report referring to Sewell’s
changing car tags after the January 24th robbery;,
The government withheld the police reports on the March 11th robbery from defense;

Agent Deatherage lied about the condition of the pickup’s license tag.
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Defendant did not raise these issues on direct appeal, and the government asserts that he is

"+ procedurally barred from now presenting them on'a motion for collateral relief. It is well settled that =~

"[s]ection 2255 motions are not available to test the legality of matters which should have been raised
on direct appeal.” United States v. Warner, 23 F.3d 287, 291 (10th Cir. 1994) (citation omitted). |
Conseqﬁently, a defendant may not assert issues which were not raised in his direct appeal unless he
establishes cause for his default and prejudice resulting therefrom, or can show that a fundamentat
miscarriage of justice will occur if his claim is not addressed. United States v. Cook, 45 F.3d 388,
392 (10th Cir.1995). The procedural default rules developed in the context of habeas corpus cases
apply with equal force in § 2255 cases. United States v, Frady, 456 U.S. 152, 166-69 n. 15 (1982).

The "cause" standard requires a defendant to show that some objective factor external to the

- defense impeded his ability to raise an issue on direct appeal. See Murray v. Cargier, 477 U.S. 478,
488 (1986). Examples of such external factors include the discovery of new evidence or a change

in the law. Id. Ineffective assistance of counsel is another example of an external factor that may

constitute "cause" excusing a procedural default. Cook, 45 F.3d at 392. As for prejudice, a
defendant must show "‘actual prejudice’ resuiting f;om the errors of which he complains."Frady, 456
U.S. at 168 (1982). The "fundamental miscarriage of justice” exception requires a defendant to
demonstrate that he ié "actual_ly innocent" of the crime of which he was convicted. McCleskey v.
Zant, 499 U.S. 467, 494 (1991),

In his rebuttal to the government’s response raising the procedural bar, Defendant alleges

~ ineffective assistance of appellate counsel. Therefore, the Court examines whether Defendant’s

allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel constitute "cause" sufficient to overcome the

procedural bar as to his claims of gross governmental misconduct.

L0




' performande was deficient and thal the deficient pecformance Was prejudicial. ~ Strickland v

To establish ineffective assistance of counsel a defendant must show that his counsel's

Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 687 (198_4)._ Although t.hje Str_iqkl_gnd test was formul_a_ted_in_ the context
of evaluating a cl.aim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel, the same test is applied in assessing
the ineffectiveness of appellate counsel. Cook, 45 F.3d at 392.

Because the procedural bar is imposed due to Defendant’s failure to raise his claims oh direct
appeai, the Court must examine the merits_ of the issﬁes omitted.upon appeal. Id. If the omitted
issues are without merit, counsel's failure to raise them does not amount to bonstitutionally ineffective
assistance of counsel, Id. at 393,

a. Clim 1(a): Assistant U.S. Attorney’s statements to media.
Defendant maintains that the government intentionally prejudiced the jury against him by

releasing information about his criminal background to the media. He cites as proof an article in the

“Tulsa World on March 16, 1989, the day following Deféndant’s arrest, which quotes Assistant U.S.
- Attorney Ben Baker as saying that Defendant was a convicted bank robber. The paper also reported

that "[i]nvestigators said they consider Sewell and Thombrugh suspects in several recent bank

robberies " Defendant alleges that the government’s actions prejudiced the jury against him, as
evidenced during voir dire because several jurors reported reading about the case in the newspaper.

While the Constitution guarantees a defendant "a fair trial by a panel of impartial, 'indifferent'
jurors”, Irvin v, Dowd, 366 U.S. 717, 723 (1961), some pre-trial publicity in local criminal cases is
inevitable. The publicity impacts defendant’s rights only when it "dictates the community's opinion

as to guilt or innocence.” United States v, Abello-Silva, 948 F.2d 1168, 1176 (10th Cir. 1991).

Il




Whether a jury harbors prejudice related to pretrial publicity is best defermined during voir

 dire examination. Id. at 1177. During voir dire in this case, the Court conducted a thorough inquiry

into whether any prospective juror had been exposed to pretriallpUbl'icity, Out of the seven jurors on

the panel who responded that they had learned of the robberies through the media, only two served

- on the jury hearing Defendant’s case. Further, those two had assured the Court that their prior

exposure to the newspapers would not prevent them from serving as fair and impartial jurors and
deciding the case based on the evidenc.e presented at trial. Certainly, the newspaper report to which
Defendant cites.falls far short of demonstrating the pervasive media influence that requires a change
of venue. Cf. e.g., Sheppard v. Maxwell, 384 1J.S. 333 (1966) (pre-trial publicity filled 5 ;folumes
of news clippings in a six month period); Estes v. Texas, 381 U.S. 532 (1965) (massive pre-trial

publicity totaled 11 volumes of press clippings); Rideau v. Louisiana, 373 U.S. 723 {1963)

(defendant's confession to the sheriff was filmed and televised on the local news). Thus, Defendant’s

claim that the goirenuﬂént’s pretrial statements unfairly pfejudiced his trial is without merit and his

appellate counsel did not err in failing to raise it.
b. Claims 1(c) and (d): Sewell lied at trial with governmental knowledge.
Defendant alléges that Seweﬂ, thé "government’s sfar wifness" (#114, at 4), lied ab.out the
deal he had with the government, and the prosecution did not adequately explain to the jury the terms
of Sewell’s plea agreement. Further, Defendant alleges that Sewell was "caught in several lies on the
stand” (#114, at 5), and was the only persen to place Defendant at the scene of the crimes.
The Court concludes that these claims of governmental misconduct are without merit.
Defense counsel subjected Sewell to lengthy and vigorous cross-examination which exposed several

inconsistencies in his testimony. Defense counsel also questioned Sewell specifically about his plea
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agreement (Tr. of Jury Trial at 452-55). While fio witnesses to the robbery identified Defendant as
bné'of the r.obbe.rs because of the black'E 'ph.htyhOSe.ﬁ'lés'.k"hé \;{rt}ré, SéWéll’é' té.stimb.ny' that Déféﬁdan‘t
was the other robber was corroborated by other evidence, such as the items of Defendant found in
the getaway cars and the car tag leading authorities to the pickup Defendant drove. On appeal, the
Tenth Circuit f:onﬁn‘ned this Court’s conclusion that "there was more than sﬁfﬁcient evidence for the
jury to return a guilty verdict." Thornbrugh, 962 F.2d at 1446, Thus, counsel did not err in failing
to raise these issues and Defendant has failed to show cauée sufficient to overcome the ﬁrocédural
bar.
e Claims 1(f) and .(g): Suppression of police reporis.

Defendant alleges that the government withheld the second page of the police report on the
January 24th robbery dealing with Sewell’s changing car tags, and withheld policé reports on the
March 11th robbery. Defendant _contend_s that "crucial informatiqn” could have been contained in
thosereports. (4114,at8).

"[T]he suppression by the prosecution of evidence favorable to an accused upon request
violates due process where the evidence is material either to guilt or to punishment, irrespective of
the good faith or bad faith of the prosecution." United States v. Page, 828 F.2d 1476, 1479 (10th
Cir. 1987) (quoting Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83, 87 (1963)). Suppressed evidence is deemed
material if there is a reasonable probability that, had the evidence been disclosed to the defense, the
result of the proceeding would have been different. Id,

Defendant’s conclusory statements that the.ée reports may have .contained "crucial
information" wholly fails to convince the Court that such evidence would be materiai. The police

officers who arrested Sewell and who investigated the March 11th robbery testified at trial. Defense
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~ counsel also was provided with the statements given to police by the witnesses to that robbery, as

~"evidenced by counsel’s use of those statements in cross-examination of those witnesses (see, e g, Tr.

of Jury Trial at 215-17; 225-229; 254). In addition, defense counsel was provided with the tape of
Secret Service Agent McDade’s conversation with the Mgh'way patrol as he and the bank president
pursued the robbers after the March 11th robbery, and counsel used this .in cross-examination.
Further, any information about Sewell changing his license tag after the second robbery would be
merely cumulative, as Sewell himself testified that he changed license tags on his Camero (used as
the getaway car) before and after the March 11th robbery. (Tr. of Jury Trial at 363-64).

Accordingly, the Court concludes that Defendant’s claims that the government suppressed

material exculpatory evidence are without merit, and appeliate counsel’s performance was not

deficient iq failing to raise these issues. Because Defendant has failed to establish cause for the,
default, these claims are procedurally barred.
4 Claim 1(: Agent Deatherage lied about the condition of the pickup’s tag.
Exhibit E of Defendant’s aménded 2255 motion purports to be a series of affidavits from
mndividuals who state that the license tag on Defendant’s pickup was battered and almost impossible
to read prior to March 15, 1989, when Agent Deatherage noted the tag number at the time of
Defendant’s arrest. She testified that the characters on the tag were distinct and clear, although they
were somewhat scratched in the middle. (Tr. of Jury Trial at 641). Defense counsel cross-examined
Agent Deatherage as to her recollection of the tag’s condition, and presented other evidence relating
to the allegedly battered condition of the tag, including the license tag ttself. The veracity of a
witniess’ testimony is a matter solely for the jury to decide, and the Court concludes that counsel did

not err in failing to raise this claim on appeal. Therefore, this claim is procedurally barred.
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The only other avenue by which Defendafit é4n have these claims reviewed is by showing that
Ca "ﬁ.mda.men.'.c.al ﬁiécéﬁage of ju'stic':é" w1li result if the brbcedufal bar is invoked. This exception
applies "in an extraordinary case, where a constitutional violation has probably resulted in the
| conviction of one who is actually innocent." Murray v. Carrier, 477 U.S. at 496 (1986). To meet
this exception, a defendant must show that the government has convicted the wrong person of the
crime such that "it is evident that the law has made a mistake." Sawver v. Whitley, 505 U.S. 333
(1992). Application of this exception is "rare” and Hmited to the "extraordinary case." See Schlup
v. Delo, 513 U.S, 298, 323-32 (1995}

Defendant does allege that he is actually innocent of the crimes and claims an alibi for each
robbery. Therefore, the Court must examine whe_ther this is one of those "extraordinary" cases in
which a fundamental miscarriage of justice will occur if the procedural bar is invoked.

| ”Tbjs inquiry involves thlfee prongs: (La constitutional violation; (2) a probable effect on
the jury's determination; and (3) the conviction of an innocent mah. " mm@m 958 F.2d
989, 995 (10th Cir, 1992). "[W]here the dsfendant shows no cause for failing to raise these claims
earlier, the defendant must show—at the threshold—both a constitutional violation and a colorable
showing of factual innocence. Factual innocence must mean at least sufficient claims and facts
that—had the jury considered them—probably would have convinced the jury that the defendaﬁt was
factually innocent." Id.

As discussed above, the Court determined that none of Defendant’s allegations of
constitutional violation had merit. Thus, _Defendant fails to meet the first prong of the
inquiry—establishment of a constitutional error—and there is no need to determine whether the

allepedly suppressed police reports or a lack of pretrial publicity would have probably convinced the
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jury that Defendant was factually mnocent Accordingly, the Court concludes that this is niot one of

those "rare and extra.ordmary cases where the fundamental rmscarnage ofj Jusnce exceptlon apphes

and Defendant remains procedurally barred from having these claims heard on his § 2255 motion.
C. Claim 2: Ineffective assistance of counsel at trial.

Defendant lists seven grounds to support his claim that trial counsel rendered ineffective
SEervice;

2.(a)~(c). Failure to investigate alibi witnesses for the January 24th robbery.

2(d). Failure to call witnesses requested by Defendant.

2(e). Failure to investigate Sewell’s cellmates who would impeach Sewell’s testimony.

2(f). Failure to investigate March 11th chase route and present two witnesses to the switch.

2(g). Failure to call witnesses to disprove Sewell’s and Deatherage’s testimony.

As previously noted, to establish ineffective assistance of counsel a defendant must show that
his counsel's pexfbnnance was deﬁéient and thét fﬁe deficient pérformaﬁée was prejudicial. | erigklgggi
v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 687 (1984); Oshorn v. Shillingef, 997 F.2d 1324, 1328 (IOth Cir.
1993). A defendant can establish the first prong by showing that counsel performed bélow the level
expected from a reasonably competent attorney in criminal cases. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-88.
To establish the second prong, a defendant nmust show that this deficient performance prejudiced the
defense, to the extent that "there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's unprofessional
errors, the result of the proceeding would have been different. A reasonable probability is a

also Lockhart v.

probability sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome." Id, at 694. See

Fretwell, 506 U.S. 364, 369-70 (1993).
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There is a “strong presumpnon that counsel’s conduct falls within the range of reasonable

""professxonal assistance " Strickland 466 U'S. at 688, T makmg thlS detemunatlon acourt must

“judge . . . [a] counsel's challenged conduct on the facts of the particular case, viewed as of the time

of counsel's conduct.” Id., at 690. Moréover, review of counsel's performance must be highly

deferential. “[I]t is all too easy for a court, examining counsel's defense after it has proved
unsuccessful, to conclude that a particular act or omission of counsel was unreasonable." Id, at 689.

Defendant’s allegations of ineffective assistance of trial counsel all relate to alleged failures
of counsel to investigate or present additional defense witnesses. While counsel has a duty to make
reasonable investigations or to make a reasonable decision that makes particular investigations
unnecessary, a particular decision not to investigate must be directly assessed for reasonableness in

all the circumstances, applying a heavy measure of deference to counsel's judgments. Strickland, 466

U S at 690 kaemse whether to call a pan lcular w1mess isa tacncal decxsmn and thus a matter of

dlscretlon for tna.! counsel Hn@d_&a&u_l@ggg, 720 F 2d 1156 1162 (lOth Cll‘ 1983) (cmng..
United States v. Miller, 643 F.2d 713, 714 (10th Cir.1981)). An attorney's decision not to interview
witnesses and to rely on other sources of information, if made in the exercise of professional

judgment, is not ineffective counsel. United States v_Glick, 710 F.2d 639, 644 (10th Cir. 1983).

The Court’s review of the trial proceedings establishes that the performance of Defendant’s
attorney was well within the wide range of professionally competent assistance. Defense counsel
called sixteen witnesses to support Defendant’s alibis for the three robberies. Defendant now
contends that his counsel’s performance was constitutionally deficient because he failed to investigate
or call three additional witnesses who would have supported Defendant’s alibi that he was in

Coffeyville, Kansas looking for a truck on January 24 (claims 2{a)-(c)). Defendant asserts that these
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witnesses would have placed Defendant at two car dealers}ups and a liquor store in Coﬂ‘eyw]le and

o Sycamore Kansas on J; anuary 24. Defendant states that l'ns attorney sald that the sa.lespersons did

not remember Defendant (§ 2255 Brief at 3).

Defendant’s father did testify that Defendant was with him on that day in Kansas and that they
together went to shop for a new truck around 1:00 p-m. On cross-examination, however,
Defendant’s father admitted that Coffeyville was only about a T ¥ hour drive from Tulsa. Defendant
was accused of robbing the Continental Federal Savings & Loan around 11:30 a.m. Thus, it is
entirely reasonable for defense counsel to have determined that even had those additional Kansas
witnesses remembered Defendant, theit testimony rmight not have been probative as to whether
Defendant was not in Tulsa at 11:30 a.m. that day.

Defendant also asserts that he asked counsel to call several additional witnesses, but that

counsel decllned to call them because thelr testlmony would have been repetltlous or the cost of

obtammg the1r testlmony was too great (cialm Z(d)) Defendant corxtends that Steve Thomas should

have been brought from Hawaii to testiﬁf, but he does not explain the significance of Thomas’

- anticipated testimony. Other witnesses Defendant wanted were Allen Sewell and Sonny Mowry,

relatives of Sewell and "ene of [whom)]... was believed to have been the second robber” (§ 2255 Brief
at 10), and Sherry, Sewell’s girlfriend. Defendant alse contends that the boss of a construction
project talked to him during the time of the March 11th robbery but was not called to testify.

As noted earlier, defense counsel called numerous witnesses to provide alibis for the times of
the robberies. At least five witnesses testifiect that they saw Defendant at the construction site during
the relevant time on March 11. The testimony of additional alibi witnesses for this robbery may quite

well have been viewed by defense counsel as cumulative.
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Another witness called by defense counsel was a prisoner, Harold Henry Murray, who

 testified that Gary Sewell told him he was falsely implicating Defendant in the robberies. Defendant

contends that his attorney was.ineffective for failing to investigate other prisoners who might have
refuted Sewell’s testimony (claim 2(e)). However, the Court views as entirely reasonable counsel’s
élleged failure to investigate Sewell’s cellmates, whose testimony would have been merely cumulative
in refuting his account that Defendant participated in the robberies.

Moreover, in denying Defendant’s motion for new trial (filed by trial counset), this Court
previously determined that the tes'timony.df two witnesses along the escape route was cumulative and
probably would not have created a reasonable probability of a different outcome. The Tenth Circuit
affirmed that ruling. Thornbrugh, 962 F.2d at 1445, Thus, trial counsel did not err in failing to
investigate or present these witnesses (claim 2(f)).

Lastly, Defendant includes a blanket aflegation that “[t]here were other witnesses who should

~ have been there at trial, but counsel decided that 't'hey'Wé.r"e not needed... Also petitioner wanted

questions asked that never did get asked." Defendant contends that these witnesses and questions

would have disproved Sewell’s testimony and Agent Deatherage’s testimony about the condition of

the license tag (claim 2(g)).

From a review of the record, it is apparent that defense counsel went to great lengths to
advocate zealously Defendant’s innocence, even abtaining the testimony of an independent hair expert
to analyze hairs found in one of the stocking masks to attempt to show the possibility that a third
suspect might have worn it. It is clear that Defendant’s attorney was acting in an adversarial mode
throughout the trial, and the Court will not now second-guess defense counsel’s strategic decision

to not investigate or call additional witnesses or o not ask certain questions.
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Accordingly, Defendant has failed to persuadé the Court that his trial counsel’s performance

was outside the realm of a reasonably competent criminal attorney. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-88.

D. Claim 3: Ineffective assistance of counsel on appeal.

Defendant does not provide any basis for this claim. As previously discussed, the Court
determined that appellate counsel did not err in failing to raise Defendant’s claims of governmental
misconduct. Further, the Court’s review of the record demonstrates that appellate counsel was
successiful in initially obtaining reversal of Defendant’s enhanced sentence on the firearms counts,
even though the Supreme Court subseq'uently announced a contrary interpretatton. Defendant has
not alleged any specific grounds showing that his appellate counsel's performance was deficient of
that any deficient performance was prejudicial.  Accordingly, this claim is without merit. Strickland,
466 U.S. at 687 (1984); Cook, 45 F.3d at 392.

E. Cla.i.m_.4: Ineffe;:t_ive assistancé of co;insel on most recent appeal;

" Defendant contends that he made it clar that b wanted to proeeed pro se on Iislatest appeal
{after his resentencing on remand) and he filed a list of issues he wanted to be considered on appeal.
However, the Tenth Circuit denied Defendant’s motion to dismiss appointed counsel. See,
Thombrugh, 1995 WL 216924 at *1. Defendant claims that appointed counsel refused to raise the
issues Defendant wanted raised on appeal. Defendant attaches a letter he wrote to appellate counsel
containing a list of new witnesses and alleged governmental and counsel errors, many of which he
raised in this proceeding. (§ 2255 motion, Ex. 1F-4F). Defendant also apparently wanted to raise
a jurisdictional issue which appellate counsel believed 1o have no merit. (§ 2255 motion, Ex. SF-7F),

After reviewing the issues that Defendant want?:d raised on appeal, the Court is unconvinced

that appellate counsel performed below the level expected from a reasonably competent attorney.
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Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-88. Moreover, Defetitdiant has not established any prejudice resuiting
from aﬁpellate coﬁnsel’s failure to raise his desi.red issues, to the extent "thefe is a reasoﬁable
probability that, but for counsel's unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding would have been
different." Id. at 694; Lockhart v. Fretwell 506 U.S. 364, 369-70 {1993). On the contrary, this
Court concludes that there is little, if any, chance that the Tenth Circuit would have reversed
Defendant’s convictions based upon the issues Defendant wanted to raise.

Defendant’s allegations, construed liberally as required by Haines v. Kerner, 404 U.S. 519,

520 (1972), also may be read asa chall'enge to the Tenth Circuit’s denial of his motion to dismiss
counsel. While a defendant has a constitutional and statutory right to waive his right to counsel,
Faretta v, California, 422 U.S. 806 (1975) (right found in the Sixth Amendment) and 28 U.S.C. §
1654, the right to proceed pro se is not absolute. A court may deny a request for self-representation
as untime_:]y, United States v. Red_d__ eck, 22 F.3d _1 504, 1510-11(10th Cir. 1994). Here, once
befeﬁdaﬁt elected to waive the constit:utiﬁnﬁl ;‘i.ght to. ciefeﬁa hirn.seif,.he does not ﬁavé an uﬁli.mit.ed. |
right to thereafter change his mind and seek self-representation. See United States v. Merchant, 992
F 2d 1091, 1095 (10th Cir.1993). Thus, the Tenth Circuit did not violate Defendant’s rights to self-
representation by denying his motion to dismiss counsel on direct appeal.
F. Claim 5: Illegal sentence,

Defendant’s next claim is that his sentence is illegal because it had expired during the various
appeals and the government did not file a stay of sentence; therefore, the court was not entitled to
resentence Defendant or increase his sentence in accordance with the decision on remand. Defendant

cites no authority for this proposition.
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Stays in criminal cases are governed by Rule 38, Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. See,

Rule 8(0), Fed. R. App,' P. Rule 38'(5)\'pll'ovid.és that " [a]. séﬁiénée of 'impr'iso.hr.neh't shall be stayed |

if an appeal is taken from the conviction or sentence and the defendant is released pending disposition
of appeal pursuant to Rule 9(b) of the Federal Rules of Appellate Procedure” (Rule 9(b) provides that
stays may be conditioned upon giving of a bond or other secufity) (emphasis added). |
Defendant correctly maintains that his sentence was not stayed during the appeals, because
Defendant remained in federal custody during that time. However, Defendant is clearly mistaken in
contending that his sentence expired before resentencing. Defendant was initially sentenced in 1989
to a total of 543 months (almost 47 vears) imprisonment, In 1992, following the first remand,
Defendant was sentenced to 442 months (almost 37 years). In 1994, following the final remand,

Defendant was sentenced to 610 months (almost 51 years). Defendant’s sentence did not expire

dunng the five years pending final disposition of the appeals in his case, and the Court committed no

error in resentencing Defendant in aécor&ance wi;ch the decisions on reniand. Aééﬁrdingly,
Defendant’s claim that his sentence is illegal is without merit.
G. Request to vacate imposition of restitution.

In his Eetition for Remission of Assessment, which the Court construes as setting forth an
additional claim pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255, Detfendant contends thaf the restitution assessed by
the Court as part of his sentence is "beyond the five year limit on assessments, and can no longer be
collected by law." Defendant refers to 28 U.S.C. § 1355 and 18 U.S.C. § 3013(c) in support of this
claim.

As part of the judgment and sentence entered May 9, 1994 after remand, Defendant was

ordered to pay restitution in the amount of $18,399 to repay the three banks which he was convicted
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of robbing. Defendant was held to be jointly and sevérally hiable for payment of restitution with his

 companion defendant, Gary Sewell.

The statutes cited by Defendant do not support the proposition that his obligation to pay
restitution has expired. His first authority, 28 U.S.C. § 1355, governs proceedings related to civil
fines, penalties or forfeitures incurred pursuant to federal law .and is inapplicable to the instant
restitution obligation. Defendant’s second citation is to 18 U.S.C. § 3013. This statute sets out the
mandatory Special Assessment of $50 per felony conviction to be imposed upon persons convicted
of federal crimes; section: 3013(c) provides that the obligation to pay this assessment ceases five years
after the date of the judgment.

However, § 3013(c) does not apply to restitution orders, which are instead governed by 18

U.S.C. §§ 3663 and 3664 United States v. Coleman, 9 F.3d 1480, 1486 (10th Cir. 1993),

According to the pr_ovision in effect at the time Defendant was resentenced in 1994, the end of the
ﬁeriod dﬁring which the court céulél. ;t;qﬁire that befendaﬁt méke reﬁtitﬁtioh "shall ﬁot be l.ater.
than.. five years after the end of the term of imprisonment imposed, if the court dees not order
probation." 18 U.S.C. §3663(f)(2)(B) (1994). Clearly, Defendant is still serving his term of
imprisonment, and the restitution order remains in full force.
CONCLUSION
Defendant’s claims that his trial and appellate counsel provided ineffective assistance are

without merit. Defendant’s claims of gross governmental misconduct are either procedurally barred

or barred because they have been previously considered and disposed of on direct appeal. His claims

of illegal sentence and for remission of restitution are without merit. Therefore, the Court concludes

that Defendant’s motion to vacate, set aside, or correct sentence should be denied.
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ACCORDINGLY, IT IS HER_EBY ORDERED that:

- 1. Defendant's motion to vacate, set aside, or correct sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
§ 2255 (#113), as amended (#114), is denied.
2. Defendant’s "Motion Pursuant to Rule 8(d)" (#122) is denied.
3. Defendant’s "Petition for Remission of Assessment” (#112) is denied,
SO ORDERED THIS &~ day of‘w__ﬁ_w , 1998,
_THOMAS R. BRETT, Semor Judge
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
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S Northern District of Oklahoma
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

V. | . Case Number 97-CR- 090 Oté

DWAYNE ALBERT THORNHILL FILED
Defendant. -

JUN U5 1898
JUDGMENT iN A CRIMINAL CASE Phil Lombardi, Clerk

(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987. DISTRICT COURT
The defendant, DWAYNE ALBERT 'THORNHILL, was represented by Kent R, Hudsan.

The defendant pleaded guilty to Count 1 of the Indictment, February 12, 1998. Accordingly, the
defendant is adjudged guilty of such count, involving the following offense:

Date Offense Count
Title & Section Nature of Qﬁense . Concluded Number{s}
{—»\21 USC 846 Conspiracy to Manufacture and 6/8/97 1
DA Distribute Methamphetamine ' '
21 USC 841(al1) Possession With Intent to Distribute Methamphetamine  6/8/97 1

As pronounced on June 1, 1998, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of this
Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1834,

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 100, for
Count 1 of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

Itis further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or rmailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the ,d/ day of . _1 998_.

G

The onorage Terry_G7 Kern, Chief
United States District Judge

Defendant’'s SSN: 511-92-1491

Defendant’s Date of Birth: 12/31/71
Defendant’s residence and mailing address: 25880 Remington Ct., Tehachapi, CA 93561
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¢ fendant: DWAYNE ALBERT THORNHILL
~asé Number: 97-CR-080-001-K -

IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of 70 months.

The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: that the defendant be
placed in a Bureau of Prisons facility near Tehachapi, California.

The defendant shall surrender for service of sentence at the institution designated by the Bureau of
Prisons before July 1, 1998 at 12:00 p.m.

RETURN

[ have executed this Judgment as follows:

Defendant delivered on ta
f_,&"\\?t ' , with a certified copy of this Judgment.

-

United States Marshal

By

Deputy Marshal
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{_\ Judgment--Page 3 of b
“sfendant: DWAYNE ALBERT THOF_{NHILL

Zase Number: 97-CR-090-001-K
SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be an supervised release far a term of five {5)
years.

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime;
shall not illegaily possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court (set forth below); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1. The defendant shail report in parson to the Probation Office in the district to which the defendant is released as scon as
possible, but in no event, later than 72 hours of release from the custody of the Bureau of Prisons.
2. If this judgment imposas a fine, spsacial assessment, costs, or restitution obligation, it shall be a condition of supervised release

that the defendant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and restitution that remain unpaid at the commencement of the
term of supervised raleasa.

.3 The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm, destructive device, or other dangerous weapon.
4. The defendant shall participate in a program of mental health treatment {to include inpatient), as directed by the Prohation
Officer, untif such time as the defendant is released from the program by the Probation Officer.
5. The defendant shall submit to a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person, residence, vehicle, office

and/or husiness at a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, based upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence
of a viclation of a condition of release. Failure to submit to a search may be grounds for ravocatian. The defendant shall not
reside at any location without having first advised other residents that the premises may be subject to searches pursuant to
this condition. Additionally, the defendant shail cbtain written verification from othaer rasidents that said residents
f,—\ acknowledge the existence of this condition and that their failure to cooperate could result in revocataon This
: acknowledgement shall be pravided to the'U. S. Prehation Office immediately upon taking residency.
6. The defendant shall abide by the "Special Financial Tonditions” enumerated in Miscellaneous Order Number M-128, filed with
the Clerk of the Court on March 18, 1992,

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on supervised release pursuant to this judgment, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state,
ar local crime. In addition:

1} The defendant shall not lsave the judicial district without the parmission of the court or probation officer.
2}  The defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation afficar and shall submit a truthful and
complate written report within tha first five days of each month.
3}  The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.
4} The defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities. '
5] The defendant shall work ragularly at a fawful oécupation Unless excused by the probation officer for schocling, training, or other
accaptahle reasons.
6) The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residance or employment.
7) Thae defandant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or administar any
narcotic or other controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.
8} The defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances are illegally sold, used, distributad, or administered.
39} The defendant shall not associate with any persans engaged in criminal activity, and shail not associate with any person convicted
. of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officar.
10} The defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at homa or efsawhare and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer.
11} The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement
officer.
g’ 32} Tha defendant shall not enter into any agreamant to act as an mformer ora speclal agent of a law enforcement agency without
E ' the permission of the court.

- 13) As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s
criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit tha probation officer to make such notifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement.

14} The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the U. S. Probation Office.
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® “sfendant: DWAYNE ALBERT THORNHILL
 ase Number: 97-CR-090-001-K '

FINE

The defendant shall pay a fine of $ 2,560C, as to Count 1. This fine shall be paid in full immediately.
Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate
Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid during the
term of supervised release,

: If the fine is not paid, the court may sentence the dsfendant to any sentence which might have been
mriginally imposed. See 18 U.S.C. § 3614,
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. . Judgment--Page 5 of &
pefendant: DWAYNE ALBERT THORNHILL

~ase Number: 97-CR-090-001-K

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report,

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 27

Crimina!l History Category: P e
Imprisonment Range: 70 months to 87 months
Supervised Release Range: 4 to 5 years

Fine Range: % 12,500 to $ 7,000,000

Rastitution: $ n/a

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.
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~ o IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FI LE )

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA JUN' 41998

Phii Lombard, Clark

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, LS. D’STFHCT CouR
T

Plaintiff,

VS, Case No. 94-CR-13-E

[7C300
'ENTERED ON DOCKE

oz JUN 06 1558

BRANDON LEE GARRETT,

Defendant.

JUDGMENT

This matter came before the Court upon Defendant's Motion To

Vacate, Set Aside, or Correct Sentence by a Person in Fedefal

Custody (Docket #51). The Court duly considered the issues and
rendered a decision herein.

s IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that judgment

is hereby entered for Plalntlff and agalnst Defendant

IT IS SO ORDERED THTS _ <32 DAY OF JUNE, 1998.

.  SENIOR JUDGE
STATES DISTRICT COURT




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT F i L E
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA J
TIUN 4 g9,

Phir 1,

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, us, DFST{-%am' Cferk
OURT

Plaintiff,
Vs,

BRANDON LEE GARRETT,

g70309¢

Defendant.

CNTERED ON B0

Case No. 94-CR-13-E

T
L_Jl\.l.-

ORDER | Dn—:w

Now before the Court is the Motion To Vacate, Set Aside, or
Correct Sentence by a Person in Federal Custody (Docket #51) of
Defendant Brandon Lee CGarrett,

Garrett pled guilty on October 21, 1994 to one count of Armed

Car jacking, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 82119, and one count of

Carrying a Firearm During Commigsion of a Violent Crime, in

violation of 18 U.8.C. §324(c}. He was sgentenced to 48 months as
to count one and 60 months as to count two, with the sentences to
run consecutively. Garrett did not appeal his sentence. He now
argues in his §2255 motion that his conviction on vielation of
§924 (¢}, carrying a firearm cduring commisgion of a wviclent crime,
violates the Double Jeopardy Clause, because it results in multiple
punishments for one crime: use of a firearm. He also argues that
18 U.S.C. §211%9 is an unconstitutional attempt by Congress to
regulate a purely intrastate issue.

The government raises the issue of procedural bar, arguing

that both issues raised by Garrett could have been raised on direct

‘appeal, and were not. The government asserts that failure to




address an issue on direct appeal will bar review unless the
.deféhdéﬁt déﬁonétfateé'céqéé ah&?préjudiée, or can show that a
fundamental miscarriage of justice will occur unless his claim is
addressed.._Qﬂit@d_ﬁtﬂlﬁﬁ;!+_hilaﬂ} lS_E.3d 37? {i@th Cir; 1954)5

In this case, Garrett, does not attempt to show either cause
and prejudice or that a "miscarriage of justice” will occur unless
his claim is addressed. He merely states that he accepted the
advice of counsel that there were no grounds for appeal, that he
believes that advice constituted “an error in judgment,” but that
he did not wish to méke an ineffective assistanqe of counsel claim.
The Court notes that the same arguments raised by Garrstt were
rejected by the Court in United States v, Qverstreet, 40 F.3d 1090
(10th eir. 1994) (holding that although 52119 may “stretch the
outer limits of the Commerce Clause”, it is not unconstitutional,
.and that.the éumulative pﬁniéhﬁents.undef 18 U}S;C..§924(c)(i) and
18 U.S.C. §2119 do not violate the Double Jeopardy Clause of the
Fifth Amendment). Therefcre Garrett can demonstrate neither
prejudice nor a miscarriage of justice by failure to coﬁsider the
issues he now raises.

Garrett's Motion to Vagate, Set Aside, or Correct Sentence by
a Person 1in Federal Cuétody (Docket #51) is denied as being
precedurally barred.

y i
IT IS 5C ORDERED THIS,_EE'“_' DAY OF JUNE, 19%8.

prrienes

J 0. ELLISON, SENIOR JUDGE
UN$TED STATES DISTRICT COURT




~ INTHE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
. FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA FIL ED J
JUN 41998 4

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) Phil Lombarg; /
_ _ ) u.s. nlSTch"c‘g%mT
Plaintiff, ) /
)
VS. ) Case No. 93-CR-33-E
| o )
SALVADOR HINOJOS, JR. ) Gyl 7 E
)
Defendant . )
ENTERED ON DOCKET
bl 2 0N
DA-"'C: JU‘\J [
JUDGMENT e

This matter came before the Court upon the Motion Pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
£§2255 to Vacate, Set Aside, or Correct Sentence by a Person in Federal Custody
_ (Docket_#45) of_ th.e Defendant, Salvador Hinojos, Jr. The Court duly considered the
issues an.d rendered.a decision he}ein._ . o | |

iT 1S THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that judgment is

hereby entered for Plaintiff and against Defendant.

IT IS SO ORDERED THIS Q‘!DAY OF JUNE, 1998.

. ELLISON, SENIOR JUDGE
STATES DISTRICT COURT
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| UNITED STATES DISTRICTCOURT FILE D
. Nort istri
. orthern District of Oklahoma JUN 4 1998 ferr—

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
' Phil Lombardi, Clerk
U.S. DISTRICT COURT

V. | Case Number 87-CR-166-01-BU
GERALD RAMON MIRABEL | ENTERED ON DOCKET
Defendant,
o DATE. -5 - 7F

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987)

The defendant, GERALD RAMON MIRABEL, was represented by Lee Gritfin Ebetle.

The defendant pleaded guilty cn February 26, 1998, to count One of the Indictment.
Accordingly, the defendant is adjudged guilty of such count, involving the following offense(s):

Date Offense ] Count
Titla & Saction Nature of Offense C_qncluded _ Nunj_ber(s}
18 USC b4bH - Smuggling Goods Into U.5. 9-11-97 1

As pronounced on May 28, 1998, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 4 of
this Judgment, The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984,

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 100, for
count(s) One of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the U " day of QM_A , 1998,

Uﬂﬂ‘d Sfé“s .Disﬂid (ot ) Ss

u«m District of Oklohoma )
-that the for

I's n lru tooy of the onginal on fi

o | ombondl, Cick -

h? B'}'V\D.QQJL&_/

Depury

Defendant’'s SSN: 261-49-0859
. Defendant’'s Date of Birth: 02-04-60

" Defendant’s residence and mailing address: 2612 S. Maple Avenue, Broken Arrow, OK 74012

ar
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;"‘"‘\ Defendant GERALD RAMON MIRABEL
Case Number; 97-CR-166-01-8U

PROBATION
The defendant is hereby placed on probatidn far & term of 24 rmonths.

While on probation, the defendant shall not commit another federai, state, or local crime; shall not

illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted
by this court {set forth below); and shall comp!y with the following additional conditions:

1.

2.
3

If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs or restitution obligation, it shall be a
condition of probation that the defendant pay any such fine, assessment, costs and restitution.
The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm, destructive device, or other dangerous weapon.
The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of testing and treatment (to include
inpatient) for drug and alcohol abuse, as directed by the Probation Officer, until such time as released
from the program by the Probation Officer,

The defendant shall submit to a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person,
residence, vehicle, office and/or business at a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, based
upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence of a violation of a condition of release. Failure
to submit to a search may be grounds fer revocation. The defendant shall not reside at any location
without having first advised other residents that the premises may be subject to searches pursuant
to this condition. Additionally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other residents
that said residents acknowledge the existence of this condition and that their failure to cooperate
could result in revocation. This acknowledgement shall be provided to the U. S. Probation Office
immediately upon taking reSIdencv

The defendant shall abide by the "Special Financial Conditions” enumerated in Miscellanecus Order
Number M-128, filed with the Clerk of the Court on March 18, 1992,

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF PROBATION

While the defendant is an probation pursuant to this judgment, tha dafendant shall not commit another federal, state or logal

crime. In addition:

1
2}

3
4)
5}

6)
7)

8)
9

10
11)
12)

13)

14}

The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the permission of the court or prohation officer.

The defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submir a truthful and
cornplete written report within tha first five days of each month,

The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and fellow the instructions of the probation officer,
The defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities.

The defendant shall work regularly at a lawful occupation unless excused by the probation officer for schoolmg, training, or other
acceptable reasons.

The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or employment.

The defendant shalt refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shaill not purchase, possess, use, distribute or administer any
nar¢otic or other controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.
Tha defandant shall not frequent places where contralled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or administared.

The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any person convicted
of a falony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer.

The defendant shall permit a probation offizer to visit him or her st any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in pfain view by the probation officer,

Tha defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement
officer.

The defendant shall not enter inta any agreement to act as an infermer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without
the permission of the court.

As directad by the prohation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be vecasioned by the defendant’s
criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such notifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement.

The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the U. S. Probation Office.
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Defendant: GERALD RAMON MIRABEL

" . Case Number: 97-CR-166-01-BU

FINE

The Court has determined that the defendant does not have the ability to pay interest, and it is
accordingly ordered that the interest requirement is waived.

The defendant shall pay a fine of $ 500. This fine shall be paid in full imm'ediately. Any amount not
paid immediately shall be paid during the period of Probation.

I the fine is not paid, the court may sentence the defendant to any sentence which might have been
originaily imposed. See 18 U.5.C. § 3614,
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P Defendant: GERALD RAMON MIRABEL
- . Case Number: 97-CR-166-01-BU '

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 6

Criminal History Category: |

imprisonment Range: 0 months to 6 months
Supervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years

fine Range: $ 500 10 § 5,000
Restitution: ' n/a

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT DATE _w;
2

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,
vs. No. 97-CR-135-K .~

WILLIAM MICHAEL EVANS and
GREGORY DAMIEN LORSON,

Defendants.
T4 qa0g
ORDER i Lombardi Olork
S0 ST LT 6oURT

In February, 1998, the defendants were convicted by a jury of
all eighteen substantive counts in the superseding indictment.
During the guilt phase, the jury was not instructed as to counts 19
and 20, which sought property forfeiture. After return of the
verdict, the defendants waived jury trial on forfeiture and agreed
to a bench trial. 1In April, 1998, this trial was conducted and the
Court hereby renders its decision.

18 U.S8.C. §982(a) (1) provides that after a conviction for
money laundering under 18 U.S.C. §1957 (1.e., counts 16-18 in the
case at bar), the court shall order that the person forfeit to the
United States any property, real or personal, involved in such an
offense, or any property traceable to such property. The
government bears the burden of proof, but only by a preponderance

of the evidence. United States v. Myers, 21 F.3d 826, 829 (gt

Cir.1994); United States v. Voigt, 89 F.3d 1050, 1082 (3™

Cir.1996) .

Regarding Count 19, the government seeks forfeiture by

i



defendant Evans of approximately $57,500, which included $25,000
withdrawn from the Ameriwest Bancorp, 1Inc., account at First
Interstate Bank of Oregon on November 14, 1995 and $32,500
withdrawn from the Phoenix Capital Fund account at Bank Iv
Oklahoma, N.A. on December 13, 1994,

Regarding Count 20, the government seeks forfeiture by
defendant Lorson of (1) a 1979 Bentley automobile bearing VIN
SBK37898 and (2) $25,000 in United States currency withdrawn from
the AmeriWest Bancorp, Inc. account at First Interstate Bank of
Oregon on November 14, 1995 and withdrawn from the Capital PFund
acéount at Bank IV Oklahoma, N.A. on November 14, 1994,

At the hearing, the defendants did not dispute the
government's basic argument that it is entitled to forfeiture.
Defendants argued that the government. is "double dipping", because
the amounts alleged in Counts 16 and 17 were essentially "the same
money", ultimately converted into a Bentley automobile, while the
government seeks forfeiture as to both the currency and the
automobile., The Court agrees with the government that this
argument is premature. At this point, the Court will merely enter
a ruling that the government is entitled to forfeiture as set forth
in Counts 19 and 20 of the superseding indictment. The precise
amount of forfeiture will not be determined until the judgment of
forfeiture is entered at the time of sentencing. The defendants
may rest assured that the government will not be permitted a

Judgment which authorizes such "double dipping".




It is the Order of the Court that the government, having met

its burden of proof, is granted forfeiture of the property

described in Counts 19 and 20 of the superseding indictment.

ORDERED filed this__\j? day of June, 1998.

<’%@m

TERRY C. BERN, Chief
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

P
0o Northern District of Oklahoma JUN4 1998 A
: Phil Lombardi, Clerk
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA u.e biamoard, Clerk

V. ‘ Case Number 88-CR-017-001-BU

MICHAEL HUGHES
Pefendant.

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
{(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987}
The defendant, MICHAEL HUGHES, was represented by Michael Abel.

The defendant pleaded guilty to Count 1 of the Indictment, March 28, 1998. Accordingly, the
defendant is adjudged guilty of such count, involving the following offense:

Date Offense Count
Title & Section Nature of Offense Concluded _Number;s}
18 USC 3146 Failure to Appear for Sentencing 11/07/97 1

{a}(T}

" As’ pronouneed on May 28 1998 the defendant is sentenced as prowded in pages 2 through 4 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencmg Reform Act of 1984,

it is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 100, for
Count 1 of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

tt is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

: .
Signed this the ‘_-{ day of s , 1998,

b/ B

The Honorable Michael Bdrrage
United States District Jffdge

United Stetes Disteict (ot ) %
Northein District of Olkdohoma )

| haral ¢ ﬂmﬂuimgmha
_ as:h‘m:mommwdwf
{—\Defendant s SSN: 521-04-86479 . . s o i (st

"Defendant’s Date of Birth: 07/21/62

Defendant’s mailing address: Lot 48, Block 16, Flintridge OK 74347 By g e !BZ‘_"\_ {J S! o

Defendant’s residence address: Tulsa County Jail Laguty




S
u

AD 245 S {Rev. 7/93HN.D. Qkla. rev.) Sheet 2 - Imprisonment

Judgment--Page 2 of 4
¢ Defendant: MICHAEL HUGHES
Case Number: 98-CR-017-001-BU
IMPRISONMENT
" The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of 18 months, as to Count 1, to run consecutively to sentence previously imposed
in Northern District of Oklahoma Case 87-CR-041-001-K.
The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: that the defendant be
placed in a facility where he will participate in Intensive Substance Abuse Treatment while he is incarcerated.

The defendant is remanded to_the'custo_dy of the United States Marshal.

RETURN

| have executed this Judgment as follows:

Befendant delivered on to
at _ , with a certified copy of this Judgment.

United States Marshal

By

Deputy Marshal
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¢~ Defendant: MICHAEL HUGHES
' "Case Number: 98-CR-017-001-BU

SUPERVISED RELEASE
Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shatl be on supervised release for a term of 3 years.

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federai, state, or local crime;

shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court {set forth below); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1.

2,

The defendant shall report in person to the Probation Office in the district to which the defendant is released as soon as
pessible, but in ne event, !ater than 72 hours of release from the custody of the Bureau of Prisons.

1f this judgment imposes a fine, special assessmeant, costs, or restitution cbligation, it shall be a condition of supervised release
that the defendant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and restitution that remain unpaid at the commencement of the
term of supervised release. '

The defendant shall not own or passess a firearm, destructive device, or other dangerous weapon.

The defendant shall successfully participata in a program of testing and treatment {to include inpatient) for drug and alcohol
sbuse, as directed by the Probation Qfficer, until such time as released from the program by the Probation Officar.

The defendant shall submit to a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person. residence, vehicle, office
and/or business at & reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, based upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence
of a violation of a condition of release. Failure to submit to a search may be greunds for revacation. The defendant shall not
reside at any location without having first advised other residents that the premises may be subject 1o searches pursuant to
this condition. Additicnally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other residents that said residents
acknowfedge the eéxistence of this conditien and that their failure to cooperate could result in revocation. This
acknowtedgement shall be provided to the U. S, Probation Office immediately upon taking residancy.

STANDARD GONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is an supervised release pursuant to this judgment, the defendant shall not cammit another federal, state,

or local crime, In addition:

1
2}

3)
4)
)

&)
7

8)
9}

10)
11)
12}

13}

e

The defendant shall not teave the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer,

The defendant. shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probatien officer and shall submit a truthful and
complete written report within the first five days of gach month,

The defendant shali answer truthfully alf inquiries by the probation afficer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.
The defendant shal} support his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities.

The defendant shall work regularly at a lawful occupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other
acceptable reasons.

The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or employment.

The defendant shal! refrain from excessive use of alcghol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or administer any
narcotic or other controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.
The defendant shall not fraquent places where controlied substancés are illegally soid, used, distributed, or administered.

The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminai activity, and shali not associate with any person convicted
of a felony unless granted permission 1o do so by the probation officer. '

The defendant shall permit a prebation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probatian officer.

The defendant shall notify tha probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrestad or questioned by a law enforcement
officer.

The defendant shall not enter inta any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without
the permission of the court.

As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s
criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shal! permit the probation officer to make such netifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement.

The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the U. S. Probation Office.
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Defendant: .MI_CHAEL HUGHES

Foo

Coie Numbar:” 88.CR61706T°BU"

o

A
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STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the 'presentence report,

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 10

Criminal History Category: Vi

Imprisenment Range: 24 months to 30 months
Supervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years

Fine Range: $ 2,000 to $ 20,000
Restitution: $ nfa

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence departs from the guideline range for the following reason{s): The Court finds that a
departure is warranted in accordance with 18 USC § 3553(b) and USSG §5K2.0, because there exists a
mitigating circumstance of a kind not adequately taken into consideration by the Sentencing Commission
in formulating guidelines that should result in a sentence different from that described. The Court finds that
imposing a sentence for the instant offense without departing would have the effect of "double counting”,
based on the enhancement for obstruction of justice given in the sentencing for the underlying offense.

535




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT *
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA & I L B "

JUN 31593 |

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) Phil Lombardi, Clerk
) U.S. DISTRICT COURT
Plaintiff, )
)
Vs. ) Case No. 94-CR-51-E
) (96-C-876-E)
JACK DAVID COX, )
)
Defendant. ) ENTERED ON DOCKET
- J AR
JUDGMENT DAL=

This matter came before the Court upon Defendant's motion to vacate set aside or correct
sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255, The Court duly considered the issues and rendered a decision
herein.

IT I$ THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that judgment is hefeby

entered for Plaintiff and against Defendant.

SO ORDERED THIS £ ‘?-/day of Q_ﬂ_‘ . 1998.
o - 7

oo .

TAMES 0. ELLISON |
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE




FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA™

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICTCOURT ® Y [, E D D
JUN 3 1998

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Phil Lombardi, Clerk
. U.S. DISTRICT COURT
Plaintiff, /
V8. Case No. 93-CR-33-E

96-C-478-E
SALVADOR HINOJOS, JR.

Defendant .

ENTERED ON DOCKET
RDE pate JUN 04 W‘f

Now before the Court is the Motion pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §2255 to Vacate,

Set Aside, or Correct Sentence by a Person in Federal Custody (Docket #45} of the
. Defendant, Salvador Hinojos, . s

Hinojos was found guilty of Pbssessio.n”of a ﬁontrolléd substanée v.v.ith i.n.te.mt
to distribute, and carrying a firearm during the commission of a drug trafficking crime.
He was sentenced to 37 months on count one, and 60 months on count two, to rQn
consecutively. He appealed, alleging three errors: 1) denial of his motion to suppress
e\.fiden'ce seized as a result of an allegedly pretextual stop, illegal detention and
tainted consent; 2} denial of his motion for a mistrial based on prosecutorial -
misconduct; and 3} imposition of a fine for costs of i_.ncarceration. The tenth circuit
vacated the ruling on the motion to suppress and the imposition of the fine, affirmed
the denial of the motion for mistrial, and remanded for further proceedings. On
remand, the Court again denied the Motion to Suppress, and this ruling was affirmed

on Appeal. Hinojos now argues, in his §2255 motion that his §924(c) conviction for




carrying a firearm during a drug trafficking ¢rife should be “overturned pursuant to

' Bailey v. United States, 116 $.Ct. 501 (1995).” Hinojos cites no other authority in

support of his position, but argues, in the attachment to his §2255 motion that:

The gun belonged to someone who was related to my co-defendant. it
was missing from their home and | had never been there. My co-
defendant has been there that day in my truck which he had borrowed
from me. | has never touched the guh. My co-defendant could have
hidden the fun before he picked me up from my home or after we were
stopped when he was left alone in the truck. ! personally feel that | was
wrongfully charged with carrying the firearm. | belief {sic} that the
mandatory five year sentence should be vacated or reduced based on
the fact that active employment of the firearm was not proven.

In discussing the evidence necessary to prove a charge of “using” a firearm in

relation to a drug trafficking crime, the Court, in Bailey, held that “§924{c}{1) requires

.evidence sufficient to show an active employment of the firearm by the defendant,

a use th_at_m_gkgs_ _th_gfi_rgg_r_m an operative factor in relation to the ]::re.d_icam;h offense.”
Bailey, 116 S.Ct., at p. 505. This holding, in Bailey, however, does not help Hinojos.
He was charged with, and convicted of “carrying” a firearm in relation to a drug
trafficking crime, and Bailey mak.es it clear that “carrying” and “using” mean two
different things, and that it is “using” which requires active employment.

Moreovef, a review of thé fecord reQeaIs thaf tﬁe gun .w;as fou.nd.i.n thé console_..
of the truck that Hinojos was driving, next to a zip-lock storage bag containing
cocaine. This evidence is sufficient to support a charge of “carrying” a firearm in
relation to a drug trafficking crime in violation of 3924(c). United States v. Cardenas,

864 F.2d 15628 (10th Cir. 1989), United States v. Jones, 49 F.3d 628 (10th Cir.

1995}.




Hinojos’ Motion pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §2255 to Vacate, Set Aside, or Correct

Sentence by a Person in Federal Custody (Docket #45) is denied.

IT IS SO ORDERED THIS & Jg"ﬂ[)ﬁﬁf OF JUNE, 1998.

S 0. ELLISON, SENIOR JUDGE
TED STATES DISTRICT COURT
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR

THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA /il kombardi, clork

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA )
Plaintiff )
)
VS ) Case Number 92-CR-072-001-E

)

ANTHONY ROSS BENSON ) ENTERED ON DOCKET
Defendant )

DATE éf/o?/ 2

D = CONDITION: ERVISED RELEASE

Now on this 28th day of May 1998, this cause comes on for revocation congerning allegations

that Benson violated conditions of supervised release as set out in the Petition on Supervised Release

filed on October 28, 1997. Benson is present in person and represented by counsel, Stephen Greubel.

- The Government is represented by Assistant United States Attorney, Lucy Creekmore, and the

United States Probation Office s represented by David Plunkett.

On December 22, 1997, a Revocation Hearing was held regarding the allegations noted in the
Petition on Superviséd Releas'e, filed on October 28, 1997, said aIlegéLtions. being that Tulsa Police
officers recovered a loaded firearm on October 27, 1997, from a vehicle that was being driven by
Benson, and that Benson failed to report for urinalysis on April 23, April 28, May 4, May 11, and
May 15,. 1997. The Court passed the Revocation Hearing to May 28, 1998, to ﬁllow disposition of
state charges alleging Possession of a Firearm, After Former Conviction of a Felony. On May 4,
1998, the state charges were dismissed.

Based on evidence presented during the Revocation Hearing, the Court modified Benson's

.- . . wad States Distrigt Court |
conditions of release as follows: Er;m TSI: Dish‘it!‘l T okdatoma | s

- 1 harehy contify that
Cise t:m; copy of the origisal on
Tn thas cowri.
Phit Lombord, Cark

AL —
By Depaty .




~ The _c__ig_fgndgqt _..%l‘_l?._\l_l__'bf:: pla_c_ed___pg _h_ome dgteﬁ_tipn fo_; a pel_'iod of two (2) months,
During this time, the defend.ﬁnt shall. remain _:it his. “pla.ce of résidence except.f(.)r
employment and other activities apﬁrbved in advance by the ﬁrobation ofﬁéer. The
defendant shall maintain a _te_lgphone at his place of residénce without any special
services, modems, answering machines, or cordless telephones for the above
period. The defendant shall wear an electronic device and shall observe the rules
specified by the Probation Department. The entire cost of this program shall be
paid by the U.S. Probation Office.

All other conditions previously imposed shall remain in full force and effect.

“The onorable Tames O. Ellison
Senior United States District Judge
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
. Northern District of Oklahoma

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v. Case Number 97-CR-136-02-H /

WILBUR FRANKLIN GARST, JR. | - F I I, E D

Defendant. J
- N 1999 K
JUDGMENT iN A CRIMINAL CASE P -
{For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987) U-_S. Is) ombard;

The defendant, WILBUR FRANKLIN GARST, JR., was represented by Randal D. Morley.
On motion of the United States the court has dismissed count 1 of the Indictment,

The defendant pleaded guilty on February 18, 1998, to count 2 of the Indictment,
Accordingly, the defendant is adjudged guilty of such count, involving the following offense(s):

Date Offensa Count
Title & Section Nature of Qffense _ _Con_plqded Ngmbergst
g"\‘l 8__US_C 1 952(a}(3__} Inte_rs_tat_e Travel in Alid of Racketeering ' 3-8-97 2
18 USC 2 Aiding and Abetting 3-8-97 2

As pronounced on May 28, 1998, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 100, for
count(s) 2 of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

it is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for ihis district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

i
Signed this the _ 27 _ day of _#/ty , 1998,

A

THe Honorable Sven Erik Holmes
United States District Judge

Defendant’'s SSN: 511-70-9037
£ Defendant’s Date of Birth: April 6, 1963
Defendant’s residence and mailing address: 5534 E Newton Place, Tulsa, OK 74116

oy,
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fas\Defendant ‘WILBUR FRANKLIN GARS_T JR.

P

Case Number: 97-CR-136-02-H

y _ PROBATION
The defendant is hereby placed on probation for a term of 3 years.

While an probation, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime; shall not

illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted
by this court {set forth below); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1.

2.

crime.

1)
2}
3)

4}
5}

6)
7

8)

9)

0
-1

12}

13}

14}

If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs or restitution obligation, it shall be a
condition of probation that the defendant pay any such fine, assessment, costs and restitution.
The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm, destructive device, or other dangerous weapon.
The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of testing and treatment (to include
inpatient) for drug and alcohol abuse, as directed by the Probation Officer, until such time as reteased
from the program by the Probation Officer. _
The defendant shall be placed on home detention to include electronic monitoring at the discretion
of the U. S. Probation Office for a period of 4 months, to commence within 72 hours of sentencing
date. During this time, the defendant shall remain at place of residence except for smployment and
other activities approved in advance by the probation office. The defendant shall maintain a
telephone at place of residence without any special services, modems, answering machines, or
cordless telephones for the above period. The defendant shall wear an electronic device and shall
observe the rules specified by the Probation Office. The entire cost of this program shall be paid by
the defendant.

The defendant shall perform 200 hours of community service at the Tulsa Volunteer Center or as
directed by the Probatuon Offlcer

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF PROBATION

While the defendant is on probation pursuant to this iudgment, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state or lacal
in addition:

‘The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer.

The defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and
complete written report within the first five days of each month.

The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.
The defendant shall suppeort his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities.

The defendant shall work reguiarly at a fawful ccoupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other
acceptable reasons.

The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-tweo hours of any change in residence or employment.

The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or administer any

-nercotic ar othaer controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician,

The defendant shall not frequent places where contml’ed substances are illagally sold, used, distributed, or administered.

The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shali nat associate with any person convicted
of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer,

The defendant shall parmit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or efsewhere and shall parmit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer.

The defendant shall notify the prebation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement
officer.

The defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without
the permission of the court.

As diracted by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be cccasioned by the defendant’s
criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the “probation officer to make such notifications and to
confirm tha defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement.

The defendant shall submit to. urinalysis testing &8s directed by the U. 5. Probation Office.
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Defendant: WILBUR FRANKLIN GARST, JR.

*Case Number: 97-CR-136-02-H

FINE

The Court has determined that the defendant does not have the ability to pay interest, and it is
accordingly ordered that the interest requirement is waived.

The defendant shall pay a fine of $ 1,000. This fine shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount
not paid immediately shall be paid during the period of Probation.

If the fine is not paid, the court may sentence the defendant to any sentence which might have been
originally imposed. See 18 U.S.C. § 3614.
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?,..e.\Def_endan_t: WILBUR FRANKLIN GARST, JR.
. Case Number: 97-CR-136-02-H

RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE

RESTITUTION

The defendant shall make restitution in the total amount of $§2,107.

The Court orders the defendant to immediately pay restitution in the amount of $2,107. Upon
forteiture of $1,120.560 which is currently in the custody of authorities, a restitution balance of $986.50
will remain outstanding. Payments will be forwarded to Lady Luck Casino, 316 Beach Boulevard, Biloxi,
Mississippi 39530, reference case number LL-03-97-034. The restitution shall be paid jointly and severally
with codefendant, Tony Cahue.

Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s). '

~ Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid during

the period of probation.

If a vietim has received compensation from insurance or any other source with respect t0 a loss, any
restitution ordered shall be paid to the person who is a victim before any restitution is paid to any such
provider of compensation.

Any payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise specified here.
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?,..\Defendant WILBUR FRANKLIN GARST, JR.
Case Number 97- CR- ‘]36 02-H

STATENMENT OF REASONS
The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report, except
defendant is entitled to two level decrease in offense level pursuant to USSG § 3E1.1{a}.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 7

Criminal History Category: i

Imprisanment Range: 0 months to 6 months Count 2
Supervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years Count 2
Fine Range: $ 500 to $ 5,000 Count 2
Restitution: $ 2,107

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
- Northern District of Oklahoma

_ UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v. Case Number 97-CR-136-001-H /

TONY CAHUE | | v .a

Defendant.

o W,
JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE '%;( 7993
(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987) S D/STR%
Uﬁ?r
The defendant, TONY CAHUE, was represented by Stephen J. Knorr,
On motion of the United States the court has dismissed count 1 of the Indictment.
. /9
The defendant pleaded guilty on February 481998, to count 2 of the Indictment.
Accordingly, the defendant is adjudged guilty of such count, involving the following offense{s):
Date Offense Count
Title & Section Nature of Offense Concluded Numbar(s)
#7718 USC 1952(a)(3) Interstate Travel in Aid of Racketeering  3-897 2
18 USC 2 Aiding and Abetting 3-8-97 2

~ As pronounced on May 28, 1998, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 100, for
count(s) 2 of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

it is further orderad that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed thisthe 27 7’§ay of g | , 1998.

Th€ Honorable Sven Erik Holmes
United States District Judge

—.Defendant’s SSN: 459-50-2155
Jefendant’s Date of Birth: 07-05-30 _ o
Defendant’s residence and mailing address: Tulsa City/County Jail, c/o U.S. Marshal's Office, 500 S
Denver, Tulsa, OK 74103

e
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Defendant TONY CAHUE L | |
Case Number: 97- CR 136-001-H 0
- IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby committed to the ¢ustody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of 18 months.

The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: Defendant be placed in
a Bureau of Prisoni’s Medical Facility.. The Court further orders the detendant’s medical records be attached
_ to the presentence report and that placement in a medical facility be expedited.

~
The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal.
RETURN
[ have executed this Judgment as follows:
Defendant delivered on . to

/"”‘at _ _ _ _ wrth a certlfled copy of this Judgment.

Unlted States Marshal
By

Deputy Marshal
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Defendant: TONY CAHUE

{"@Case Number' 97 CR 136 001 -H-

SUPERVISED RELEASE
Upon release from :mprtsonment the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of 3 years.

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime;

shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court {set forth below); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

The defendant shall report in person to the Probation Office in the district to which the defendant is
released as soon as possible, but in no event, later than 72 hours of release from the custody of the
Bureau of Prisons. '
If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs, or restitution obligation, it shall be a
condition of supervised release that the defendant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and
restitution that remain unpaid at the commencement of the term of supervised release.
The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm, destructive device, or other dangerous weapon.
The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of testing and treatment (to include
inpatient) for drug and alcohol abuse, as directed by the Probation Officer, until such time as released
from the program by the Probation Officer.
The defendant shall submit to a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person,
residence, vehicle, office andfor business at a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, based
upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence of a violation of a condition of release. Failure
to submit to a search may be grounds for revocation. The defendant shall not reside at any location
without having first advised other residents that the premises may be subject to searches pursuant
to this condition. Additionally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other residents
that said residents acknowledge the existence of this condition and that their failure to cooperate
could result in revocation. This acknowledgement shall be provided to the U. S. Probation Office
immediately upon taking residency.

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on supervised release pursuant to this judgment, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state,

or local crime. In addition:

1
2}

3}
4)
8)

)
7)

8)
8

10}
11}
12}

13}

14)

The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the permission of the ¢ourt or probation officer,

The defandant shall raport to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and
complete written report within the first five days of eazch month.

The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.
The defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other family responsihilities.

The defendant shall work regularly at a tawful occupatloﬂ unless excused by the probation officer for schocling, training, or other

. acceptable reasons.

The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or employment.

The defendant shall rafrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribhute or administer any
narcotic or other controfled substance, or any paraphernalia related 1o such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.
The defendant shall nat frequent places where controlied substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or administered.

The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in eriminal activity, and shall not associate with any person convicted
of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer.

The defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by tha probation officer.

The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement
officer.

The defendant shall not enter into any agreement to an,t as an informer or a spec:al agent of a law enforcement agencv without

" the permission of the court.

As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s
criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such notifications and to

. confirm the defendant’s compliance with such nofification requirement.

The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testihg as directed by the U. 5. Probation Office,
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- © Defendant: TONY CAHUE :
Case Number: 97-CR-136-001-H

RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE
RESTITUTION
The defendant shall make restitution in the total afnount of $3,486,

The defendant shall make restitution to the following persons in the following amounts:

_ The Court orders the defendant to immediately pay restitution in the amount of $3,486. Upon
forfeiture of $1,120.50, which is in the custody of authorities, a restitution balance of $2,607 will remain
outstanding. Payments may be forwarded to Lady Luck Casino, 316 Beach Boulevard, Biloxi, Mississippi
39530, reference case number LL-03-97-034, $986.50 of the restitution amount shall be paid jointly and
severally with codefendant Wilbur Garst, The remaining $1,620.50 shall be paid by this defendant. Any
restitution amount no paid immediately shall be paid during the period of incarceration, with any remaining
unpaid balance to be paid during the term of supervised release. Considering the defendant’s earning ability
and his limited financial resources, the Court does not impose any fine, cost of incarceration or supervision,
and waives interest accrual on the restitution.

Payments of restitution are to b&' made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s),

Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Ar_w amount not paid immediately shall be paid while
in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from
custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid as a condition of supervised release.

If a victim has received compensation from insurance or any other source with respect to a loss, any
restitution ordered shall be paid to the person who is a victim before any restitution is paid to any such
provider of compensation.

Any payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise specitfied
here.
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<Defendant; TONY CAHUE
3 -

Case Number: 97-CR-136-001-H

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guidéline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 7

Criminal History Category: v

imprisonment Range: 12 months to 18 months Count 2
Supervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years Count 2
Fine Range: $ 500 to $ 5000 Count 2
Restitution: $ 3,486 '

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to_depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.

)
S
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

£ > . Northern District of Oklahoma
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

V. | | Case Number 98-CR-15-01-H /

&
ANTHONY RENARD MOSLEY E L -E ‘Q

Defendant. JU
o | T a 1 1999
JUDGMENT I[N A CRIMINAL CASE ’”/Lo,,,ba
{For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987) ' DfSrR,c’dﬂ C

s fork
Uy
The defendant, ANTHONY RENARD MOSLEY, was represented by Jack Schisler.

The defendant pleaded guilty on February 26, 1898, to counti{s) One of the Indictment.
Accordingly, the defendant is adjudged guilty of such count{s), involving the following offense(s):

Date Offense Count
Title & Section Nature of Offense Concluded Numberis)
18 USC 513(a) Possession and Uttering Counterfeit Security {Chack) 12-27-97 1
" s i:- As pronounced on May 29, 1998, the dafendant is seritericed as provided in pages 2 through 5 of -

this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 100, for
count{s) One of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

o _ )
Signed this the _ 27 “day of ATy ., 1998,

ey =g

Th& Honorable S\fen Erik Holmes
United States District Judge

f\Defendant’s $SSN: 455-43-4820
¢ Jefendant’s Date of Birth: 12/26/63 o
Defendant’s residence and mailing address: 2601 Escalante, Fort Worth, Texas 76120
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~~ Defendant: ANTHONY RENARD MOSLEY
' .Case Number: 98-CR-15-01-%° =~

_IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of 15 months.

The defendant is remanded to the ¢ustody of the United States Marshal.

RETURN

[ have executed this Judgment as follows:

Defendant delivered on to
at ' L , with a certified copy of this Judgment.

" United States Marshal

By

Deputy Marshal
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Defendant: ANTHONY RENARD MOSLEY
f“'\Case Number' 98 CR 15 01 H .

SUPERVISED RELEASE
Upon release from imprisonment, the defandant shall be on supervised release for a term of three (3)

years.

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime;

shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court {set forth below)}; and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1.

The defendant shall report in person to the Probation Office in the district to which the defendant is
released as soon as possible, but in no event, later than 72 hours of release from the custody of the
Bureau of Prisons. o

_ If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs, or restituytion obligation, it shall be a
condition of supervised release that the defendant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and
restitution that remain unpaid at the commencement of the term of supervised release.

~ The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm, destructive device, or other dangerous weapon.
The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of testing and treatment {to include
inpattent} for drug and alcoho! abuse, as directed by the Probation Officer, until such time as released
from the program by the Probation Officer,
The defendant shall submit to a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person,
residence, vehicle, office and/or business at a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, based
upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence of a viclation of a condition of release. Failure
to submit to a search may he grounds for revocation. The defendant shall not reside at 'a_ny location
without having first advised other residents that the premises may be subject to searches pursuant
to this condition. Additionally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other residents

- that said residents acknowledge the existence of this condition and that their failure to cooperate

‘could result in revocation. This acknowledgement shall be provided to the U. S. Probation Office
immediately upon taking residency.

The defendant shali abide by the "Special Financial Conditions” enumerated in Miscellaneous Order
Number M-128, filed with the Clerk of the Court on March 18, 1992.

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

White the defendant is on supervised release pursuant te this judgment, the defendant shéll not commit another federal, state,

or local erime. In addition:

1
2}

3}
4)
5]

&)
7}

B)
9

10]

11)

r‘r;l 2} .

13)

14

The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the permission of the court or prohation officer.

‘The defendant shail report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and

complete written report within the first five days of each month.

The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.
The defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities.

The defendant shalt work regularly at a lawful occupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other
acceptable reasons.,

The defendant shali notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or empioyment.

The defendant shall rafrain from excessive use of alcoho! and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or administer any
narcctic or other controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related 10 such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.
The defendant shall not frequent places where controfled substancas are illegally sold, used, distributed, or administered.

The defendant shalt not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shal! not assaciate with any person convicted
of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer.

The defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any fime at hame or elsawhere and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer.

The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-twa hours of being arrested or questioned by a Jaw enforcement
officer.

The defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an mformer or a specml agent of a law enforcemnnt agencv without
the permission of the céurt. -

As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s
criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shali permit the probation officer to make such notifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement.

The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the U, S, Probaticn Office.
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ﬁDefendant ANTHONY RENARD MOSLEY
*Case Number: 98-CR-15-01-H

FINE
The Court has determined that the defendant does not have the ability to pay interest, and it is
accordingly ordered that the interest requurement is waived.
The defendant shall pay a fine of $ 500. This fine shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not
paid immediately shall be paid while in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ inmate Financial Responsibility

Program. Upon release from custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid during the term of supervised
release.

If the fine is not paid, the court may sentence the defendant to any sentence which might have been
originally imposed. See 18 U.5.C. 5 3614.
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~Defendant: ANTHONY RENARD MOSLEY
* Case Number: 98-CR-15-01-H '

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 8

Criminal History Category: ' \%

imprisonment Range: 15 months to 21 months Count One
Supervised Release Range: ' 2 to 3 years Count One
Fine Range: $1,000t0 $ 10,000 Count One
Restitution: nfa

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
- finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.




